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DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE
AUDITOR-CONTROLLER

Stephanie M. Butters Janet Dutcher, CPA, CGFM P.O. Box 556
Assistant Finance Director Director of Finance Bridgeport, California 93517
Auditor-Controller (760) 932-5490

Fax (760) 932-5491

March 29, 2019
To the Board of Supervisors and Citizens of Mono County:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the County of Mono (County) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018,
is hereby submitted in compliance with Section 25250 and 25253 of the Government Code of the State of California.

Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information contained in this report, based
upon a comprehensive internal control framework established for this purpose. Because the cost of internal controls should not
exceed anticipated benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial statements
are free of any material misstatements.

The independent auditor’s report is located at the front of the financial section of this report. Price Paige & Company, a firm of
licensed certified public accountants, has issued an unmodified (“clean” opinion) on the County’s financial statements for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.

The Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor’s report and provides a
narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the financial statements. The MD&A complements this letter of transmittal and
should be read in conjunction with it.

PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT

Incorporated in 1861, Mono County is a rural county centrally located on the eastern side of the Sierra Nevada Mountains. The
County has an area of 3,049 square miles and a total population of 13,822 (as of January 1, 2018, California Department of
Finance). Other than Mammoth Lakes, the County’s only incorporated area which boasts a year round population of 7,000, the
remainder of the County consists of small communities ranging in population from less than 300 to about 1,200 people. The
northern part of the County encompasses the small towns of Topaz, Walker and Coleville. Bridgeport, the County seat, is 35
miles south of these small communities. The central part of the County includes the communities of Lee Vining, June Lakes,
Crowley Lake, the Wheeler Crest communities, and of course, Mammoth Lakes. In the southeast sector lie Benton and Chalfont.
During periods of heavy recreational usage, the Town of Mammoth Lakes population approaches 35,000.

Approximately 94 percent of Mono County is public land administered by the U.S. Forest Service, the Bureau of Land
Management, the State of California, and the Los Angeles Department of Water and Power. The scenic and recreational
attributes of this public land help support tourism and recreation as the major industry in the county. Approximately 38.5 percent
of all employment is directly associated with this industry. Annually, more than 1.5 million visitors stay in Mono County on
average for three days, generating $369.6 million for the local economy and $16 million in local taxes. Most of these visitors
travel to and through the county on the state highway system. Major attractions include Mammoth and June Mountain ski areas,
Yosemite National Park, Mono Lake, Devils Postpile National Monument, Bodie State Historic Park, and the many lakes, streams
and backcountry attractions accessed through Mono County communities. Mammoth Lakes, together with June Lake, is Mono
County’s most visited destination and is home to one of the largest ski resorts in North America.



The County government functions as a local government body to serve the needs of its residents. As geographical and political
subdivisions of the state, counties serve a dual role; providing municipal services in the unincorporated areas and acting as
administrative agents for state and federal government programs and services for all eligible residents County-wide. As a
general-law county, Mono County is bound by state law as to the number and duties of County elected officials. The County
has five districts that are approximately equal in population with boundaries adjusted every ten years following the federal
census. Policymaking and legislative authority are vested in the County Board of Supervisors (the Board). The Board provides
overall direction to the County and its responsibilities include adopting the budget, approving contracts, setting policies and
passing ordinances. Board members are elected to four-year staggered terms, and each member represents one of the
County’s five districts. The County has three elected department heads: Assessor, District Attorney, and Sheriff-Coroner. The
County Administrative Officer (CAO) appoints other department heads except for the position of County Counsel where the
Board of Supervisors is the appointing authority.

The County employed 285 full-time equivalent employees in FY 2017-2018 in order to provide a full range of services to its
residents. The County’s principal functions include seven major areas: general government, public protection, public ways and
facilities, health and sanitation, public assistance, education and recreation and cultural services. The State and Federal
governments mandate certain minimum levels of services in the public assistance and health areas. The majority of services
performed by the County are provided for all residents, regardless of whether those residents live in the County's one
incorporated town or in the unincorporated areas. Every County resident directly or indirectly benefits from these services.

Included in operations are various component units, which provide specific services County-wide or to distinct geographic areas
within the County. The governmental reporting entity consists of the County and its component units. Component units are
legally separate organizations for which the Board is financially accountable. Financial accountability is defined as the
appointment of a voting majority of the component unit’s governing board, and either (i) the County’s ability to impose its will on
the organization or (i) the potential for the organization to provide a financial benefit to or impose a financial burden on the
County. The following four component units, although legally separate entities, are considered to be part of the primary
government for financial reporting purposes: Community Service Area #1 — Crowley, Community Service Area #5 — Bridgeport,
Community Service Area #2 — Benton and the County of Mono Economic Development Corporation.

The County is required by State law to adopt a balanced budget by October 2 of each fiscal year. This annual budget serves
as the foundation for the County’s financial planning and control. Budgets are adopted for most governmental and proprietary
funds. The County maintains budgetary controls to assure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated
budget approved by the Board. Unencumbered annual appropriations lapse at year-end. The legal level of control for
appropriations is exercised at the budget unit level within each fund. Appropriations beyond that level may only be adjusted
during the year with approval of the Board. Management may make adjustments at their discretion below that level. Such
adjustments by the Board and management are reflected in the revised budgetary data presented in the financial statements.
Prior to adoption of the budgets, a public hearing is held to receive comments.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be
addressed to the Mono County Finance Department, P.O. Box 556, Bridgeport, California 93517.

FINANCIAL AND ECONOMIC INDICATORS
State Government

The County is a political subdivision of the State of California and as such, its government is subject to State subventions and
regulations. Therefore, the County’s financial health is closely tied to the financial condition of the State government. The County
cannot predict whether the State will encounter budgetary difficulties in the current or future fiscal years. The County also cannot
predict the impact future budgets will have on the County’s finances and operations. Current and future State budgets will be
affected by national and State economic conditions and other factors outside the County’s control.



Mono County Economy

The Mono County economy is stable and experiencing slow but steady growth. Property tax sourced revenue sustained steep
reductions through the economic downturn and its aftermath, declining $1.9 million, or 10.7%, from its peak. Since that time,
assessed values have nearly recovered to pre-2008 levels. Property and real property transfer taxes since fiscal year 2012-
2013 have increased at rates between 1.96% and 2.73%. This growth is anticipated to continue into fiscal year 2018-2019 and
fiscal year 2019-2020. The delinquency rate associated with current secured property tax collections is at its lowest in history,
dropping from 11.1% at June 30, 2010 to 0.6% at June 30, 2018. Sales tax collections increased 2% in 2018 and are estimated
to continue increasing at this rate. Tourism is a major economic sector in Mono County and represents an important revenue
stream. The County also saw continued growth in transient occupancy tax (TOT) with revenues exceeding $3.5 million, an
increase of 5.5%. Program revenues essential to departments’ ability to maintain public services continues to hold steady.
Building permit activity is 37% of pre-recessionary levels but shows some signs of conservative growth. With several large
residential developments in progress, the local economy is expected to improve in the near-term and position the County
favorably for future growth.

MAJOR INITIATIVES

The County completed several initiatives in FY 2017-2018 while maintaining core services during the year. The following
highlights represent a partial list of the many accomplishments and on-going initiatives of the Mono County organization in FY
2017-2018:

o Total property tax collections increased to 99.4%, from 97.3%, of total billed in FY 2017-2018.

e The Board of Supervisors approved proceeding with the Mono County Civic Center project, which consists of the
construction of a 33,000 square foot County Administrative Office Building in Mammoth Lakes. The project will
consolidate all County departments currently providing services in leased space at Sierra Center Mall and Minaret
Mall. Co-locating these departments in a single building increases efficiency and effectiveness of County operations
and greatly improves the convenience, safety, and confidentiality of services to the public.

o A Request for Proposals from Design-Build Entities for the Mono County Civic Center project was distributed on
February 26, 2018, and the successful proposal was submitted by Roebbelen Contracting of El Dorado Hills. A
Design-Build Contract between Mono County and Roebbelen Contracting was finalized in August 8, 2018, with a
contract limit of $20,500,000. Construction is expected to start in April 2019, and the project is estimated to be
available for occupancy in March 20210.

e On December 20, 2018, the County issued $19,940,000 of Certificates of Participation, Series 2018 A for the
purpose of financing construction of the Mono County Civic Center described above. The certificates were issued at
a premium of $2,266,117, for a total net proceeds of $20,500,000, net of costs of issuance and capitalized interest.
Successfully negotiated a new contract with the Mono County Public Safety Officers’ Association.

o Initiated pre-construction planning activities, including completion of the real estate diligence, for a new jail facility in
Bridgeport, funded with an award of $25 million coming from SB 844 State grant monies.

o Completed the initial grant cycle for a Community Development Block Grant to fund a childcare program operated by
the Mono County First-Five Commission. Towards the end of the fiscal year, Mono County received news the child
care initiative would be funded for another three years with the award of an additional Community Development Block
Grant of $500,000.

e Renewed our issuer rating of AA3 from Moody’s. In Mid-November 2018, received a credit rating of AA- long-term
rating on the County’s series 2018A certificates of participation with an outlook of stable.

o Utilized approximately $600,000 of SB 1 gas tax funding to complete a 2018 pavement preservation project with
roads and treatments selected based on the pavement management system.

o Clerk/Recorder’s Office implemented SB 2, Affordable Housing Act fee assessed on certain recorded documents.



ACCOUNTING AND BUDGETARY POLICIES

The County maintains accounting controls, which are designed to safeguard assets, and the reliability of financial records for
financial statement presentation. These controls include systems of authorization and approval, separation of duties, physical
control and custody over assets.

Internal accounting controls are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance regarding the safeguarding of
assets against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and the reliability of financial records for preparing financial statements
and maintaining accountability for assets. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of a control should not
exceed the benefits likely to be delivered and the evaluation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments of
management. All internal control evaluations occur within this framework. We believe that the County’s internal accounting
controls adequately safeguard assets and provide reasonable assurance of proper recording of financial transactions.

The County’s budget must balance expenditure appropriations with resources. Any deviation from a balanced budget is not
permitted by the California State Government Code, which states: “In the recommended, adopted and final budgets the funding
sources shall equal the financing uses” (Government Code 29009). The County establishes a general reserve account striving
to maintain a bhalance at 5% to 15% of annual general fund expenditures. The general reserve is available upon adoption of a
resolution by the Board of Supervisors for spending related to natural disasters, public health crisis, destruction of public facilities
and other calamities. With the fiscal year 2016-17, the County established an economic stabilization reserve within the General
Fund balance for the purpose of accumulating resources to offset future revenue losses during the next recession. The balance
of the reserve at June 30, 2018, is $1,805,192. A contingency appropriation of 1% of General Fund appropriations is included
in each year’s budget to accommodate unexpected increases in expenditures, which could not have reasonably been anticipated
at the time the budget was developed.

The objectives of the County’s debt policy include using debt when appropriate and at levels the County can afford. Long-term
debt is not to be used to finance ongoing operational costs. Before considering debt financing, other sources of funding such
as pay as you go or grant funding is explored. The County uses self-supporting debt first before considering general fund
obligated debt. Annual debt service, excluding self-supporting debt, is limited to 7% of annual general fund discretionary
revenue. Efforts are undertaken to maintain and improve the County’'s bond ratings so borrowing costs are minimized and
access to credit is preserved.

Cash temporarily idle during the fiscal year was invested with the County Treasury pooled cash. This investment pool is
composed of deposits and investments allowed by California Government Code and the Mono County investment policy. The
pooled investment concept allows the various funds within the County Treasury to earn interest based on their average daily
cash balance. The County, pursuant to the adopted investment policy, invested in United States Government Agency
Obligations, California Municipalities, Negotiable Certificates of Deposit (CD), Corporate Bonds and the State Local Agency
Investment Fund (LAIF).

PROSPECTS FOR THE FUTURE

Mono County continues to balance moderate increases in tax revenues against keeping up with the costs of providing services.
The annual growth in property values since 2014 has averaged 2.21% increase. Federal and State revenues have begun to
rebound. However, budget challenges are ahead. The County expects increases in personnel costs resulting from salary
alignment with the market, health care premium increases and escalation of required pension retirement contributions.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

To the Board of Supervisors
County of Mono
Bridgeport, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the County of Mono, California (the
"County"), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the County’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

677 Scott Avenue
Clovis, CA 93612

tel 559.299.9540
fax 559.299.2344

WWW.ppcpas.com



Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the County of Mono, California as of June 30, 2018, and the respective changes in
financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion on pages 5-16, schedule of changes in net pension liability and related ratios — agent plan on page
79, schedule of pension plan contributions — agent plan on page 80, schedule of proportionate share of the net
pension liability and related ratios as of the measurement date and schedule of contributions — cost sharing plan
on page 81, schedule of changes in net OPEB liability and related rations on page 82, and analysis and
budgetary comparison information on pages 84—90 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We and other auditors have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on
the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion
or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the County's basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual nonmajor
fund financial statements, and statistics section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are the responsibility of management and
were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America by us and other auditors. In our opinion,
based on our audit, the procedures performed as described above, and the report of the other auditors, the
combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation
to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on
them.

Emphasis of Matter

Implementation of New Accounting Standard

As disclosed in Note 8 of the financial statements, the City implemented GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting
and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions. Our opinion is not modified with
respect to this matter.



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 29, 2019, on
our consideration of the County of Mono California’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
County’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the County’s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

Pruce Puge. f Lompany.

Clovis, California
March 29, 2019
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COUNTY OF MONO

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2018

The management of the County of Mono (County) offers readers of the County’s annual financial report this narrative overview
and analysis of the financial activities of the County for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. It should be read in conjunction
with the transmittal letter at the front of this report and the County’s basic financial statements following this section.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e The County’s net position was $20,925.563 at June 30, 2018 and decreased from the prior year by $16,251,733 (43.71%),
primarily due to the implementation of GASB Statement 75 requiring the reporting of the County’s other postemployment
benefits (OPEB) liability.

o The County's overall assets exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $20,925,563 (net position).
Of this amount, $41,410,563 is invested in Capital Assets net of debt; $24,601,796 is restricted for various programs; and
($45,086,796) is unrestricted for governmental activities. The unrestricted deficit is due to the implementation of GASB
Statement 68 which requires the reporting of the net pension liability and the implementation of GASB Statement 75 which
requires the reporting of the other postemployment benefits liability. Together, these liabilities totaled $68.7 million at June
30, 2018.

e As of June 30, 2018, the County’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $38,235,330, an
increase of $2,987,238, or 8.47%, in comparison with the prior year.

e Atthe end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the governmental type funds was $8,370,850, or 16.02%
of total general government expenditures, a 97.25% increase in unassigned fund balance from last year.

e Total long-term liabilities in the Solid Waste enterprise fund decreased by $278,345 during the fiscal year. Closure/post
closure costs increased by $244,617. The net pension liability is included and decreased by $63,099 from the prior fiscal
year. Advances from other funds and refunded certificates of participation decreased by $440,200 due to payments issued.

e In September 2010 and September 2011, the Board of Supervisors authorized interest free inter-fund loans from General
Reserves to the Solid Waste Enterprise fund totaling $1,950,000 to be repaid over 10 years (final payments due 2021 and
2022). The Solid Waste enterprise fund has been making the payments as scheduled and the balance owing to the General
Fund is now $465,000 and is reflected in Internal Balances.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the County’s basic financial statements. The County’s
basic financial statements are comprised of three components: (1) government-wide financial statements, (2) fund financial
statements, and (3) notes to the basic financial statements. Required supplementary information is included in addition to the
basic financial statements.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the County’s finances,
using accounting methods similar to those of a private-sector business, that is, using the accrual basis of accounting. The
financial statements demonstrate Mono County’s accountability by showing the extent to which it has met operating objectives
efficiently and effectively, using all resources available, and whether it can continue to do so. These statements provide both
long-term and short-term information about the County’s overall financial status.



COUNTY OF MONO

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2018

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the County’s assets, liabilities, and deferred inflows/outflows of
resources, with the difference reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the financial position of the County is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information on expenses and revenues to show how the government’s net position changed
during the fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues are reported as soon as earned and expenses are reported as
soon as incurred even though the related cash flows may not take place until future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and
earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the County that are principally supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion
of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the County include general
government, public protection, public ways and facilities, health and sanitation, public assistance, education and recreation.
The business-type activities include the solid waste program, airport fund, cemetery fund and campground fund. In 2009 two
internal service funds were created to develop self-sustaining funds for operation and replacement of equipment. These two
internal service funds, Motor Pool and Copier Pool, are considered governmental activities. Two more internal service funds
were established at the end of fiscal year 2013, the Tech Refresh and Insurance Pool. These two internal service funds provide
for the regular updating of County computer equipment and the distribution of insurance costs, both liability and workers’
compensation.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide evidence of accountability by demonstrating compliance with budgetary decisions made
in public forum. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that are used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or purposes stipulated by laws, regulations or policies. The funds of the County are divided
into three categories: governmental, proprietary and fiduciary.

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial
statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources
available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing
requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to
compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented, for governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s
near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental funds statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds
and governmental activities.

The County maintains 287 individual funds, including 193 fiduciary funds, organized according to type (governmental, fiduciary,
or proprietary). On the financial statements for governmental funds, information is presented separately for four major funds:
General Fund, the Road Fund, the Realignment Fund, and the Mental Health Services Act Fund. Data from the other non-major
governmental funds are aggregated into a single column. However, data for each of these non-major governmental funds is
provided in the combining statements located in the Other Supplementary Information section of this report.

The County adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund and most special revenue funds. A budgetary
comparison statement has been provided for these funds to demonstrate compliance with this budget.
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Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. The
County maintains two different types of proprietary funds: enterprise funds and internal service funds.

Enterprise funds are included in the government-wide financial statements as business-type. The County uses enterprise funds
to account for its solid waste program, airport, cemetery and campground funds.

Internal service funds are included in the government-wide financial statements under governmental activities as they
predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type functions. These funds are used to accumulate and allocate
costs internally among the County’s various internal functions. The County uses internal service funds to account for its motor
pool, copier pool, insurance pool, and tech refresh pool.

Proprietary fund statements provide separate information for solid waste and airport, major enterprise funds. The non-major
enterprise funds, cemetery and campground are aggregated into a single column. All internal service funds are combined into
a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements. Individual fund data for the non-major enterprise
funds and all of the internal service funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

Fiduciary funds account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the county government such as special districts
and schools. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement because the resources of those funds
are not available to support the County’s programs. In the fiduciary fund category, the County maintains several agencies’
funds. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is similar to that used for proprietary funds.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data
provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report presents certain required supplementary
information (RSI) that includes budgetary comparisons for the General Fund and the major special revenue funds. The schedule
of changes in net pension liability, schedule of the County’s retirement plan contributions, schedule of changes in net OPEB
liability, and schedule of the County's OPEB contributions are also presented as RSI.

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with non-major governmental funds, non-major enterprise funds,
internal service funds, and non-major component units are presented immediately following the required supplementary
information.

Following the combining statements, an unaudited statistical section is presented for the benefit of the readers of the
comprehensive annual financial report. The objectives of the statistical section information are to provide financial statement
users with additional historical perspective, context, and detail to assist in using the information in the financial statements, notes
to the financial statements, and required supplementary information to understand and assess a government's economic
condition.
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial condition. Prior year assets
and liabilities are shown below for the purpose of providing comparative data on a government-wide level.

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Current and other assets $ 48,687,648 $ 48,694,317 $ 7,011,697 $ 6,407,888 $ 55,699,345 $ 55,102,205
Capital assets 35,091,522 35,036,545 6,319,041 6,591,060 41,410,563 41,627,605
Total Assets 83,779,170 83,730,862 13,330,738 12,998,948 97,109,908 96,729,810
Deferred outflows of resources
Deferred pensions 15,768,377 10,588,868 223,588 219,142 15,991,965 10,808,010
Current and other liabilities 2,824,149 2,438,834 644,187 614,746 3,468,336 3,053,580
Long term liabilities 74,863,143 54,102,836 10,803,695 11,056,698 85,666,838 65,159,534
Total Liabilities 77,687,292 56,541,670 11,447,882 11,671,444 89,135,174 68,213,114
Deferred inflows of resources
Deferred pensions 2,997,182 2,109,352 43,954 38,058 3,041,136 2,147,410
Net investment in capital assets 35,091,522 35,036,545 6,319,041 6,591,060 41,410,563 41,627,605
Restricted 24,597,148 20,397,419 4,648 4,648 24,601,796 20,402,067
Unrestricted (40,825,597) (19,765,256) (4,261,199) (5,087,120) (45,086,796)  (24,852,376)
Total Net Position $ 18,863,073 $ 35,668,708 $ 2,062,490 $ 1,508,588 $ 20,925,563 $ 37,177,296

Statement of Activities
The County’s net position was $20,925,563 as of June 30, 2018, a decrease of $16,251,733, or 43.71%, during the fiscal year,
primarily due to the implementation of GASB Statement 75 requiring the reporting of the County’s other postemployment benefits
(OPEB) liability, as described in the following paragraphs.

Investment in capital assets net of related debt reflects the County's investment in capital assets (i.e. its land, structures and
improvements, infrastructure and equipment). The County uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens;
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the County's investment in its capital assets is
reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources,
since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. As of June 30, 2018, the County did not have
any capital related debt.

Restricted net position represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The County’s
restricted net position of $24,601,796 or 117.57% of total net position is comprised of the following resources:
e Road projects — 6.69% of total net position
Health and social services — 44.32% of total net position
County service areas — 7.78% of total net position
Community development — 4.67% of total net position
Grant programs — 36.52% of total net position
Endowment —.02% of total net position

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, restricted net position increased $4,199,729 or 20.58%.

Unrestricted net position (deficit) is ($45,086,796) or (215.46%) of total net position. Most of the deficit is due to financial
reporting for the net pension liability and other postemployment benefits.
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The following table presents the activities that accounted for the changes in net position for governmental and business-type
activities. The Primary Government (Governmental and Business-type activities) had a decrease in net position of $16,,251,733,
or 43.71%, to $20,925,563 for the year ended June 30, 2018.

Statement of Activities

Gowvernmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

Program revenues:
Fees, Fines & Charges for Senices $ 8,041,468 $ 6,816,510 $ 3,134,756 $ 3,064,851 $ 11,176,224 $ 9,881,361
Operating grants 21,850,588 20,243,272 40,000 62,799 21,890,588 20,306,071
Capital grants 647,828 598,587 28,411 464,976 676,239 1,063,563

General revenues:

Property taxes 21,328,513 20,369,909 - - 21,328,513 20,369,909
Sales and use taxes 597,335 585,375 - - 597,335 585,375
Other taxes 3,548,347 3,349,252 - - 3,548,347 3,349,252
Interest/Investment earnings 563,358 300,085 95,128 59,468 658,486 359,553
Total Revenues 56,577,437 52,262,990 3,298,295 3,652,094 59,875,732 55,915,084
Expenses:
General government 12,018,816 10,149,677 - - 12,018,816 10,149,677
Public protection 18,607,098 18,037,087 - - 18,607,098 18,037,087
Public ways and facilities 6,067,474 6,465,642 - - 6,067,474 6,465,642
Health and Sanitation 9,663,773 8,568,557 - - 9,663,773 8,568,557
Public assistance 5,234,293 4,628,204 - - 5,234,293 4,628,204
Education 25,566 41,847 - - 25,566 41,847
Recreation and culture 103,700 104,422 - - 103,700 104,422
Interest and fiscal charges 57,046 182,838 - - 57,046 182,838
Solid Waste Landfill - - 2,308,561 2,490,582 2,308,561 2,490,582
Airport - - 359,609 326,819 359,609 326,819
Campgrounds - - 35,237 32,240 35,237 32,240
Cemeteries - - 15,899 14,828 15,899 14,828
Total Expenses 51,777,766 48,178,274 2,719,306 2,864,469 54,497,072 51,042,743
Change in net position before transfers 4,799,671 4,084,716 578,989 787,625 5,378,660 4,872,341
Transfers 25,087 (13,980) (25,087) 13,980 - -
Change in net position 4,824,758 4,070,736 553,902 801,605 5,378,660 4,872,341
Net position - beginning 35,668,708 29,134,647 1,508,588 706,983 37,177,296 29,841,630
Prior period adjustment (21,630,393) 2,463,325 - - (21,630,393) 2,463,325
Net position - beginning, as restated 14,038,315 31,597,972 1,508,588 706,983 15,546,903 32,304,955
Net position, ending $ 18,863,073 $ 35,668,708 $ 2,062,490 $ 1,508,588 $ 20,925,563 $ 37,177,296

Analysis of Governmental Activities

Governmental Activities increased the County’s net position by $4,799,671 before transfers, an increase of $714,955 over the
prior year, offsetting 29.53% of the County’s total decrease in net position. Business-type activities contributed to the decrease
in net position by $578,989 before transfers, and offsetting 3.56% of the County’s total decrease in net position. The remaining
total decrease in net position is a result from prior period adjustments in the amount of $21,630,393, or 133.10% of the total
decrease in net position. The reduction in net position of $21,630,393 is comprised of the following and mainly attributable to
the implementation of GASB Statement 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than
Pensions (OPEB):

o Reclassification of outstanding balance of long-term notes payable previously reported as accounts payable -
$96,473\

e Remove the prior year net OPEB Asset — ($5,394,695)

e Record the net OPEB Liability — ($19,440,386)

e Record the deferred outflows of resources (OPEB) - $3,108,215
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Revenues: Revenues for the County’s governmental activities had an overall increase from the prior year of $4,314,447, or
8.26%, to $56,577,437. Revenues are divided into two categories: Program Revenues and General Revenues.

Program Revenues includes revenues such as fees, fines, and charges for services as well as operating and capital grants.
Program revenues increased overall by $2,881,515, or 10.42%, from the prior year to $30,539,884. Of the total increase,
$1,224,958 represents Fees, Fines and Charges for Services; $1,607,316 represents Operating Grants, and $49,241 represents
Capital Grants.

General Revenues include property taxes, sales and use taxes, other taxes/revenues, and interest/investment earnings.
General revenues increased by $1,432,932, or 5.82%, from the prior year to $26,037,553. Increases occurred in property tax
receipts and transient occupancy tax as well as higher earnings on investments.

Expenses: Governmental activities had an increase in total expenses of $3,599,492, or 7.47%. Approximately $2.9 million is
the result of increases in salaries and benefits.

Analysis of Business-Type Activities

Business-type activities change in net position before transfers was $578,989 as of June 30, 2018. The change in net position
before transfers offsets 3.55% of the County’s total decrease in net position.

Revenues for the County's Business-Type Activities had a decrease from the prior year of $353,799 before transfers, or
9.69%, to $3,298,295. Expenses decreased over the prior year by $145,163, or 5.07%, to $2,719,306, attributable mainly to a
reduction in expenses in the Solid Waste program.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT’S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with budgetary and legal
requirements.

Governmental funds

The County’s general governmental functions are contained in the General Fund, Special Revenue, Capital Project and Debt
Service Funds. The focus of the County’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and
balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the County’s financing requirements. In particular,
unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of the County’s net resources available for spending at the end of the
fiscal year.

At June 30, 2018, the County’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $38,235,330, an increase of
$2,987,238, or 8.47%, in comparison with the prior year (for more information see Note 9 — Net Position/Fund Balances). The
components of fund balance are as follows:

e Nonspendable fund balance, $2,798,485, consists of amounts that are not spendable in form or are legally or
contractually required to be maintained intact and consists of:

Advances - $564,013

Prepaid expenses - $94,649
Inventories - $340,633

Loans Receivable - $1,799,190

o Restricted fund balance, $23,309,748, consists of amounts with constraints put on their use by externally imposed
creditors, grantors, laws, regulations and enabling legislation and consist of amounts restricted to:
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Road projects - $1,642,730

Health and social services - $10,655,938
County service areas - $1,914,676
Community development - $528,728
Grant programs - $8,567,676

e Committed fund balance, $200,987, consists of amounts that have been committed to specific purposes by the Board
of Supervisors and consists of amounts committed to:

e Revolving Loan Fund - $200,987

e Assigned fund balance, $3,555,260, represents amounts intended for use as determined by the Board of Supervisors
and consists of amounts assigned to:

Eliminate projected FY 18/19 budgetary deficit - $1,522,579
Capital projects - $1,662,165

Debt service - $193,569

Fish enhancement - $47,399

Tourism - $129,548

e Unassigned fund balance, $8,370,850, represents the residual classification for the General Fund and negative
amounts from other governmental funds, if any.

Unassigned fund balance represents approximately 21.89% (an increase over last year) of the total governmental fund balance,
which may be used to meet the County’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. The remainder of fund balance is
reserved to indicate that it is not available for new spending because it: 1) reflects inventories and the amount due from other
funds that are long-term in nature and does not represent spendable resources, 2) liquidates contractual commitments of the
prior period, and 3) provides funds for any type of disaster. In addition, funds may not be available to meet general obligations
because the terms of the revenue/funds may be restricted, committed, or assigned by Board of Supervisors or other prevailing
law.

General Fund

The General Fund is the main operating fund of the County. At June 30, 2018, unassigned fund balance of the general fund
was $8,783,159 while total fund balance reached $13,107,982. As measures of this fund’s liquidity, it is useful to note that
unassigned fund balance represents 26.53% of total fund expenditures, while total fund balance represents 67.01% of that same
amount.

Other Major Governmental Funds

As compared with the prior year, the total fund balances of the remaining governmental funds increased by 15.46%, or
$3,365,216, to $25,127,348, after restatement, with the following significant changes:

e The Realignment Fund had a fund balance of $7,330,030 which was all restricted. This was a $1.15 million increase
over the prior year.

1"



COUNTY OF MONO

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2018

e The Mental Health Services Act Fund had a fund balance of $6,555,157, an increase of $814,436 over the prior year.
The Mental Health Service Act Fund had an increase in fund balance, all restricted, due to an increase in state revenues
received.

e The other major governmental funds unassigned fund balance of negative $412,309 reflects delays in funding
reimbursement for expenditure driven programs once the expenditures have been made. The general fund covers this

deficit while waiting for reimbursement.

Revenues:

Revenues for governmental funds totaled $55,515,378 for fiscal year 2017-18, which represents an increase of 7.67% from

fiscal year 2016-17.

The following table presents the revenues from various sources as well as increases or decreases from the prior year in the

governmental funds.

Revenues Classified by Source - Governmental Funds

Revenue sources FY 2018 FY 2017 Change
Amount % of Total Amount % of Total Amount % of Change
Taxes $ 25,474,195 45.89% $ 24,304,536 47.14% $ 1,169,659 4.81%
Licenses and permits 658,000 1.19% 608,659 1.18% 49,341 8.11%
Fines, forfeitures & penalties 1,275,822 2.30% 958,741 1.86% 317,081 33.07%
Use of money & property 588,642 1.06% 354,810 0.69% 233,832 65.90%
Intergovernmental 22,210,916 40.01% 20,553,809 39.86% 1,657,107 8.06%
Charges for senices 4,737,441 8.53% 4,009,240 7.78% 728,201 18.16%
Other 570,362 1.03% 768,820 1.49% (198,458) -25.81%
Total $ 55,515,378 100% $ 51,558,615 100% $ 3,956,763 7.67%

Taxes — Tax revenues include a multitude of taxes including sales taxes, transient occupancy taxes and property taxes.
Mono County relies on tourism to bring in sales tax and transient occupancy taxes and while those numbers fell dramatically
in past years due to the economic downturn, we have now seen an increase in these types of revenues. Tax revenues in
the governmental funds increased by $1,169,659 or 4.81%, over the prior fiscal year due to the continued gradual recovery
of the real estate market, which in turn increased real estate values and therefore county property tax revenues, and
increased tourism.

Licenses and permits — Licenses and permits had an increase of $49,341, or 8.11% over the prior fiscal year.

Use of money and property — Better interest rates, prudent investing and higher cash balances resulted in higher earnings
for 2017-18, resulting in an increase of $233,832, or 65.9% over the prior fiscal year.

Intergovernmental Revenues — These types of revenues increased by $1,657,107, or 8.06% and are primarily from federal
and state funding sources.

Charges for services — An increase of $728,201, or 18.16%, in these types of revenues can be partly attributed to an
increase in use of services, late penalties and fees on property tax revenue, and general administration service fees.
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Expenditures:
The following table presents expenditures by function compared to prior year's amounts in the governmental funds.

Expenditures Classified by Function - Governmental Funds

FY 2018 FY 2017 Change

Amount % of Total Amount % of Total Amount % of Change

General government $ 11,519,055 22.04% $ 10,663,979 22.74% $ 855,076 8.02%
Public protection 19,205,112 36.75% 17,473,535 37.26% 1,731,577 9.91%
Public ways and facilities 4,780,243 9.15% 4,117,296 8.78% 662,947 16.10%
Health and sanitation 9,586,446 18.34% 8,634,747 18.41% 951,699 11.02%
Public assistance 5,171,201 9.90% 4,791,676 10.22% 379,525 7.92%
Education 25,566 0.05% 41,847 0.09% (16,281) -38.91%
Debt Seniice, Principal 887,853 1.70% 798,573 1.70% 89,280 11.18%
Debt senvice, Interest and other costs 57,570 0.11% 88,791 0.19% (31,221) -35.16%
Capital outlay 1,024,792 1.96% 286,063 0.61% 738,729 258.24%
Total Expenditures $ 52,257,838 100% $ 46,896,507 100% $ 5,361,331 11.43%

e General government — An increase of $855,076, or 8.02%, in expenditures partially resulting from filling vacant positions
as well as salary increases according to negotiated union contracts and benefit increases such as medical and retirement
costs.

e Public protection — This expenditure group had an increase of $1,731,577, or 9.91% and includes increases in salary and
benefits and services and supplies.

e Public ways and facilities — Many road and transportation projects are grant funded. There was a $662,947, or 16.1%,
increase in public ways and facilities expenditures. Nearly all of this increase results from the use of Senate Bill 1, new gas
tax monies, to improve local roads.

e Public assistance — FY 2017-18 saw an 7.92% increase over the prior fiscal year, or $379,525. Public assistance can
fluctuate widely depending upon availability of State and Federal funding and the need in any particular year. While there
are normal salary and benefit increases as in all departments, the bulk of expenditures are reflected in the needs of the
community at any given time and good management practices.

o Debt service — The County refunded the PERS Side fund late in fiscal year 2012. Every year until the refunded PERS
Side fund debt has been repaid there will be a shift between increased principal payments and interest payments.
Principal payments will go up and interest payments will go down.

Proprietary Funds

The County’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial statements, but in
more detail. Enterprise funds include the solid waste program, airport fund, cemetery fund and campground fund. Additionally,
there are four internal service funds that are presented in aggregate: Motor Pool, Copier Pool, Tech Refresh Pool and Insurance
Pool. Factors affecting the financial results of these funds were discussed earlier in the business-type activities of Mono County.

e The total net position of County enterprise funds increased by $553,902 after transfers in the current fiscal year to
$2,062,490. The solid waste enterprise fund increased their net position by $882,118, decreasing their deficit net
position from the prior fiscal year. The airport enterprise fund decreased their net position from the prior fiscal year by
$346,407, primarily due to a reduction in capital contributions received.

e The total net position of internal service funds increased by $1,970,776 from $2,190,495 to $4,161,271 primarily due

to an increase in charges for services that resulted from rate recalculations, which includes a component to fund
replacement of capital assets in the future.
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The Board adopted their initial budget September 12, 2017, after much hard work and public hearings. This initial adopted
budget allowed for revenues of $36,252,033 and expenditures of $41,913,188. The gap was met through prior year fund
balance. A mid-year budget review occurred in February 2018 that resulted in an overall decrease to fund balance in the
General Fund of $127,787. As of June 30, 2018, the final budget for general fund revenues was $36,351,782 and expenditures,
$42,119,146. The overall budget changes throughout the fiscal year for the general fund resulted in an increase of $99,749 in
revenues and an increase in expenditures of $205,958.

CAPITAL ASETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital Assets

The County’s investment in capital assets for its Governmental Activities, as of June 30, 2018, totals $35,091,522 (net of
accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, structures and improvements, equipment,
infrastructure and construction in progress. The total increase in the County’s governmental net investment in capital assets for
the current period was $54,977, or 0.16% (net of accumulated depreciation). Current depreciation for governmental type funds
is $2,289,535. Business-type function assets had a decrease of $272,019, or 4.13%. Business-type activities total $354,019
in current year depreciation and total assets net of depreciation is $6,319,041.

The county both purchases and constructs capital assets throughout the year. When a capital project will be completed in a
subsequent fiscal year, related current year expenditures are recorded as Construction in progress (CIP). In the year of
completion, a project’s CIP is allocated to the appropriate capital asset classification(s). As of June 30, 2018, total CIP increased
by $443,603, consisting of $369,068 in transfers due to project completion and transfers/disposals and $812,671 in CIP additions
due to new projects. More detailed discussion can be found in Note 4 in the Notes to the Financial Statements section in this
report.

Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation)

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Land $ 6,793617 $ 6,793,617 $ 328,423 $ 328,423 $ 7,122,040 $ 7,122,040
Construction in progress 1,895,624 1,452,021 - 1,895,624 1,452,021
Infrastructure 94,921,931 94,283,897 463,141 463,141 95,385,072 94,747,038
Structures & improvements 19,023,057 18,621,557 7,812,944 7,730,944 26,836,001 26,352,501
Equipment 18,742,832 18,026,793 1,532,463 1,532,463 20,275,295 19,559,256
Intangibles 1,148,577 1,148,577 - 1,148,577 1,148,577
Accumulated Depreciation (107,434,116)  (105,289,917) (3,817,930) (3,463,911)  (111,252,046)  (108,753,828)

Total $ 35,091,522 $ 35,036,545 $ 6,319,041 $ 6,591,060 $ 41,410,563 $ 41,627,605

The County elected to report its general infrastructure assets beginning July 1, 2003, and hired a consultant to value the
infrastructure. The County has maintained and updated is initial valuation as necessary to keep current. It is important to note,
assets are valued at their acquisition cost and not as a market value or replacement cost.
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Debt Administration

At June 30, 2018, the County Governmental activities had total long-term liabilities outstanding of $74,863,143:

Long Term Liabilities

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Pension obligation bonds $ 696,600 $ 1,459,500 $ - $ - $ 696,600 $ 1,459,500
Notes payable 271,026 150,229 - 271,026 150,229
Compensated absences 2,941,849 3,042,040 53,869 51,440 2,995,718 3,093,480
Net pension liability 50,886,605 46,661,293 957,935 1,021,034 51,844,540 47,682,327
Net OPEB liability 16,902,308 19,440,386 - 16,902,308 19,440,386
Claims liability 3,164,755 2,940,003 - 3,164,755 2,940,003
Refunded certificates of participation - 1,945,900 2,182,700 1,945,900 2,182,700
Loan payable - - - -
Landfill postlcosure cost - 7,845,991 7,601,374 7,845,991 7,601,374
Total $ 74,863,143 $ 73,693,451 $ 10,803,695 $ 10,856,548 $ 85,666,838 $ 84,549,999

Total governmental long-term liabilities increased by $20,760,307, or 38.37%, during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 largely
in part to adjustments in net pension liability and the implementation of GASB Statement 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB). Claims liability also increased by $224,752, or 7.64%, over the
prior fiscal year.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET

e The County’s Net Position decreased by $16,251,733, after restatements, from 2016-17 to 2017-18.

e The unemployment rate for Mono County annualized for 2017 was 4.4% and for 2018 was 3.9%. The State’s average
unemployment rate as of Dec 2018 was 4.1%. The unemployment rate for Mono County dropped by .5% when compared
to 2017. Mono County’s scenic and recreational attributes help support tourism and recreation which is the major industry
and directly affects the employment rate.

e Property tax values have stabilized and are expected to increase at a moderate pace of about 2 to 4% annually. The
Assessor continues to monitor Prop 8 values and the delinquency rate continues to decrease as properties affected by the
economic downturn are continuing to recover. Total assessed valuations in Mono County increased 4.23% from the 2017
to the 2018 total roll value.

e In2017-18, certain MOU negotiations resulted in salary adjustments (increases), such as pay increases, COLAs and step-
increases, but also included slight increases in employee participation for health benefits. A salary survey was completed
in 2018-19 and the results are being analyzed. A 5% increase in salaries is included in the 2018-19 budget in anticipation
of the survey'’s results.

e For 2018-19, the employer payment of the PERS unfunded liability will increase by $540,651, or 18.62% from the previous
year. The lump sum payment due in 2018-19 for the unfunded liability is $3,443,958.

e For revenue, transient occupancy tax (TOT) again reached an all-time high of over $3.5 million for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2018 due to tourism, a major economic industry in Mono County. The cost of living adjustment for property taxes
effective 1-1-2018 is set at 2% creating cautious optimism for the future.

These factors plus others were considered in preparing the County’s budget for the 2018-19 fiscal year.
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COUNTY OF MONO

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2018

The 2018-19 adopted budget is sufficient to:

Provide core services including public safety, public health, community safety net services, road and infrastructure
repairs and improvements, community and economic development services and governance and administration;

Contribute $50,000 towards the Mono County/Town of Mammoth Lakes shared Recreation position;

Invest in Public Works staff positions to enhance the County’s ability to replace the old, run down hospital building with
a new jail that will provide educational programs to inmates and medical services to both inmates and community
members by leveraging $25 million in in grant funds from the Board of State and Community Corrections;

Utilize State and Federal Construction funds from Senate Bill #1 and other road improvement funds totaling almost
$3 million to execute the 5-year Road Capital Improvement Plan. Current year projects include Eastside Lane and
Hackney Dr. in Antelope Valley, Convict Lake Road, Airport Road, fog seal and stripping on various roads, slurry seal
in Mono City and Benton Crossing Road, and South Landing Road overlay;

Replace the recently retired Community Development Director and add an Assistant Planner to help absorb the
increasing workload from an improving economy and new Cannabis regulations;

Provide $300,000 to continue improvements to the County emergency radio system that is used by law enforcement,
fire departments and emergency medical responders;

Facilitate implementation of the results of the salary survey by appropriating an additional 5% to salaries and
benefits;

Replace the failing, countywide telephone system;
Stock fish during the summer months to enhance the outdoor experience for our tourists and residents;
Provide funding for Senior services at the current level; and

Fund emergency medical services at the current level.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to demonstrate accountability by the Mono County government by providing both a long-term
and near-term views of the County’s finances. Questions or comments regarding any of the information presented in this report
or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to:

Director of Finance
County of Mono
P.O. Box 556
Bridgeport, CA 93517-0556
(760) 932-5490
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COUNTY OF MONO
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2018

ASSETS

Cash and investments
Cash with fiscal agent
Restricted cash
Accounts receivable
Due from other governments
Taxes receivable
Deposits with others
Prepaid expense
Inventories

Loans receivable

Other assets - Other Post Employment Benefits

Internal balances
Capital assets:
Nondepreciable
Depreciable, net
Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred amounts related to pensions
Deferred amounts related to OPEB

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Salaries and benefits payable

Interest payable

Deposits from others

Unearned revenue

Long-term liabilities:
Portion due or payable within one year
Portion due or payable after one year

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred amounts related to pensions
Deferred amounts related to OPEB

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

Primary Government
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Totals

$ 35549309 $ 3,352,999 $ 38,902,308
45,413 45,413
3,433,881 3,433,881
448,683 222,534 671,217
5,175,146 171 5,175,317
996,208 996,208
3,773,417 3,773,417
94,649 - 94,649
340,633 2,112 342,745
1,799,190 - 1,799,190

465,000 (465,000)
8,689,240 328,423 9,017,663
26,402,282 5,990,618 32,392,900
83,779,170 12,865,738 96,644,908
13,066,336 223,588 13,289,924
2,702,041 - 2,702,041
15,768,377 223,588 15,991,965
1,622,676 138,533 1,761,209
1,141,999 26,741 1,168,740
4,801 13,913 18,714
800 - 800
53,873 53,873
5,165,144 295,342 5,460,486
69,697,999 10,508,353 80,206,352
77,687,292 10,982,882 88,670,174
2,269,962 43,954 2,313,916
727,220 - 727,220
2,997,182 43,954 3,041,136
35,091,522 6,319,041 41,410,563
24,597,148 4,648 24,601,796
(40,825,597) (4,261,199) (45,086,796)
$ 18863073 $ 2,062,490 $ 20,925,563

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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COUNTY OF MONO
Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

FUNCTION / PROGRAM ACTIVITIES
Primary Government
Governmental Activities:
General government
Public protection
Public ways and facilities
Health and sanitation
Public assistance
Education
Recreation and culture
Interest on long-term debt
Total Governmental Activities

Business-Type Activities
Solid Waste
Airport
Campgrounds
Cemeteries
Total Business-type Activities

Total Primary Government

Program Revenues

Fees, Fines and Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions

$ 12,018,816 $ 3486850 $ 385235 § -

18,607,098 1,636,585 5,412,928 71,752

6,067,474 558,351 3,615,260 432,525

9,663,773 2,020,388 7,014,694 -

5,234,293 339,294 5,420,045 143,551

25,566 - 2,426 -
103,700 -

57,046 - - -

51,777,766 8,041,468 21,850,588 647,828

2,308,561 3,079,007 20,000 -

359,609 7,954 20,000 28,411

35,237 42,339 - -

15,899 5,456 - -

2,719,306 3,134,756 40,000 28,411

$ 54497072 $ 11176224 $ 21890588 $ 676,239

GENERAL REVENUES AND TRANSFERS

Taxes:
Property

Sales and use

Transient occupancy
Unrestricted investment earnings

Transfers

Total General Revenues

CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Net Position - Beginning of Year, restated

NET POSITION, END OF YEAR

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Position

Primary Government

Business-
Governmental Type
Activities Activities Total
FUNCTION / PROGRAM ACTIVITIES
Primary Government
Governmental Activities:
$ (8,146,731) $ - $ (8,146,731) General government
(11,485,833) (11,485,833) Public protection
(1,461,338) - (1,461,338) Public ways and facilities
(628,691) - (628,691) Health and sanitation
668,597 - 668,597 Public assistance
(23,140) - (23,140) Education
(103,700) - (103,700) Recreation and culture
(57,046) - (57,046) Interest on long-term debt
(21,237,882) - (21,237,882) Total Governmental Activities
Business-Type Activities
790,446 790,446 Solid Waste
(303,244) (303,244) Airport
7,102 7,102 Campgrounds
(10,443) (10,443) Cemeteries
483,861 483,861 Total Business-type Activities
(21,237,882) 483,861 (20,754,021) Total Primary Government
GENERAL REVENUES AND TRANSFERS
Taxes:
21,328,513 - 21,328,513 Property
597,335 - 597,335 Sales and use
3,548,347 - 3,548,347 Transient occupancy
563,358 95,128 658,486  Unrestricted investment earnings
25,087 (25,087) - Transfers
26,062,640 70,041 26,132,681 Total General Revenues
4,824,758 553,902 5,378,660  CHANGES IN NET POSITION
14,038,315 1,508,588 15,546,903  Net Position - Beginning of Year, restated

$ 18863073 $ 2062490 $ 20925563  NET POSITION, END OF YEAR

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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COUNTY OF MONO

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2018

ASSETS

Cash and investments
Accounts receivable

Due from other governments
Taxes receivable

Due from other funds
Advances to other funds
Prepaid expenses
Inventories

Loans receivable

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Salaries and benefits payable
Due to other funds
Advances from other funds
Deposits from others
Unearned revenues

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Unavailable revenues

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned
Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows
of Resources and Fund Balances

Mental Health

General Realignment Services Act
$ 10,060,681 $ 1244265 $ 6,821,376 $ 6,390,819
299,698 -
2,452,455 203,253
996,208 -
131,326
564,013
68,665
1,266
887,327
$ 15461639 $ 2134332 $ 7335286 $ 6,594,072
$ 613,850 $ 8,028
832,999 30,887
800 -
10,300 -
1,457,949 38,915
895,708
1,521,271 -
6,555,157
2,803,552
8,783,159 -
13,107,982 6,555,157
$ 15461639 $ 2134332 $ 7335286 $ 6,594,072

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Other

Governmental Total
ASSETS
$ 9,197,308 $ 33,714,449 Cash and investments
143,715 448,629 Accounts receivable
1,460,044 5,175,146 Due from other governments
996,208 Taxes receivable
149,909 281,235 Due from other funds
- 564,013 Advances to other funds
25,984 94,649 Prepaid expenses
340,633 Inventories
911,863 1,799,190 Loans receivable
$ 11,888,823 $ 43,414,152 Total Assets
LIABILITIES
$ 884,303 $ 1,587,642 Accounts payable
196,141 1,130,801 Salaries and benefits payable
281,235 281,235 Due to other funds
99,013 99,013 Advances from other funds
- 800 Deposits from others
43,573 53,873 Unearned revenues
1,504,265 3,153,364 Total Liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
1,124,494 2,025,458  Unavailable revenues
FUND BALANCES
937,847 2,798,485 Nonspendable
7,781,831 23,309,748 Restricted
200,987 200,987 Committed
751,708 3,555,260 Assigned
(412,309) 8,370,850 Unassigned
9,260,064 38,235,330 Total Fund Balances
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows
$ 11,888,823 $ 43,414,152 of Resources and Fund Balances

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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COUNTY OF MONO

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position
Governmental Funds and Activities
June 30, 2018

Fund balance - total governmental funds $ 38,235,330

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different
because:

Certain amounts are not available to pay for current period expenditures and, therefore,
are not reported in the governmental funds.

Deferred outflow amounts related to pensions 13,035,777
Deferred outflow amounts related to OPEB 2,702,041
Deferred inflow amounts related to pensions (2,269,962)
Deferred inflow amounts related to OPEB (721,213)

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore,
are not reported in the governmental funds 33,266,633

Unavailable revenues represent amounts that are not available to fund current
expenditures and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds. 2,025,458

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the cost of motor pool, copier

pool, insurance and other activities to individual funds. The assets, deferred outflows,

liabilities and deferred inflows of the internal service funds are included in governmental

activities in the statement of net position. 4,161,271

Long-term liabilities, including capital leases, are not due and payable in the current
period, and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds.

Bonds payable (696,600)
Loans payable (271,026)
Compensated absences (2,941,849)
Net pension liability (50,755,678)
Net OPEB liability (16,902,308)
Interest payable (4,801)
Net position of governmental activities $ 18,863,073

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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COUNTY OF MONO

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

REVENUES
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Fines, forfeitures and penalties
Use of money and property
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Other revenues
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government
Public protection
Public ways and facilities
Health and sanitation
Public assistance
Education
Debt service:
Principal
Interest and other related costs
Capital outlay
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from issuance of debt
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Transfers in

Transfers out

Total Other Financing Sources and (Uses)

NET CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
Fund Balances, Beginning of Year, restated

FUND BALANCE, END OF THE YEAR

Mental Health

General Road Realignment Services Act
$ 25245348 $ - 3 $
340,140 14,266
1,069,705 68,870 - -
294,989 11,181 96,833 88,013
3,515,808 3,092,334 3,536,647 1,819,686
3,404,115 474,465 - -
28,383 167 - -
33,898,488 3,661,283 3,633,480 1,907,699
11,329,341 -
17,548,604 - 7,722
- 4,101,159 - -
4,011,176 - 1,093,263
172,746 -
25,566
21,169
2,800
33,111,402 4,101,159 7,122 1,093,263
787,086 (439,876) 3,625,758 814,436
224,000
1,558,679 1,019,418 -
(2,947,743) - (2,474,705)
(1,165,064) 1,019,418 (2,474,705)
(377,978) 579,542 1,151,053 814,436
13,485,960 1,402,555 6,178,977 5,740,721
$ 13,107,982 $ 1,982,097 $ 7,330,030 $ 6,555,157

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Other

Governmental Total
REVENUES
$ 228,847 $ 25,474,195 Taxes
303,594 658,000 Licenses and permits
137,247 1,275,822 Fines, forfeitures and penalties
97,626 588,642 Use of money and property
10,246,441 22,210,916 Intergovernmental
858,861 4,737,441 Charges for services
541,812 570,362 Other revenues
12,414,428 55,515,378 Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES
Current:
189,714 11,519,055 General government
1,648,786 19,205,112 Public protection
679,084 4,780,243 Public ways and facilities
4,482,007 9,586,446 Health and sanitation
4,998,455 5,171,201 Public assistance
- 25,566 Education
Debt service:
866,684 887,853 Principal
54,770 57,570 Interest and other related costs
1,024,792 1,024,792 Capital outlay
13,944,292 52,257,838 Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(1,529,864) 3,257,540 (Under) Expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
21,750 245,750 Proceeds from issuance of debt
13,775 13,775 Proceeds from sale of capital assets
3,785,984 6,364,081 Transfers in
(1,471,460) (6,893,908) Transfers out
Total Other Financing Sources and
2,350,049 (270,302) (Uses)
820,185 2,987,238 NET CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
8,439,879 35,248,092 Fund Balances, Beginning of Year, restated

$ 9,260,064 $ 38235330 FUND BALANCE, END OF THE YEAR

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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COUNTY OF MONO

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities
Governmental Funds and Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Net change to fund balances - total governmental funds
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different
because:
Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense.
Expenditures for general capital assets, infrastructure, and other related capital
Less: current year depreciation

1,648,813
(2,152,330)

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are
not reported as revenues in the governmental funds (unavailable revenues). In the
statement of activities, revenues have been reduced by the amounts that were
unavailable at the beginning of the year and increased by the amounts that were
unavailable at the end of the year.

Pension contributions made subsequent to the measurement date is an expenditure in
the governmental funds, but reported as a deferred outflow of resources in the statement
of net position.

Long-term debt proceeds provide current resources to governmental funds, but issuing
debt increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net position. Repayment of debt
principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-
term liabilities in the statement of net position.

Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt

Principal repayments

(245,750)
887,853

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the governmental
funds.

Change in compensated absences

Change in accrued interest

100,191
524

Changes to the net OPEB liability and OPEB related deferred outflows or inflows of
resources do not provide or require the use of current financial resources and therefore
are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

Changes to the net pension liability and pension related deferred outflows or inflows of
resources do not provide or require the use of current financial resources and therefore
are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities to
individual funds. The net revenue (expense) of the internal service funds activities is
reported with governmental activities.

Change in net position of governmental activities

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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COUNTY OF MONO

Statement of Fund Net Position
Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2018

ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash and investments
Cash with fiscal agent
Accounts receivable
Due from other governments
Deposits with others
Inventory

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:
Restricted cash in Treasury
Capital assets:
Non-depreciable
Depreciable, net
Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
Deferred amounts related to pensions

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Salaries and benefits payable
Interest payable
Advances from other funds
Refunded certificates of participation
Compensated absences
Claims liability
Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Advances from other funds
Refunded certificates of participation
Compensated absences
Closure and post closure liability
Net pension liability
Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS
Deferred amounts related to pensions

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

Governmental
Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds Activities
Nonmajor Total Internal
Solid Enterprise Enterprise Service
Waste Airport Funds Funds Funds

$ 3122036 $ 119630 $ 111333 $ 3352999 $ 1,834,860

- - - - 45,413

222,534 222,534 54

171 171 -

- - - 3,773,417

- 2,112 - 2,112 -

3,344,741 121,742 111,333 3,577,816 5,653,744
3,433,881 3,433,881

52,800 275,623 328,423 -

843,453 5,147,165 5,990,618 1,824,889

4,330,134 5,422,788 9,752,922 1,824,889

7,674,875 5,544,530 111,333 13,330,738 7,478,633

223,588 223,588 30,559

134,950 1,081 2,502 138,533 35,034

26,741 - - 26,741 11,198

13,913 13,913 -
195,000 195,000
245,200 245,200

50,142 50,142 -

- - - - 3,164,755

665,946 1,081 2,502 669,529 3,210,987
270,000 270,000
1,700,700 1,700,700
3,727 3,727

7,845,991 7,845,991 -

957,935 957,935 130,927

10,778,353 - 10,778,353 130,927

11,444,299 1,081 2,502 11,447,882 3,341,914

43,954 43,954 6,007

896,253 5,422,788 6,319,041 1,266,395

- - 4,648 4,648 -

(4,486,043) 120,661 104,183 (4,261,199) 2,894,876

$ (3589,790) $ 5543449 $ 108831 $ 2062490 $ 4161271

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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COUNTY OF MONO

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services
Total Operation Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries and benefits

Services and supplies

Closure and post closure costs

Depreciation and amortization
Total Operating Expenses

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest income
Interest expense
Operating grants
Miscellaneous
Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets
Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)

Income (Loss) Before Capital Contributions
and Transfers

Capital contributions
Transfers in

Transfers out

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

Net Position, Beginning of Year

NET POSITION, END OF YEAR

Governmental
Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds Activities

Nonmajor Total Internal

Solid Enterprise Enterprise Service

Waste Airport Funds Funds Funds
$ 3063176 $ 6,754 $ 47,795  $ 3,117,725 $ 4,464,672
3,063,176 6,754 47,795 3,117,725 4,464,672
774,217 - - 774,217 197,059
1,164,867 38,505 51,136 1,254,508 2,568,795
244,617 - - 244,617 -
32,915 321,104 - 354,019 437,205
2,216,616 359,609 51,136 2,627,361 3,203,059
846,560 (352,855) (3,341) 490,364 1,261,613
91,672 3,124 1,532 96,328 20,558
(91,945) - - (91,945) -
20,000 20,000 - 40,000 -
15,831 - - 15,831 82,282
- - - - 51,409
35,558 23,124 1,532 60,214 154,249
882,118 (329,731) (1,809) 550,578 1,415,862
- 28,411 - 28,411 -
- - 20,000 20,000 554,914
(45,087) - (45,087) :
882,118 (346,407) 18,191 553,902 1,970,776
(4,471,908) 5,889,856 90,640 1,508,588 2,190,495

$ (3589,790) $ 5543449 $ 108,831 $ 2,062490 $ 4,161,271

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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COUNTY OF MONO

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash receipts from customers
Cash receipts from internal fund services provided
Cash paid to employees for services
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Payment on advances from other funds

Miscellaneous receipts

Operating grants

Net transfers from (to) other funds

Repayment of debt not attributable to capital purposes

Interest paid
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital Financing
Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING

ACTIVITIES
Capital grants
Payments related to the acquisition of capital assets
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related
Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year

Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents
to the Statement of Fund Net Position

Cash and investments

Cash with fiscal agent

Restricted cash in Treasury

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

Governmental

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds Activities

Nonmajor Total Internal

Solid Enterprise Enterprise Service
Waste Airport Funds Funds Funds
$ 3172753  § 6,754 $ 51,829 $ 3231336 $ -
- - - - 4,465,618
(819,360) - - (819,360) (347,637)
(1,139,949) (51,565) (51,087) (1,242,601) (2,950,123)
1,213,444 (44,811) 742 1,169,375 1,167,858
(195,000) - - (195,000) -
15,831 - - 15,831 82,282
20,000 20,000 - 40,000 -
- (16,676) 20,000 3,324 554,914

(236,800) - - (236,800) -

(93,638) - - (93,638)

(489,607) 3,324 20,000 (466,283) 637,196
(82,000) - - (82,000) (995,755)
- - - 51,464
(82,000) - - (82,000) (944,291)
91,672 3,124 1,532 96,328 20,559
91,672 3,124 1,532 96,328 20,559
733,509 (38,363) 22,274 717,420 881,322
5,822,408 157,993 89,059 6,069,460 998,951
$ 6555917 § 119,630 $ 111333 $ 6,786,880 $ 1,880,273
$ 312203 $ 119630 $ 111333 $ 3352999 $ 1,834,860
- - - - 45,413
3,433,881 - - 3,433,881 -
$ 6555917 § 119,630 $ 111333 $ 6,786,880 $ 1,880,273

continued

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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COUNTY OF MONO

Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss)
to Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities
Operating income (l0ss)
Adjustment to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided
(used) by operating activities
Depreciation
Changes in assets and liabilities
Receivables
Deposits with others
Deferred outflows
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries and benefits
Claims liability
Closure and postclosure liability
Liability for compensated absences
Net pension liability
Deferred inflows
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Governmental
Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds Activities
Nonmajor Total Internal
Solid Enterprise Enterprise Service
Waste Airport Funds Funds Funds
$ 846560 $  (352,855) $ (3341) $ 490,364 $ 1,261,613
32,915 321,104 354,019 437,205
109,577 4,034 113,611 946
- - - (574,380)
(4,446) - - (4,446) 37,925
24,918 (13,060) 49 11,907 (31,700)
14,077 - 14,077 5,542
- - 224,752
244,617 244,617 -
2,429 2,429 -
(63,099) (63,099) (188,158)
5,896 - - 5,896 (5,887)
$ 1213444 § (44811 $ 742 $ 1169375 $ 1,167,858

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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COUNTY OF MONO

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2018

ASSETS
Pooled Cash and investments

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Agency funds held for others

Total Liabilities

NET POSITION
Net position held in trust for investment pool participants

Total Net Position

Investment
Trust Agency
$ 43603090 $ 6,277,636
43,603,090 6,277,636
6,277,636
6,277,636
43,603,090
$ 43603090 $

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

36



COUNTY OF MONO

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position

Fiduciary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

ADDITIONS
Contributions
Investment income

Total Additions

DEDUCTIONS
Distributions

Total Deductions
CHANGE IN NET POSITION
Net Position, Beginning of Year

NET POSITION, END OF THE YEAR

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Investment
Trust

$ 75,501,900
660,413

76,162,313

73,654,858

73,654,858

2,507,455

41,095,635

$ 43,603,090
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The notes provided in the financial section of this report are considered an integral and essential part of adequate
disclosure and fair presentation of this report. The notes include a Summary of Significant Accounting Policies for the
County and other necessary disclosure of pertinent matters relating to the financial position of the County. The notes
provide significant insight to the financial statements and are conjunctive to understanding the rational for presentation
of the financial statement and information contained in this document.
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COUNTY OF MONO

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

NOTE1l: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of the County of Mono (the County) conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America as applicable to governmental entities. The more significant of the County’s accounting
policies are described below.

A. The Reporting Entity

The County is a legal subdivision of the State of California whereby it can exercise the powers specified by the
constitution and statutes of the State of California. The County operates under an Administrator-Board of Supervisors
form of government with legislative and executive control held by an elected five-member Board of Supervisors. Major
services provided by the County to its citizens include public protection, public ways and facilities, health and sanitation,
public assistance, education, culture and recreation, and general services. In addition, the County administers various
special districts governed by the Board and provides services to other special districts governed by independent local
boards. These special districts are located within the boundaries of the County and were established under various
sections of the California Government Code. The County provides fiscal agent and accounting services to many of
these districts.

These financial statements present the County (the primary government) and its component units, entities for which
the government considers itself financially accountable. Reporting for component units on the County’s financial
statements is either blended or discretely presented. Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are
in substance, part of the government’s operations because the County's Board generally is their governing body.
Discretely presented component units are reported in a separate column in the government-wide financial statements
to emphasize they are legally separate from the County. Each component unit has a June 30% year end.

Blended Component Units

There are four entities which meet the criteria of a blended component unit. These dependent entities are Community
Service Districts whose Advisory Boards are governed by the Board of Supervisors. The affected districts are
Community Service Area #1 — Crowley; Community Service Area #5 — Bridgeport; and Community Service Area #2 —
Benton. The County of Mono Economic Development Corporation is also a blended component unit. The governing
body of the Corporation is the County’s governing body. The Corporation was formed to assist with financing public
improvements of the County.

Discretely Presented Component Units

There are no entities which meet the criteria of a discretely presented component unit.
B. Basis of Presentation
Government-Wide Financial Statements

The statement of net position and statement of activities display information about the primary government (the County)
and its component units. These statements include the financial activities of the overall government, except for fiduciary
activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting of internal activities. These statements
distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the County. Governmental activities, which
normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type
activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees charged to external parties.
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The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each segment
of the business-type activities of the County and for each function of the County’s governmental activities. Direct
expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to
a particular function. Program revenues include 1) charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the
programs and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a
particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented instead
as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide information about the County’s funds, including fiduciary funds and blended
component units. Separate statements for each fund category — governmental, proprietary and fiduciary — are
presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed
in a separate column. All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are separately aggregated and reported as
nonmajor funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for goods or services are provided by the fund as part of its
principal activity and result from exchange transactions. Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives
and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies and investment earnings, result from
nonexchange transactions or ancillary activities. Operating expenses include the costs of providing services and
delivering goods. All other expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating expenses.

The County reports the following major governmental funds:

o The General Fund is the County’s primary operating fund and is used to account for all revenues and expenditures
necessary to carry out hasic governmental activities of the County that are not accounted for through other funds.
For the County, the General Fund includes such activities as public protection, public ways and facilities, health
and sanitation, public assistance, education, recreation and cultural services and general administration.

e The Road Fund provides for maintenance and construction of roadways. Revenues consist primarily of the
County’s share of state highway users tax supplemented by federal and state funds.

e The Realignment Fund accounts for State realigned revenues generated from sales taxes and vehicle license
fees that are restricted to expenditure for specific social, health, mental health and public safety programs..

e The Mental Health Services Act Fund accounts for Proposition 63 funding passed in 2004 to expand and further
develop mental health services in the County. It uses state funding to provide services such as wellness center
programs, school programs, community garden projects and community social events.

The County reports the following major enterprise funds:

o The Solid Waste Fund accounts for revenues and expenses incurred in providing waste collection services at
transfer stations throughout the County and waste disposal services at three County landfills. Operations includes
the permitting, monitoring and maintenance of the County’s three active landfills, as well as three closed landfills,
and implementation of recycling programs throughout the County in an effort to maintain and enhance diversion
efforts.
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e The Airport Fund accounts for the operation and maintenance of the County’s two airports that include Bryant
Field and Lee Vining Airport. Airport operations include applying for and administering grants to complete Airport
Capital Improvement Programs and administration of leases and sub-leases on airport property.

The County reports the following additional fund types:

¢ Internal Service Funds account for financing of goods or services provided by one department to other County
departments on a cost reimbursement basis. Activities include the County’s copier pool which purchases and
maintains copy machines, technology refresh pool which accounts for the replacement of county desktop
computers, laptops, servers, certain licensing of installed software applications, and other technology items, self-
insurance programs, and the County’s motor pool which purchases and maintains vehicles. Department user fees
include a capital replacement charge, if applicable, to provide financing for replacing internally utilized assets at
the end of their respective useful lives.

o The Investment Trust Fund accounts for the assets of legally separate entities, which invest in the County
Treasurer’'s investment pool. These entities include school districts, other special districts governed by local
boards, regional boards and authorities and pass through funds for tax collections for the County’s one
incorporated town. These funds represent the assets, primarily cash and investments, and the related liability of
the County to disburse these monies on demand.

e Agency Funds account for assets held by the County as an agent for various individuals or other local
governments. These funds are custodial in nature and do not involve measurement of results or operations. Such
funds have no equity accounts since all assets are due to individuals or entities at some future time.

C. Basis of Accounting

The government-wide, proprietary and investment trust fund financial statements are reported using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place.
Nonexchange transactions, in which the County gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal
value in exchange, include property and sales taxes, grants, entitlements and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue
from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenues from sales taxes are
recognized when the underlying transactions take place. Revenues from grants, entitlements and donations are
recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligible requirements have been satisfied.

Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual
basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available. Property and sales
taxes, interest, certain state and federal grants and charges for services are accrued when their receipt occurs within
sixty days after the end of the accounting period so as to be measurable and available. Licenses, permits, fines,
forfeitures, and other revenues are recorded as revenues when received in cash because they are generally not
measurable until actually received. Expenditures are generally recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual
accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims
and judgments are recorded only when payment is due. General capital assets acquisitions are reported as
expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and capital leases are reported as other
financing sources.

Agency funds apply the accrual basis of accounting but do not have a measurement focus.
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D. Cash and Investments

The County follows the practice of pooling cash and investments of all funds with the County Treasurer except for cash
and investments managed by fiscal agents under separate agreements. Interest earned on bank balances and
investments is allocated to the various funds on a quarterly basis using each fund's average daily cash balances for
those funds entitled to receive interest with all remaining interest deposited in the County’s General Fund.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and External
Investment Pools” and GASB Statement No. 72, “Fair Value Measurement and Application”, investments generally are
stated at fair value in the statement of net position and balance sheet and the corresponding changes in the fair value
of investments are recognized as investment earnings in the year in which the change occurred. The fair value of
investments is determined annually.

The County Treasurer's Pool values participants’ shares on an amortized cost basis meaning the Pool distributes
income to participants based on their relative participation during the period. Actual daily activity is transacted on a
dollar-for-dollar basis and only a withdrawal from the pool of a size that jeopardizes pool participants would result in a
withdrawal at fair value. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the County has not provided or obtained any
legally binding guarantees to support the value of pool shares.

The investment pool includes both voluntary and involuntary participation from external entities. The State of California
statutes require certain special districts and other governmental entities to maintain their cash surplus with the County
Treasurer.

For purpose of the statement of cash flows, the proprietary funds consider all highly liquid investments (including
restricted assets) with a maturity of three months or less and pooled cash and investments to be cash equivalents.

E. Restricted Cash and Investments

Restricted assets in the enterprise funds represent cash and investments held to finance closure and postclosure costs
as required by state and federal laws and regulations.

F. Inventory

Inventories consist of materials and supplies held for consumption and are valued at cost. Inventory consists of
expendable supplies held for consumption. The cost is recorded as expenditures at the time individual inventory items
are consumed. Inventories in the governmental funds are equally offset by a corresponding nonspendable fund balance
amount, which indicates that inventories do not represent expendable available resources.

G. Receivables, Unavailable Revenue and Unearned Revenue

The County uses a 60-day time period for recognizing accruals in the governmental funds. Receivables are reported
net of uncollectible amounts. Total uncollectible amounts are related to delinquent property taxes in the amount of
$52,723 and is recorded in the General Fund. Governmental funds report unavailable revenue in connection with these
receivables not considered available within the 60-day period. Governmental and enterprise funds report unearned
revenue in connection with resources received, but eligibility requirements have not been satisfied.

Certain grant revenues are recognized when specific related expenditures have been incurred. In other grant programs,
monies are virtually unrestricted as to purpose of expenditure and are only revocable for failure to comply with
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prescribed compliance requirements. These revenues are recognized at the time of receipt, or earlier if susceptible to
accrual criteria is met. Cash received prior to incurrence of the related expenditure is recorded as unearned revenue.

H. Notes Receivable

The notes receivable balances in the General Fund and the Housing Fund balance sheet consist of loans made with
funds provided to the County under the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development programs, primarily the
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and Home Investment Partnerships Program (HOME). The loans are
made to carry out activities for affordable housing and are reported at the outstanding principle balance.

Generally, notes are deferred with all principal and interest due on the earlier of the due date of the note or sale or
transfer of the property. Any repayment of principal or interest applicable to the CDBG and HOME programs is treated
as program revenue. A loan committee approves the loans and deferral of payments.

I.  Prepaid Expenses/ltems and Deposits

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid
expenses in both the government-wide and fund financial statements. Payments made in advance of the receipt of
goods or property is recorded as deposits. The cost of prepaid expense is recorded an expense when consumed
rather than when purchased. Prepaid expenses and deposits in the governmental fund financial statements are equally
offset by a corresponding nonspendable fund balance amount, which indicates that prepaid expenses and deposits do
not represent expendable available resources.

J. Capital Assets

Capital assets include land, land improvements, buildings and improvements, machinery and equipment, infrastructure
(e.g. roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), and intangible assets (e.g. land easements and computer software).
Assets that are purchased or constructed are reported at historical costs or at estimated historical cost is actual cost is
not available. Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated acquisition value on the date of donation.

Normal maintenance and repairs are charged to operations when incurred. Betterments and major improvements that
significantly increase values, change capacities or extend useful lives are capitalized. Upon sale or retirement of capital
assets, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective accounts and any resulting
gain or loss is included in the results of operations.

Capital outlays are recorded as expenditures in the governmental funds and as additions to capital assets in the
proprietary and the government-wide financial statements, in accordance with the County’s capitalization policy. The
County defines capital assets as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life
in excess of one year. Capital assets used in operations are depreciated or amortized (assets under capital leases) in
the government-wide statements and proprietary funds using the straight-line method over the lesser of the capital
lease period or their estimated useful lives.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Infrastructure 20 to 50 years
Structures and improvements 20 to 50 years
Equipment 3to 15 years
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The County has four networks of infrastructure assets — roads, lighting, drainage, and flood control.

K. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

The County recognizes deferred outflows and inflows of resources. A deferred outflow of resources is defined as a
consumption of net position that is applicable to a future reporting period. A deferred inflow of resources is defined as
an acquisition of net position that is applicable to a future reporting period. The County has recorded deferred outflows
and inflows or resources related to pensions and other postemployment benefits (OPEB), which are discussed in more
detail in footnotes 7 and 8, respectively.

L. Net Position/Fund Balance

The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements utilize a net position presentation. Net position is
categorized as follows:

o Net Investment in Capital Assets — This category groups all capital assets, including infrastructure, into one
component of net position. Accumulated depreciation and the outstanding balances of debt that are attributable to
the acquisition, construction or improvement of these assets reduce the balance in this category.

o Restricted Net Position — This category presents external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors
or laws or regulations of other governments and restrictions imposed by law through constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation.

e Unrestricted Net Position — This category represents net position of the County, not restricted for any project or
other purpose.

When both restricted and unrestricted net position are available, the County considers restricted net position to have
been depleted before unrestricted net position is applied.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report fund balance in the following categories based primarily on
the extent to which the county is bound to honor constraints on how specific amounts can be spent:

o Nonspendable fund balance — Amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not in spendable form or are
legally or contractually required to remain intact.

e Restricted fund balance — Amounts with constraints placed on their use that are externally imposed by creditors,
grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations of other governments. Constraints may also be imposed by law
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

e Committed fund balance — Amounts that can only be used for specific purposes determined by formal action of
the Board of Supervisors and that remain binding unless removed in the same manner. The underlying action that
imposed the limitation needs to occur prior to the end of the reporting period. The amount subject to the constraint
may be determined in the subsequent period.

o Assigned fund balance — Amounts that are constrained by the County’s intent to use resources for specific
purposes. Intent can be expressed by the Board of Supervisors or by an official or body designated for that
purpose. This is also the classification for residual fund balance in all governmental funds other than the General
Fund.
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o Unassigned fund balance — The residual classification for the County’s General Fund that includes all amounts
not contained in the other classifications. In other funds, the unassigned classification is used only if the
expenditures incurred for specific purposes exceed the amounts restricted, committed or assigned to those
purposes (i.e., deficit fund balance).

The Board of Supervisors establishes, modifies or rescinds fund balance commitments by passage of a resolution or
an ordinance, each resulting in equally binding constraints.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the County’s policy to use restricted
resources first, followed by the committed, assigned and unassigned resources as they are needed.

M. Property Tax Revenue

Property taxes, including tax rates, are regulated by the State and are administered locally by the County. The County
is responsible for assessing, collecting and distributing property taxes in accordance with state law. The County’s
property taxes are levied on July 1 (unsecured roll) and October 1 (secured roll) on assessed values established on
the lien date of the previous January 1 for all taxable property located within the County. Taxes are due in one
installment (unsecured roll) by July 1 and are subject to late payment penalties if paid after August 31, or two
installments (secured roll) due November 1 and February 1, and again subject to late payment penalties if paid after
December 10 and April 10, respectively. Additionally, supplemental property taxes are levied on a pro rata basis when
changes in assessed valuation occur due to sales transactions or the completion of construction.

All general property taxes are allocated to the various taxing entities per the legislation implementing Article Xl of the
California Constitution (commonly referred to as Proposition 13). Property is reappraised from the 1975-76 base year
value to current full value upon either (1) a change in ownership or (2) new construction, as of the date of such
transaction or completion of construction (only the newly constructed portion of the property is reappraised). General
property taxes are based on a flat one percent rate applied to the property’s assessed value. Absence the change in
valuation described above, taxable values on properties can rise at a maximum rate of two percent per year. The
method of allocation used by the County is subject to review by the State of California. The County recognizes property
tax revenues in the period for which the taxes are levied subject to the availability criteria in the governmental funds
financial statements.

N. Interfund Transactions

Interfund transactions are reflected as either loans, services provided, reimbursements or transfers. Loans are reported
as receivables and payables as appropriate, are subject to elimination upon consolidation and are referred to as either
“due to/from other funds” (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e., the
noncurrent portion of interfund loans). Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and the
business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances”. Advances
between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a nonspendable fund balance amount in the
applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not available for appropriation and are not available financial
resources.

Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated as revenues and expenditures/expenses.
Reimbursements are when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate benefiting fund and reduces its related cost
as a reimbursement. All other interfund transactions are treated as transfers. Transfers between governmental or
proprietary funds are netted as part of the reconciliation to the government-wide presentation.
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0. Compensated Absences

Under the terms of union contracts, the County grants employees vacation and sick leave in varying amounts
depending upon their respective bargaining unit. Vacation pay is subject to certain maximum accumulations and is
payable upon termination. Sick leave may be accumulated without limitation and is payable upon termination at varying
amounts depending on bargaining unit and length of service.

Because vacation, sick leave and other compensated absence balances do not require the use of current financial
resources, no liability is recorded within the governmental funds. However, this liability is reflected in the government-
wide statement of net position. In proprietary funds, the liability for compensated absences is recorded in the period
that the benefits accrue to employees.

P. Pensions

In the government-wide financial statements, pensions are recognized and disclosed using the accrual basis of
accounting regardless of the amount recognized as pension expenditures on the modified accrual basis of accounting.
The County recognizes a net pension liability for each qualified pension plan in which it participated, which represents
the excess of the total pension liability over the fiduciary net position of the qualified pension plan, measured as of the
County’s fiscal year-end or the County’s proportionate share thereof in the case of a cost-sharing multiple-employer
plan.

Changes in the net pension liability during the period are recorded as pension expense, or as deferred inflows or
outflows of resources depending on the nature of the change, in the period incurred. Those changes in net pension
liability that are recorded as deferred inflows or outflows of resources that arise from changes in actuarial assumptions
or other inputs and differences between expected or actual experience are amortized over the weighted average
remaining service life of all participants including retires, in the respective qualified pension plan and recorded as a
component of pension expense beginning with the period in which they arose.

Projected earnings on qualified pension plan investments are recognized as a component of pension expense.
Differences between projected and actual investment earnings are reported as deferred inflows or outflows of resources
and amortized as a component of pension expense on a closed basis over a five-year period beginning with the period
in which the difference occurred.

Q. Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to OPEB and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the County’s OPEB Plan (OPEB
Plan) and additions to/deductions from the OPEB Plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same
basis. For this purpose, benefit payments are recognized when currently due and payable in accordance with the
benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Generally accepted accounting principles require that the reported results must pertain to liability and asset information
within certain defined timeframes. For this report, the following timeframes are used:

Valuation Date: January 1, 2016
Measurement Date: June 30, 2017
Measurement Period: July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017
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R. Estimates

The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly,
actual results could differ from those estimates.

S. Implementation of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements

The requirements of the following GASB Statements are effective for the purpose of implementation, if applicable to
the County, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018:

GASB Statement No. 75 — In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The primary objective of this statement is to improve accounting and
financial reporting by state and local governments for postemployment benefits other than pensions (other
postemployment benefits or OPEB). It also improves information provided by state and local governmental employers
about financial support for OPEB that is provided by other entities. This statement is effective for periods beginning
after June 15, 2017. The County implemented this statement as of July 1, 2017.

GASB Statement No. 81 — In March 2016, GASB issued Statement No. 81, Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements.
The objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting for irrevocable split-interest agreements
by providing recognition and measurement guidance for situations in which a government is a beneficiary of the
agreement. The requirements of this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after
December 15, 2016. The County has determined that this statement is not applicable.

GASB Statement No. 85 — In March 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 85, Omnibus 2017. The objective of this
Statement is to address practice issues that have been identified during implementation of application of certain GASB
Statements. This Statement addresses a variety of topics including issues related to blending component units,
goodwill, fair value measurement and application, and postemployment benefits (pensions and other postemployment
benefits [OPEB]). The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2017.
The County implemented this statement as of July 1, 2017,

GASB Statement No. 86 — In May 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 86, Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues. The
primary objective of this Statement is to improve consistency in accounting and financial reporting for in-substance
defeasance of debt by providing guidance for transactions in which cash and other monetary assets acquired with only
existing resources — resources other than the proceeds of refunding debt — are placed in an irrevocable trust for the
sole purpose of extinguishing debt. This Statement also improves accounting and financial reporting for prepaid
insurance on debt that is extinguished and notes to financial statements for debt that is defeased in substance. The
requirements of this Statement are effective or reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2017. The County has
determined that this statement is not applicable.

S. Future Pronouncements

The County is currently analyzing its accounting and financial reporting practices to determine the potential impact on
the financial statements of the following GASB Statements:

GASB Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations, is effective for reporting periods beginning after June
15, 2018. (FY 2018/19) The objective of this Statement is to address accounting and financial reporting for certain
asset retirement obligations (AROs). An ARO is a legally enforceable liability associated with the retirement of a
tangible capital asset. A government that has legal obligations to perform future asset retirement activities related to
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its tangible capital assets should recognize a liability based on the guidance in this Statement. This Statement also
requires disclosure of information about the nature of a government’s AROs, the methods and assumptions used for
the estimates of the liabilities, and the estimated remaining useful life of the associated tangible capital assets.

GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, is effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018
(FY 2019/20). The objective of this Statement is to improve guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities
for accounting and financial reporting purposes and how those activities should be reported. This Statement
establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local governments.

GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, is effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019 (FY 2020/21).
The objective of this Statement is to better meet the information needs of financial statement users by improving
accounting and financial reporting for leases; enhancing the comparability of financial statements between
governments; and also enhancing the relevance, reliability (representational faithfulness), and consistency of
information about the leasing activities of governments.

GASB Statement No. 88 — Certain Disclosures Related to debt, including Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements is
effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2018. The objective of this Statement is to improve consistency in the
information that is disclosed in notes to government financial statements related to debt, including direct borrowings
and direct placements, and to provide financial statement users with additional essential information about debt.

GASB Statement No. 89 — Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Construction Period is effective
for periods beginning after December 15, 2019. The objectives of this statement are (a) to enhance the relevance and
comparability of information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period and (b) to simplify
accounting for certain interest costs.

GASB Statement No. 90 — Majority Equity Interests, an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 61 is effective
for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018. The objectives of this Statement are to improve the
consistency and comparability of reporting a government's majority equity interest in a legally separate organization
and to improve the relevance of financial statement information for certain component units.

NOTE2: CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Total County cash and investments at June 30, 2018 were as follows:

Imprest cash $ 770
Cash on hand 437
Deposits in bank 5,594,532
Deposits held by fiscal agents external to the pool 45,413
5,641,152

Investments:
In Treasurer's pool 86,621,176
Total Cash and Investments $ 92,262,328
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Cash and investments were presented in the County’s financial statements as follows:

Primary government $ 42,381,602
Investment trust fund 43,603,090
Agency funds 6,277,636

$ 92,262,328

Investments

The County’s cash and investments are invested by the County Treasurer, in accordance with investment policy
guidelines and California Government Code. The objectives of the policy, in order of priority, include safety of principal,
liquidity and yield. The policy addresses the soundness of financial institutions in which the County will deposit funds,
types of investment instruments permitted by the California Government Code, and the percentage of the portfolio that
may be invested in certain instruments. A copy of the county investment policy is available upon request from the
Mono County Treasurer at P.O Box 556, Bridgeport CA 93517-0556. The Treasury Oversight Committee has oversight
for all monies deposited into the Treasury Pool. The Committee requires an annual audit to ensure the County’s
Investment Portfolio complies with its policy and California Government Code Section 53601.

The Board of Supervisors reviews and approves the investment policy annually. The County Treasurer prepares and
submits a comprehensive investment report to the Board of Supervisors every quarter. The report covers the type of
investments in the pool, maturity dates, par value, actual costs and fair value.

The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the County by the California Government Code
or the County’s investment policy, where more restrictive. The table also identifies certain provisions of the County's
investment policy that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration risk. Not addressed in the table are
investments with external agents external to the pool. A separate investment policy governs these investments.

Maximum Maximum
Authorized Maximum Percentage Investment
Investment Type Maturity of Portfolio in One Issuer

Federal Agency Obligations 5 years None None
U.S. Treasury Bills 5 years None None
Local Agency Bonds and Obligations 5 years None None
State of California Notes & Bonds 5 years None None
Notes & Bonds of Other 49 States 5 years None None
Supranational Bonds 5 years 30% None
Banker's Acceptances 180 days 40% 30%
Commercial Paper - Selected Agencies 270 days 40% 10%
Commercial or Savings Bank and Credit Union N/A 30% 10%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 years 30% None
Reverse Repurchase Agreements 92 days 20% None
Medium-Term Corporate Notes 5 years 30% None
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A 20% 10%
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A None None
California Asset Management Program N/A 20% None
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At June 30, 2018, the County had the following investments:

Fair WAM
Interest Rates Maturities Par Value (Years)
Investments in Investment Pool

Federal Agency Issues - Coupon 1.06%-2.7% 11/19/18-4/11/23  $ 38,775,000 $ 38,746,674 2.60
U.S. Treasuries 1.375%-1.625% 9/30/18 -6/30/19 4,500,000 4,487,288 0.65
Medium Term Corporate Bonds 1.55%-5.45% 7/13/18-4/28/23 8,500,000 8,653,220 2.61
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 1.05%-3.0% 7123/18-4/28/23 13,675,000 13,674,388 2.54
Municipal Bonds 1.25%-4.75% 8/1/18-4/1/22 6,955,000 7,070,284 1.35
Treasury Loans 1.25%-2.5% 10/3/18-8/1/22 294,484 294,484 311
LAIF Variable On-Demand 1,051,322 1,051,322 0.00
CAMP Variable On-Demand 12,643,516 12,643,516 0.00

Total investments in investment pool $ 86394322 $ 86,621,176 1.98

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. The
general rule is the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market
interest rates. The County manages its exposure to declines in fair values by purchasing a combination of shorter term
and longer-term investments and by timing maturities to provide the necessary cash flow and liquidity needed for
operations. The benchmark used by the County is to limit the weighted average maturity (WAM) of its investment
portfolio to two years or less in accordance with its investment policy.

Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the investment.
This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. State law and
the County’s Investment Policy limit investments in commercial paper to the rating of A1 by Standards & Poor’s or P-1
by Moody’s Investors Service. State law and the County’s Investment Policy also limit investments in corporate bonds
to the rating of A by Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s Investors Service. The County does not impose credit limits on
government agency securities.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The following is a summary of the credit quality distribution and concentration of credit risk by investment type as a
percentage of pooled investments at June 30, 2018.

% of
Quality Rating Range Portfolio

Federal Agency Issues - Coupon Aaato Aal 44.49%
U.S. Treasuries Aaa 5.27%
Medium Term Corporate Bonds Aaato A2 9.90%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit Unrated 15.77%
Municipal Bonds Aalto A2 8.12%
Treasury Loans Unrated 0.35%
LAIF Unrated 14.86%
CAMP Unrated 1.24%

Total 100.00%
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The County investment policy contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in any one issuer beyond that
stipulated by the California Government Code. Investments in any one issuer (Other than U.S. Treasury securities,
mutual funds or external investment pools) that represent 5 percent or more of the total County pooled investments
are as follows:

Percentage
Issuer Investment Type Holdings Amount
Federal Farm Credit Bank Federal Agency Obligations 8.07% $ 6,993,946
Federal Home Loan Bank Federal Agency Obligations 6.97% 6,041,213
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation Federal Agency Obligations 7.24% 6,274,330
Federal National Mortgage Association Federal Agency Obligations 22.18% 19,212,208

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, the County
will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of
an outside party. The California Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state
or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under
state law. The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal to at least 110% of the total
amount deposited by the public agencies.

The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty to a transaction,
a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in possession of
another party. The California Government Code and the County’s investment policy do not contain legal or policy
requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or investments.

The County considered none of its deposits or investments at June 30, 2018, unnecessarily exposed to custodial credit
risk.

Local Agency Investment Fund

The County Treasurer's Pool maintains an investment in the State of California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF).
LAIF is part of the Pooled Money Investment Account (PMIA), an investment pool consisting of funds held by the state
in addition to those deposited in LAIF. All PMIA funds are managed by the Investment Division of the State Treasurer's
Office. This fund is not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission as an investment company, but is
required to invest according to California Government Code. Participants in the pool include voluntary and involuntary
participants, such as special districts and school districts for which there are legal provisions regarding their
investments. The Local Investment Advisory Board (Board) has oversight responsibility for LAIF. The Board consists
of five members as designated by State Statute.

The County’s total investment in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), managed by the Treasurer for the State of
California was $1,051,322. The total amount invested by all public agencies in LAIF at June 30, 2018, was $88.8
billion, the majority of which is invested in non-derivative financial products. The average maturity of PMIA investments
was 183 days as of June 30, 2018. The value of pool shares in LAIF, which may be withdrawn, is determined on an
amortized cost basis, which is different from the fair value of the pooled treasury’s portion in the pool.
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California Asset Management Program

The County Treasurer’s Pool maintains an investment in the California Asset Management Program (CAMP). On June
30, 2018, the County’s investment to CAMP was $12,643,517. The weighted average to maturity of CAMP investments
was 35 days as of June 30, 2018. The Board of Trustees, which is made up of experienced local government directors
and treasurers, has oversight responsibility for CAMP. The value of the pool shares in CAMP, which may be withdrawn,
is determined on an amortized cost basis, which is different than the fair value of the County Treasurer’s portion of the
pool. CAMP’s investment policy does not permit the purchase of asset-backed securities (Government Code 53601(n)),
but does permit the purchase commercial paper 53601(h), which can include asset-backed commercial paper.

County Investment Pool Condensed Financial Statements

The following represents a condensed statement of net position and changes in net position for the Treasurer's
investment pool as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018:

Statement of Net Position

Net position held for pool participants $ 92,216,915
Equity of external pool participants $ 43,603,090
Equity of internal pool participants 48,613,825

Total net position $ 92,216,915

Statement of Changes in Net Position

Net position at July 1, 2017 $ 84,939,059
Net change in investments by pool participants 7,277,856
Net position at June 30, 2018 $ 92,216,915

Fair Value Measurements

The County categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted
accounting principles. These principles recognize a three-tiered fair value hierarchy based on the valuation inputs
used to measure the fair value of the asset, as follows:

o Level 1. Investments reflect prices quoted in active markets for identical assets.

o Level 2: Investments reflect prices that are based on a similar observable asset either directly or indirectly,
which may include inputs in markets that are not considered to be active.

o Level 3: Investments reflect prices based upon unobservable sources which reflect the County’s own
assumptions about the inputs market participants would use in pricing the asset. Unobservable inputs are
developed based on the best information available in the circumstances and may include the County’s own
data.

53



COUNTY OF MONO

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

The County’s investments measured at fair value as of June 30, 2018 are as follows:

Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted Prices in

Active Markets for Significant Other Significant
Identical Assets (Level ~ Observable Inputs Unobservable Inputs
1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Investments in Investment Pool
Federal Agency Issues - Coupon $ 38,746,674 $ - % 38,746,674  $
U.S. Treasuries 4,487,288 4,487,288
Medium Term Corporate Bonds 8,653,220 - 8,653,220
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 13,674,388 - 13,674,388
Municipal Bonds 7,070,284 - 7,070,284
Total investments measured at fair value 72,631,854 $ - $ 72,631,854 $
Investments measured at amortized cost:
Treasury Loans 294,484
LAIF 1,051,322
CAMP 12,643,516
Total investments in Investment Pool $ 86,621,176

NOTE 3: INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

The composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 2018, is as follows:

Due to/from other funds:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
General Fund Nonmajor Governmental Funds $ 131,326
Nonmajor Governmental Funds Nonmajor Governmental Funds 149,909

§ 2123

The above balances reflect temporary loans to cover cash deficits at June 30.
Advances to/from other funds:

Advances to/from other funds represent interfund loans not anticipated to be paid within the subsequent year.

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
General Fund Nonmajor Governmental Funds $ 99,013
Solid Waste Fund 465,000
$ 564,013
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In 2018, the County’s General Fund advanced $99,013 to complete funding of the County’s Revolving Loan Fund at
the maximum amount of $300,000, as authorized by Resolution 15-81. The Revolving Loan Fund is established to
purchase deed-restricted properties and thereby preserve affordable housing units. Of the maximum of $300,000
established for the program, $200,987 is funded from the County’s Housing Mitigation Fund, and the remaining $99,013
is advanced by the County’'s General Fund. The advance is to be repaid upon termination of the Revolving Loan Fund
program.

The Solid Waste advances from the County’s General Fund represent two interest-free loans provided. During the
2010-11 budget year, the Board of Supervisors approved an interest-free loan to the Mono County Solid Waste
Enterprise Fund of $1,200,000, as the Solid Waste Enterprise Fund reorganized and adjusted expenses and revenues
(fee restructure). Repayment is amortized over ten (10) years, with zero percent (0%) interest and a repayment amount
of $30,000 quarterly, or $120,000 annually. Final payment is scheduled for June 30, 2020. The balance of this loan
as of June 30, 2018, was $240,000.

The Board of Supervisors approved a second loan during the 2011-12 budget year for $750,000. Repayment term is
amortized over ten (10) years, with zero percent (0%) interest and a repayment amount of $18,750 quarterly, or $75,000
annually. Final payment is scheduled for June 30, 2021. The balance of this loan as of June 30, 2018, was $225,000.
Transfers:

Transfers are indicative of funding for capital projects, debt service, subsidies of various County operations and re-
allocations of special revenues.

Transfer from Transfer to Amount
General Fund Road $ 650,000
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 1,777,743
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 20,000
Internal Service Funds 500,000
2,947,743
Realignment Fund General Fund 1,217,995
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 1,201,796
Internal Service Funds 54,914
2,474,705
Nonmajor Governmental General Fund 340,684
Funds Nonmajor Governmental Funds 1,130,776
1,471,460
Airports Roads 45,087
Total $ 6,938,995
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NOTE 4. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2018, was as follows:

Governmental Activities

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Infrastructure
Structures and improvements
Equipment
Intangibles

Total capital assets, being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Infrastructure
Structures and improvements
Equipment
Intangibles

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

Governmental activities capital assets, net

Business-Type Activities

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land

Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Infrastructure
Structures and improvements
Equipment

Total capital assets, being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Infrastructure
Structures and improvements
Equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

Business-type activities capital assets, net

Balance Transfers & Balance
July 1, 2017 Additions Adjustments Retirements June 30, 2018

$ 6,793,617 $ - $ - $ $ 6,793,617
1,452,021 812,671 (343,004) (26,064) 1,895,624
8,245,638 812,671 (343,004) (26,064) 8,689,241
94,283,897 638,034 - 94,921,931
18,621,557 58,496 343,004 - 19,023,057
18,026,793 1,161,561 - (445,522) 18,742,832
1,148,577 - - 1,148,577
132,080,824 1,858,091 343,004 (445,522) 133,836,397
(80,408,901) (1,362,112) (81,771,013)
(8,886,829) (495,562) - (9,382,391)
(14,858,977) (729,886) 445,336 (15,143,527)
(1,135,210) (1,975) - (1,137,185)
(105,289,917) (2,589,535) 445,336 (107,434,116)
26,790,907 (731,444) 343,004 (186) 26,402,281
$ 35036545 $ 81,227 $ $ (26,250) $ 35,091,522
$ 328423 % $ $ $ 328,423
328,423 328,423
463,141 - 463,141
7,730,944 82,000 7,812,944
1,532,463 - 1,532,463
9,726,548 82,000 9,808,548
- (23,430) (23,430)
(1,912,172) (328,887) (2,241,059)
(1,551,739) (1,702) (1,553,441)
(3,463,911) (354,019) (3,817,930)
6,262,637 (272,019) 5,990,618
$ 6,591,060 $ (272,019) $ $ $ 6,319,041
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Depreciation

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as follows:

General government $ 111,628
Public protection 141,405
Public ways and facilities 1,733,044
Health and sanitation 61,334
Public assistance 1,219
Recreation and culture 103,700

Capital assets held by the government's internal service funds are
charged to the various functions based on their usage of the asset 437,205
Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental Functions $ 2,589,535

Depreciation expense was charged to the business-type functions as follows:

Solid Waste $ 32,915
Airport 321,104
Total Depreciation Expense - Business-Type Functions $ 354,019

NOTE 5: LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Operating Leases

The County has commitments under long-term operating lease agreements for office space. Total rent expense under
operating lease agreements during the year ended June 30, 2018 was $1,059,723. The lease with Sierra Center Mall
ends October 31, 2019 and future minimum lease payments beyond this date have been removed from the below
schedule as the lease is unlikely to be renewed as of that date.

Future minimum lease payments required under these operating leases at June 30, 2018, is as follows:

Year Ending Governmental
June 30: Activities
2019 1102112
2020 579,493
2021 299,182
2022 320,125
2023 342,534

$ 2643446
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The following is a summary of long-term liabilities transactions for the year ended June 30, 2018:

Governmental Activities
Pension obligation bonds
Notes payable
Compensated absences
Net pension liability
Net OPEB liahility
Claims liability

Total Governmental Activities

Long-term liabilities

Business-type Activities

Refunded certificates of participation

Net pension liability
Compensated absences
Landfill postclosure cost

Total Business-type Activities

Long-term liabilities

Balance

July 1, 2017 Balance Due Within
(Restated) Additions Retirements June 30, 2018 One Year
$ 1459500 $ $ (762,900) $ 696,600 $ 116,300
150,229 245,750 (124,953) 271,026 111,329
3,042,040 1,737,383 (1,837,574) 2,941,849 1,772,760
46,661,293 8,473,419 (4,248,107) 50,886,605 -
19,440,386 2,424,073 (4,962,151) 16,902,308 -
2,940,003 847,846 (623,094) 3,164,755 3,164,755
$ 73693451  $ 13728471  $(12558,779) $ 74,863,143 $ 5165144
$ 2,182,700 $ $  (236,800) $ 1,945900 $§ 245,200
1,021,034 30,728 (93,827) 957,935 -
51,440 45,737 (43,308) 53,869 50,142
7,601,374 244,617 - 7,845,991 -
$ 10,856,548 $ 321,082 $ (373935 $ 10,803,695 $ 295342

Claims and judgments are paid from the self-insurance fund held by a third-party administrator and County funds are
charged directly for their appropriate insurance cost. In the Governmental activities, the liabilities for compensated
absences and net pension liability are primarily liquidated by the County’s general fund and several special revenue

funds.

As of June 30, 2018, annual debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Governmental Activities

Year Ending Bonds Payable Notes Payable
June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest

2019 116,300 30,921 $ 111,329 $ 5,333
2020 127,200 25,412 44,220 3,718
2021 138,800 19,390 45,332 2,605
2022 151,100 12,823 46,472 1,465
2023 163,200 6,628 23,673 296

696,600 95,174 $ 271,026 $ 13,417
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Business-Type Activities

Year Ending Certificates of Participation
June 30 Principal Interest

2019 $ 245200  $ 328,680
2020 253,400 326,360
2021 266,400 328,490
2022 279,100 329,760
2023 286,700 325,388
2024-2025 615,100 655,048
$ 1,945900 $ 2,293,726

Long-term debt at June 30, 2018, consisted of the following:

Governmental activities

2012 PERS Side Fund Refunding

(to refund unfunded accrued liability for the

County's retirement plan)

Notes Payable

(to purchase Innoprise Accounting System)

Notes Payable

(to purchase elections equipment)

Business-type activities

2011 Refunding of COPS 2001A

(to refund 2001 Series A Certificates of
Participation; to finance closure of four

County landfills)

NOTE 6:

Annual Original
Date of Date of Interest Principal Issue Outstanding
Issue Maturity Rates Installments Amount at June 30, 2018
02/12 02/18 - 02/23 4.36% $116,300 - $762,900 $ 461290 $ 696,600
2/15 - 3/18 6/30/2019 1.25% $10,903 - $43,536 $ 356,302 $ 68,195
07/17 8/1/2022 2.50% $21,169 - $23,673 $ 224000 $ 202,831
03/11 05/11 - 05/25 4.29% $189,000 - $316,100 3,609,000 1,945,900

CLOSURE AND POSTCLOSURE LIABILITY

The County of Mono has six landfill sites. State and federal laws and regulations require the County to perform certain
closure and postclosure maintenance and monitoring functions at the site for thirty years after closure. Although closure
and postclosure care costs will be paid only near or after the date the landfills stop accepting waste, the County reports
a portion of these closure and postclosure care costs as an expenditure in each year based on landfill capacity used
as of each balance sheet date. The $7,845,991 reported as closure and postclosure liability in the Solid Waste Fund
at June 30, 2018, represents the cumulative amount reported to date based on the following estimated percentages of

capacity applied to the estimated closure and postclosure care costs:
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Estimated Estimated Estimated Landfill

Total Remaining Capacity Percentage of Closure and

Estimated Estimated Total Capacity Capacity Used Capacity Used Postclosure

Closure Postclosure Estimated (Cubic (Cubic (Cubic through Liability at
Landfill Site Costs Costs Cost Yards) Yards) Yards) June 30, 2018 June 30, 2018
Benton Crossing $ 4688439 $ 2232899 $ 6,921,338 2,253,100 792,135 1,460,965 64.84% $ 4,487,964
Pumice Valley 1,969,863 1,778,551 3,748,414 347,112 229,066 118,046 34.01% 1,274,767
Walker 1,595,919 1,202,002 2,797,921 340,716 275,299 65,417 19.20% 537,200
Benton* - 777,020 777,020 - - - 100.00% 465,500
Bridgeport* - 960,967 960,967 - - - 100.00% 606,000
Chalfant* - 752,542 752,542 - - - 100.00% 474,560
Total $ 8254221 § 7,703980 $ 15958201 2,940,928 1,296,500 1,644,428 55.92% $ 7,845,991

* Landfills are closed and tracking of statistics is no longer required or useful. Total estimated costs for closed landfills is the unamortized cost.

The County will recognize the remaining estimated cost of closure and postclosure care of $7,167,742 as the remaining
estimated capacity is filled. These amounts are based on what it would cost to perform all closure and post-closure
care in 2018. Actual costs may be higher due to inflation, change in technology, or changes in regulations.

The County is required by state and federal laws and regulations to make annual contributions to a trust or pledge
future revenues to finance closure and postclosure costs. At June 30, 2018, cash and investments of $3,433,881 were
held as restricted cash for these purposes. The County expects that future inflation costs will be paid from interest
earnings on these annual contributions. However, if interest earnings are inadequate or additional postclosure care
requirements are determined (due to changes in technology or applicable laws or regulations, for example) these costs
may need to be covered by charges to future landfill users or from future tax revenues. The County has elected to
utilize the Pledge of Revenue financial assurance mechanism.

NOTE7: EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT PLAN

Plan Description

All qualified permanent and probationary employees of Mono County and Mono County Superior Court (non-judicial
employees) are eligible to participate in the County’s separate Safety (sheriff, emergency medical services and certain
district attorney members) or Miscellaneous (all others) Plans. The County’'s Safety Plan is a cost-sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit plan while the Miscellaneous Plan is an agent multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan.
The County's Safety and Miscellaneous Plans are part of the California Public Employees Retirement System
(CalPERS), a public employee retirement system that acts as a common investment and administrative agent for
participating public entities within the State of California. Benefit provisions and other requirements are established by
State statute and County resolution. CalPERS issues publicly available reports that include a full description of the
pension plans regarding benefit provisions, assumptions and membership information that can be found on the
CalPERS website.

The County’s Miscellaneous plan includes the local Court employees. In accordance with the Trial Court Fund Act,
Court employees are no longer employees of the County, but of the State instead. The Public Employees Retirement
Law (PERL) provides that in counties contracting with CalPERS Board, the trial court and County participate in
CalPERS by a joint contract. California law requires the combining of assets and liabilities of a county and a trial court
contracting with CalPERS for purposes of setting the employer contribution rates for both the county and the trial court.
Additionally, the County and the trial court provide a single benefit package to eligible employees. Accordingly, the
Court’s proportion of the collective pension amounts have been excluded from the County’s net pension liability and
related deferred inflows and outflows of resources.

Benefits Provided
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CalPERs provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments and death benefits to
plan members upon retirement, disability or death of members. Retirement benefits are based on years of service,
final average compensation, and retirement age. Employees terminating before accruing five years of retirement
service credit forfeit the right to receive retirement benefits unless they establish reciprocity with another public agency
within a prescribed period. Non-vested employees who terminate service are entitled to withdraw their accumulated
contributions plus accrued interest. Employees who terminate service after earning five years of retirement service
credit may leave their contributions on deposit and elect to take a deferred retirement. Differences between expected
and actual experience for vested and non-vested benefits may result in an increase or decrease to pension expense
and net pension liability.

Service related disability benefits are provided to safety members and are based on final compensation. Non-service
related disability benefits are provided to both safety and miscellaneous members. The benefit is based on final
compensation, multiplied by service, which is determined as follows:
o service is CalPERS credited service, for members with less than 10 years of service or greater than 18.518
years of service; or
e service is CalPERS credited service plus the additional number of years that the member would have worked
until age 60, for members with at least 10 years but not more than 18.518 years of service.

Death benefits are based upon a variety of factors including whether the participant was retired or not.

Annual cost-of-living adjustments (COLAs) after retirement are provided in all plans. COLAs are granted to retired
members each May based upon the Bureau of Labor Statistics Average Consumer Price Index for All Urban
Consumers for the previous calendar year and is subject to a maximum of 2% per annum.

The Plans’ provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2018, are summarized as follows:

Miscellaneous

Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3

Prior to On or after On or after
Hire Date June 1, 2012 June 1, 2012 Jan. 1, 2013
Benefit formula 2.5%@55 2.7%@55 2% @62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years of service 5 years of service 5 years of service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 50-55 50-55 52-67
Monthly benefits, as % of eligible compensation 2.00%-2.50% 2.00%-2.75% 1.00%-2.50%
Required employee contribution rates 8% 8% 6.25%
Required employer contribution rates 10.445% 10.445% 10.445%
Status Open Open Open
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Hire Date

Benefit formula

Benefit vesting schedule

Benefit payments

Retirement age

Monthly benefits, as % of eligible compensation
Required employee contribution rates

Required employer contribution rates

Status

Hire Date

Benefit formula

Benefit vesting schedule

Benefit payments

Retirement age

Monthly benefits, as % of eligible compensation
Required employee contribution rates

Required employer contribution rates

Status

Employees Covered

At June 30, 2018, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms for the Miscellaneous Plan.

Safety
Peace Officer Peace Officer Sheriff Sheriff Fire
Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 1
Prior to On or after Prior to
Prior to July 1, 2004 Prior to Jan. 1, 2013 Jan. 1, 2013 Dec. 27, 2012 July 1, 2007
3%@50 3%@50 3%@50 3%@55 3%@50
5 years of service 5 years of service 5 years of service 5 years of service 5 years of service
monthly for life monthly for life monthly for life monthly for life monthly for life
50 50 50 55 50
3.00% 2.50% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%
9.00% 9.00% 9.00% 9.00% 9.00%
19.723% 19.723% 19.723% 16.842% 19.723%
Open Open Open Open Open
Fire Peace Officer Sherif Fire
Tier Il Pepra - Tier 3 Pepra - Tier 3 Pepra - Tier 3
On or after
July 1, 2007/
Prior to On or after On or after On or after
Jan. 1, 2013 Jan 1. 2013 Jan 1. 2013 Jan 1. 2013
2%@50 2.7%@57 2.7%@57 2.7%@57

5 years of service
monthly for life
50
2.00%
9.00%
15.928%
Open

5 years of service
monthly for life
57
2.70%
11.50%
11.990%
Open

5 years of service
monthly for life
57
2.70%
11.50%
11.990%
Open

5 years of service
monthly for life
57
2.70%
11.50%
11.990%
Open

The

corresponding data is not available for employees included in the Safety Plan as the plan is a cost-sharing multiple

employer plan:

Miscellaneous

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits

Active employees

Contributions

314
213
188

715

Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires the employer contribution rates for all
public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice
of a change in the rate. Funding contributions for all Plans are determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30
by CalPERS. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned
by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The County is
required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees.
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For the year ended June 30, 2018, contributions recognized as part of pension expense for the plan were as follows:

Employer Contributions

Total Miscellaneous Safety
Governmental activities:
Governmental funds $ 4218785 $ 2655875 $ 1,562,910
Motor Pool Internal Service fund 29,322 29,322 -
Total governmental activities 4,248,107 2,685,197 1,562,910

Business type activities
Solid Waste fund 93,827 93,827 -
$ 4341934 $ 2,779,024 $ 1562910

Pension Liabilities

As of June 30, 2018, the County reported net pension liabilities for its proportionate shares of the net pension liability
of each Plan as follows:

Total Miscellaneous Safety
Governmental Activities:
Governmental funds $ 50,755,678 $ 30,663,512 $ 20,092,166
Motor Pool ISF 130,927 130,927 -
Total governmental activities 50,886,605 30,794,439 20,092,166
Business type activities
Solid Waste fund 957,935 957,935 -
Total Mono County 51,844540 $ 31,752,374  $ 20,092,166
Courts 1,994,500
$ 53,839,040

The County’s net pension liability for the Miscellaneous Plan is the plan’s liability accounted for separately from all
other CalPERS plans. The County’s net pension liability for the Safety Plan is the Plan’s proportionate share of the
net pension liability. The net pension liability of each Plan is measured as the total pension liability, less the pension
plan’s fiduciary net position. The net pension liability of each of the Plans is measured as of June 30, 2017, using an
annual actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2016 rolled forward to June 30, 2017 using standard update procedures.

For the Safety Plan (a cost-sharing plan), the County’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection
of the County’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plans relative to the projected contributions of all
participating employers, actuarially determined. The County's net pension liability and related Plan proportion for the
Safety Plan is as follows:
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Plan's Proportion to Plan's Proportion to Plan's Proportionate
Total Pool @ June 30, Total Pool @ June 30,  Share of Net Pension
Plan 2016 2017 Liability
Safety 0.33674% 0.33626% $ 20,092,166

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2016 actuarial valuations were determined using the following actuarial
assumptions:

Miscellaneous Safety

Valuation Date June 30, 2016 June 30, 2016
Measurement Date June 30, 2017 June 30, 2017
Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal Cost Method
Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount Rate 7.15% 7.15%

Inflation 2.75% 2.75%

Payroll Growth 3.00% 3.00%

Projected Salary Increase Varies by entry age and service

Investment Rate of Return 7.50% " 7.50% "

Mortality Derived using CalPERS' Membership Data

for All Funds

(1) Net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation.

The underlying mortality assumptions and all other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2016 valuation were
based on the results of the 2010 actuarial experience study for the period 1997 to 2011. Further details of the
Experience Study can be found on the CalPERS website.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15% for each Plan. This rate is 0.50% lower than
the previous year and reflects the CalPERS Board of Administration decision on December 21, 2016, to lower the
discount rate. To determine whether the municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of a discount rate for
each plan, CalPERS stress tested plans that would most likely result in a discount rate that would be different from the
actuarially assumed discount rate. Based on the testing, none of the tested plans ran out of assets. Therefore, the
current 7.15 percent discount rate is adequate, and the use of the municipal bond rate calculation is not necessary.
The long term expected discount rate of 7.15 percent will be applied to all plans in the Public Employees Retirement
Fund (PERF). The cash flows used in the testing were developed assuming that both members and employers will
make their required contributions on time and as scheduled in all future years. The stress test results are presented
in a detailed report that can be obtained from the CalPERS website.

According to Paragraph 30 of Statement 68, the long-term discount rate should be determined without reduction for

pension plan administrative expense. The 7.50 percent investment return assumption used in this accounting valuation
is net of administrative expenses. Administrative expenses are assumed to be 15 basis points. An investment return
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excluding administrative expenses would have been 7.65 percent. Using this lower discount rate has resulted in a
slightly higher Total Pension Liability and Net Pension Liability. CalPERS checked the materiality threshold for the
difference in calculation and did not find it to be a material difference.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method in
which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension investment expense
and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

The long-term expected rate of return includes both short-term and long-term market return expectations as well as
the expected pension fund cash flows. Such cash flows were developed assuming that both members and employers
will make their required contributions on time and as scheduled in all future years. Using historical returns of all the
funds’ asset classes, expected compound (geometric)returns were calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and
the long-term (11-60 years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term
and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by
calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as
the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to
the single equivalent rate calculated above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of one percent.

The table below reflects long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was calculated using
the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset allocation. These geometric rates of
return are net of administrative expenses.

Strategic Real Return Real Return Years
Asset Class Allocation Years 1-10 ¥ 1160 @
Global Equity 47.0% 4.90% 5.38%
Global Fixed Income 19.0% 0.80% 2.27%
Inflation Sensitive 6.0% 0.60% 1.39%
Private Equity 12.0% 6.60% 6.63%
Real Estate 11.0% 2.80% 5.21%
Infrastructure and Forestland 3.0% 3.90% 5.36%
Liquidity 2.0% -0.40% -0.90%
Total 100.0%

@ An expected inflation rate of 2.5% used for this period
@ An expected inflation rate of 3.0% used for this period
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Changes in the Net Pension Liability

The changes in the Net Pension Liability for the County’s Miscellaneous Plan follows:

Increase (Decrease)

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability Net Position Liability/(Asset)
Balance at June 30, 2017 $ 97,796,416 $ 67,554,831 $ 30,241,585
Changes in the year:
Service cost 2,205,881 2,205,881
Interest on total pension liability 7,115,841 7,115,841
Changes of assumptions 5,573,635 5,573,635
Differences between expected and actual
experience (2,310,234) - (2,310,234)
Contributions from the employer - 2,775,636 (2,775,636)
Contributions from employees 886,827 (886,827)
Net Investment Income 7,484,204 (7,484,204)
Benefit payments, including
refunds of employee contributions (5,104,325) (5,104,325) -
Administrative expense - (99,651) 99,651
Proportional differences between County
Courts shares (88,346) (61,027) (27,319)
Net Changes 7,392,452 5,881,664 1,510,788
Balance at June 30, 2018 $ 105,188,868  $ 73,436,495 $ 31,752,373

The County’s share of the Miscellaneous Plan determined at June 30, 2018 is 94.0898 percent of the Plan’s total
pension liability and fiduciary net position. The remaining 5.9102 percent of the Plan’s total pension liability and
fiduciary net position represents the Mono County Superior Court’s share.

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Change in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net pension liability of the County for each Plan, calculated using the discount rate for each
Plan, as well as what the County’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-
percentage point lower or 1-percentage point higher than the current rate:

Miscellaneous Safety Total
1% Decrease 6.15% 6.15% 6.15%
Net Pension Liability $ 45128,935 $ 30,294,321  $ 75,423,256
Current Discount Rate 7.15% 7.15% 7.15%
Net Pension Liability $ 31,752,373  $ 20,092,166 $ 51,844,539
1% Increase 8.15% 8.15% 8.15%
Net Pension Liability $ 20,642,522 % 11,752,413  $ 32,394,935

66



COUNTY OF MONO

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Detailed information about each pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued CalPERS
financial reports.

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the County recognized pension expense of $6,737,517. Pension expense
represents the change in the net pension liability during the measurement period, adjusted for the deferred recognition

of changes in investment gain/loss, actuarial gain/loss, actuarial assumptions or method, and plan benefits.

At June 30, 2018, the County reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows of Deferred Inflows of

Resources Resources

Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date $ 4,890,690 $ -
Changes in assumptions 6,339,494 236,935
Differences between actual and expected experiences 212,943 1,512,447
Adjustment due to differences in proportions 162,895 564,534
Net differences between projected and actual earnings on

pension plan investments 1,683,903 -
Total $ 13,289,925 $ 2,313,916

The deferred outflows of resources of $4,890,690 results from pension contributions made subsequent to the
measurement date and will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the next fiscal year. Other
amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension
expense as follows:

Year Ending June 30,
2018 $ 1,990,637
2019 3,480,682
2020 1,552,076
2021 (938,076)

$ 6,085,319

NOTE8: OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)

Plan Description

The County administers a postemployment healthcare plan, a single-employer defined benefit post employment
healthcare plan. The County established a post employment health benefit (OPEB) trust with the Public Agency
Retirement Services (PARS) which is used to accumulate resources to fund future benefits, however it does not
represent the activities of the plan. The Plan provides medical, dental and vision insurance benefits to eligible retirees.

The County provides post-retirement health care benefits, in accordance with County employment contracts, to all
employees who retire, on a tiered basis. Employees hired prior to January 1, 2002, who have attained the age of 55
and have accrued a minimum of 20 years of service, are entitled to post-retirement health care benefits. (In this
category, age and time are tiered between age 50 and 55 with between 5 and 20 years of service depending upon the
date of hire). Employees hired after January 1, 2002, are not eligible for post-retirement health care benefits. Instead,
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employees hired after this date are eligible to receive County contributions into an Internal Revenue Code Section
401(a) Plan established by the County.

At June 30, 2018, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms of the plan:

Retirees and beneficiaries receiving benefits 173
Terminated plan members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits -
Active plan members 29

202

This is a closed group with no new members added or eligible. The County has a two-part system for acknowledging
this liability. 1) The County budgets for the full 3% match of employee salaries to match the 3% maximum payable
under the 401(a) plan. The excess not paid to participating employees remains in the retirement trust fund to pay on-
going retiree costs. 2) The County budgets for the annual required contribution with payments first going to fund current
retiree costs and the remainder in trust to fund future retiree costs.

Funding Policy

The contribution requirements of the plan members and the County are established and may be amended by the
County. The contribution is based on the difference between what the County paid directly to or on behalf of eligible
employees and the full value of the annual required contributions (ARC). During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018,
the County contributed $2,702,041 to the OPEB plan. Of this amount, the County paid $1,702,041 to retirees during
the yar and $1,000,000 to the OPEB trust.

Net OPEB Liability

The County’s net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2017, and the total OPEB liability used to calculate the
net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2016.

Actuarial assumptions — The total OPEB liability in the January 1, 2017 actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions:

Valuation date January 1, 2016
Measurement date June 30, 2017
Actuarial assumptions:
Discount rate 6.25%
Inflation 2.50%
Investment rate of return 6.25%"
Based on the 2014 CalPERS experience study and reflect the anticipation of
Mortaility improvmeent in future mortality (rates unclude a projection to 2028 using Scale
BB)

Withdrawl based on employees terminating within one year for an employee with
five years of service.

Healthcare cost trends Based on the "Getzen" model published by the Society of Actuaries.

For non-medicare - 5.25% for 2019 and 2020, decreasing to an ultimate rate of
4.5% in 2070 and later years.

For medicare - 5.75% for 2019 and 2020, decreasing to an ultimate rate of 4.5%
in 2085 and later years.

Pre-retirement turnover

(1)  Same as discount rate. Plan assets projected to be sufficient to pay all benefits from trust.
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The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a building-block method in
which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of OPEB plan investment
expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-
term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation
percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return
for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Expected Real Rate of

Asset Class Target Allocation Return
Equities 60.00% 7.92%
Fixed income 35.00% 5.00%
Cash 5.00% 3.27%
100.00%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 6.25%. The projection of cash flows used to determine
the discount rate assumed that the County contributions will be made at rates equal to the actuarially determined
contribution rates. Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available
to make all projected OPEB payments for current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected
rate of return on OPEB plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total
OPERB liability.

Changes in the Net OPEB Liability

Total OPEB Fiduciary Net
Liability Position Net OPEB Liability
Balances at June 30, 2017 $ 34,066,578  $ 14,626,192  $ 19,440,386
Changes in the year:
Service cost 338,631 - 338,631
Interest on total OPEB liability 2,085,442 - 2,085,442
Benefit payments (2,108,215) (2,108,215) -
Contributions from employer - 3,108,215 (3,108,215)
Net investment income - 1,853,936 (1,853,936)
Net changes 315,858 2,853,936 (2,538,078)
Balances at June 30, 2018 $ 34,382,436  $ 17,480,128  $ 16,902,308

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the County if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one
percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the current rate for measurement period ended June 30,
2017:
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1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(5.25%) (6.25%) (7.25%)
Net OPEB liability $ 21,027,946 $ 16,902,308 $ 13,465,131

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates

The following presents what the County’s net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a healthcare cost trend
that is one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rates:

1% Decrease Current 1% Increase
in Healthcare Cost Healthcare Cost in Healthcare Cost
Trend Rate Trend Rate Trend Rate
Net OPEB liability $ 12,926,738  $ 16,902,308 $ 21,678,266

OPEB Expenses and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the County recognized OPEB expense of $1,297,355. As of June 30, 2018,
the County reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the

following sources:

Deferred Outflows  Deferred Inflows of
of Resources Resources

OPEB contributions subsequent to measurement
date $ 2,702,041 %
Net differences between projected and actual

earnings on OPEB plan investments 727,219

$ 2,702,041  $ 727,219

The $2,702,041 reported as a deferred outflow of resources related to OPEB contributions subsequent to the June 30,
2017 measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB liability in the fiscal year ending June 30,
2019. Other amounts reported as deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized as expense as

follows:

Years ending June 30,

2019 $ 181,805
2020 181,805
2021 181,805
2022 181,805

$ 727,220
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NOTE 9: NET POSITION/FUND BALANCES

Fund balances at June 30, 2018 were classified as follows:

Nonspendable:
Advances to other funds
Prepaids and inventory
Loans Receivable

Total Nonspendable

Restricted for:
Road projects
Health and social services
County service areas
Community development
Grant programs

Total Restricted

Committed:
Revolving loan fund

Assigned:
Eliminate projected FY 18/19
budgetary deficit
Capital projects
Debt service
Fish enhancement
Tourism
Total Assigned
Unassigned
Total Fund Balance

Other
General Road Realignment Mental Health Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Services Act Funds Total
$ 564,013 $ - $ $ $ - $ 564,013
69,931 339,367 25,984 435,282
887,327 - 911,863 1,799,190
1,521,271 339,367 937,847 2,798,485
1,642,730 - - 1,642,730
- 6,555,157 4,100,781 10,655,938
- 1,914,676 1,914,676
- 528,728 528,728
- 7,330,030 - 1,237,646 8,567,676
1,642,730 7,330,030 6,555,157 7,781,831 23,309,748
200,987 200,987
1,522,579 - 1,522,579
1,104,026 558,139 1,662,165
- 193,569 193,569
47,399 - - 47,399
129,548 - 129,548
2,803,552 751,708 3,555,260
8,783,159 - - - (412,309) 8,370,850
$ 13,107,982 ¢ 1,982,097 $ 7330030 $ 6,555,157  $ 9,260,064 % 38,235,330

During this year's budget process, the County Board of Supervisors re-established a general reserve of $2,218,959 in
the General Fund. This general reserve is subject to the provisions of Government Code sections 29085, 29086 and
29127, whereby appropriation from the general reserve may be used only in cases of certain emergency situations.
Because this stabilization arrangement does not meet the criteria described in GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance
Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, to be reported within the restricted or committed fund balance
categories, it has been classified as unassigned in these statements.

Net Position from governmental activities as of June 30, 2018 was restricted for the following purposes:

Road projects

Health and social services

County service areas

Community development

Grant programs

$ 1,642,730
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Net position from business-type activities as of June 30, 2018 was restricted for future cemetery maintenance in the
amount of $4,648.

Deficit Fund Equity

The following funds had deficit fund balances/net position at June 30, 2018, as follows:

Fund Deficit Management's Plan(s)
Special Revenue Funds:

The deficit results from delayed recognition
of revenues collected after the measurement
Bioterrorism $ 120,325  period of 60 days. The deficit will be
eliminated in the following year when
revenues are collected and recognized.

The deficit results from delayed recognition
of revenues collected after the measurement
Disaster Assistance Fund 153,921  period of 60 days. The deficit will be
eliminated in the following year when
revenues are collected and recognized.

Enterprise Funds:
The deficit in the Solid Waste Fund results
from accelerated closure and postclosure
Solid Waste 3,589,790  costs that exceed current user fees. The
deficit will be eliminated through the
collection of future user fees.
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Restatements of Fund Balance / Net Position

Adjustments resulting from errors or a change to comply with provisions of the accounting standards are treated as
adjustments to prior periods. Accordingly, the County reports these changes as restatements of beginning fund
balance / net position. Restatements as of the beginning of the fiscal year were made to correct the reporting of prior
year revenues and expenses / expenditures. Also, during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the county implemented
GASB Statement 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. As a
result, the County restated the net position as of June 30, 2017 to reflect the prior period costs related to the
implementation of the net OPEB liability and to eliminate the OPEB asset accumulated as a result of prior reporting
standards replaced by GASB Statement 75.

The impact of the restatements on the fund balances / net position as previously reported after reclassification is
presented below:

Government-Wide Govermnmental
Statements Funds
Other
Govemmental Governmental
Activities Funds
Fund balance / net position, June 30, 2017,
after reclassification $ 35,668,708 $ 8,193,177
Corrections:
Reclassify outstanding balance of long-term
notes payable previously reported as
accounts payable 96,473 246,702
Net OPEB asset (5,394,695) -
Net OPEB liability (19,440,386)
Deferred outflows of resources (OPEB) 3,108,215 -
Total corrections (21,630,393) 246,702
Fund balance / net position, July 1, 2017, after
reclassification and as restated $ 14,038,315 $ 8,439,879

NOTE 10: RISK MANAGEMENT

The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets, errors
and omissions, injuries to employees and natural disasters. The County has established an internal service fund (ISF)
to account for and finance risks for general liability and workers’ compensation. The County retains the risk of loss up
to a maximum of $125,000 for each workers’ compensation claim and $25,000 for each general liability claim, up to
four claims per year.

The County is a member of the Trindel Insurance Fund, a joint powers agency, established to provide coverage for
workers’ compensation and general liability exposures and to pay for the administration of the program. The agreement
for the formation of Trindel provides that the system will be self-sustaining through member premiums and will reinsure
through a commercial company for claims in excess of self-insured retention. Trindel retains a self-insured retention
of $125,000 for workers’ compensation and $100,000 for general liability. Excess insurance coverage is provided for
risk of loss above the self-insured retention. Trindel Insurance Fund is classified as a claims-servicing or account pool,
wherein the County retains the risk of loss and is considered self-insured with regard to liability coverage for general
and property liability and workers' compensation.
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The County holds a deposit with Trindel Insurance from which claims are paid. At June 30, 2018, the balance of the
deposit was $3,773,417. Each member of Trindel pays an annual premium to the insurance system that is evaluated
each year based on the number of personnel, estimated payroll and an experience factor.

The County is a member of the California State Association of Counties Excess Insurance Authority (CSACEIA), a joint
powers authority. CSACEIA, along with other commercial carriers, increases the coverage for general liability to $15
million. In addition, CSACEIA, along with other commercial carriers, covers replacement cost on property up to $600
million with a $1,000 deductible per occurrence. CSACEIA is a public entity risk pool currently operating as a common
risk management and insurance program. The County pays an annual premium to the Authority for excess insurance
coverage. Should actual losses among participants be greater than anticipated, the County will be assessed its pro
rata share of the deficiency. Conversely, if the actual losses are less than anticipated, the County will be refunded its
pro rata share of the excess. Settled claims have not exceeded commercial coverage in any of the past three fiscal
years.

Complete audited financial statements for CSACEIA can be obtained from the Authority’s Office at 3017 Gold Canal
Drive, Suite 300, Rancho Cordova California 95670.

All funds of the County participate in the program and make payments to the Self-Insurance internal service fund based
on historical cost and actuarial estimates of the amounts needed to pay prior and current year claims and to allow
accrual of estimated incurred but not reported claims. The total historical and actuarially determined claims liability at
June 30, 2018 is $3,164,755.

Changes in the County’s claims liability amount for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2018 and, 2017 were as follows:

Current Year
Fiscal Balance at Claims and Balance at
Year Beginning of Changes in Claims End of
Ended Fiscal Year Estimates Payments Fiscal Year

2017 $ 1,658,334 $ 3,021,103 $(1,739,434) $ 2,940,003
2018 2,940,003 847,846 (623,094) 3,164,755

NOTE 11: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Tax Abatements

The County provides property tax abatements through the Williamson Act Lands Program. The Williamson Act Lands
Program enrolls land in Williamson Act contracts whereby the land is restricted to agricultural, open space, or
recreational uses in exchange for reduced property tax assessments. Participation in the program is voluntary.

Under the provisions of these contracts, land parcels are assessed for property tax purposes at a rate consistent with
their actual use, rather than potential market value of the property. The minimum contract is ten years and automatically
renews until a nonrenewal or cancellation process is initiated. Under the nonrenewal process, the annual tax
assessment increases over a defined period of time until the assessment reflects the market value of the property.
Under the cancellation process, a significant one-time cancellation fee is assessed based upon a certain percentage
of the unrestricted, current fair market value of the property.

No other commitments were made by the County as part of the Williamson Act contracts. For the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2018, the Williamson Act Lands Program tax abatements were approximately $63,800.
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Litigation

The County is involved in several lawsuits. Due to the nature of the cases, County Counsel is unable to estimate at
this time the probability of favorable or unfavorable outcomes. Therefore, no provision has been made in the financial

statements for a loss contingency.

NOTE 12: SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On December 20, 2018, the County issued $19,940,000 of Certificates of Participation, Series 2018 A for the purpose
of financing construction of a Mono County Civic Center located within the Town of Mammoth Lakes. The certificates
were issued at a premium of $2,266,117, for a total net proceeds of $20,500,000, net of costs of issuance and
capitalized interest to fund interest payments on the debt for 21 months during construction. Debt repayment terms
include a 30-year repayment term beginning October 1, 2020 and ending October 1, 2048, with interest accruing at an
average annual rate of 3.9956%, resulting in average annual debt service of $1,275,800.
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Schedule of Changes in net Pension Liability and Related Ratios

Miscellaneous Plan — Agent Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Last 10 Fiscal Years*

Miscellaneous Plan

June 30, 2018
(June 30, 2017)

Reporting Fiscal Year
(Measurement Date)
June 30, 2017
(June 30, 2016)

June 30, 2016
(June 30, 2015)

June 30, 2015
(June 30, 2014)

Total Pension Liability

Service cost $ 2,205,881 $ 2,051,985 $ 2,249,307 $ 2,502,844

Interest on total pension liability 7,115,841 7,049,937 6,751,199 6,656,474

Changes of assumptions 5,573,635 - (1,548,943) -

Differences between expected and actual experience (2,310,234) (546,942) (1,521,848) -

Proportional differences between County and Court shares (88,346) (1,025,139) (481,953) -

Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions (5,104,325) (4,871,095) (4,719,903) (4,502,141)
Net change in total pension liability 7,392,452 2,658,746 727,859 4,657,177

Total pension liability, beginning 97,796,416 95,137,670 94,409,811 89,752,634

Total pension liability, ending $ 105,188,868 $ 97,796,416 $ 95,137,670 $ 94,409,811

Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Contributions - employer $ 2,775,636 $ 2,484,077 $ 2,408,009 $ 2,568,003

Contributions - employee 886,827 853,869 904,733 1,305,551

Net investment income 7,484,204 356,637 1,518,061 10,459,289

Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions (5,104,325) (4,871,095) (4,719,903) (4,502,141)
Proportional differences between County and Court shares (61,027) (1,118,338) - -

Administrative expense (99,651) (41,913) (77,107) -

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 5,881,664 (2,336,763) 33,793 9,830,702

Plan fiduciary net position, beginning 67,554,831 69,891,594 69,857,801 60,027,099

Plan fiduciary net position, ending $ 73,436,495 $ 67,554,831 $ 69,891,594 $ 69,857,801

Net pension liability, ending $ 31,752,373 $ 30,241,585 $ 25,246,076 $ 24,552,010

Plan fiduciary net percentage as a percentage of the total

pension liability 69.81% 69.08% 73.46% 73.99%
Covered payroll $ 11,475,219 $ 11,631,908 $ 12,381,959 $ 12,796,381

Net pension liability as a percentage of covered payroll 276.70% 259.99% 203.89% 191.87%

*Fiscal year 2015 (measurement date June 30, 2014) was the first year of implementation.

Additional years will be presented as they become available.
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COUNTY OF MONO

Required Supplementary Information
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Schedule of Pension Plan Contributions

Miscellaneous Plan — Agent Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Miscellaneous Plans

Reporting Fiscal Year

Last 10 Fiscal Years* June 30,2018  June 30,2017  June 30,2016  June 30, 2015
Actuarially determined contribution $ 2,408,009 $ 2,779,024 $ 2,484,077 $ 2,408,009
Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contributions 2,408,009 2,779,024 2,484,077 2,408,009
Contributions deficiency (excess) $ - $ - $ - 3 -
Covered payroll $ 11,475,219 $ 11,647,209 $ 11,631,908 $ 12,381,959
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 20.98% 23.86% 21.36% 19.45%

*Fiscal year 2015 (measurement date June 30, 2014) was the first year of implementation.
Additional years will be presented as they become available.

Notes to Schedule:

The actuarial methods and assumptions used to set the actuarially determined contributions as of June 30 two years
prior to the end of the fiscal year in which contributions are reported.

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:

Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal

Amortization method/period For details, see June 30, 2014 Funding Valuation Report

Asset valuation method Market value of assets. See the June 30, 2014 report for details.

Inflation 2.75%

Salary increases Varies by Entry Age and Service

Payroll growth 3.00%

Investment rate of return 7.50% Net of pension plan investment and administrative expense; includes
inflation.

Retirement age The probabilities of retirement are based on the 2010 CalPERS Experience Study
for the period from 1997 to 2011.

Mortality The probabilities of mortality are based on the 2010 CalPERS Experience Study for

the period from 1997 to 2011. Pre-retirement and post-retirement mortality rates
include 20 years of projected mortality improvement using Scale BB published by
the Society of Actuaries.
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COUNTY OF MONO

Required Supplementary Information
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability / (Asset) and Related Ratios as of the

Measurement Date

Safety Plans — Cost-Sharing Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plans

Safety Plans

June 30, 2018

Reporting Fiscal Year
(Measurement Date)
June 30, 2016

June 30, 2017

(June 30, 2016)

(June 30, 2015+)

June 30, 2015
(June 30, 2014*)

Last 10 years* (June 30, 2017)
Proportion of the net pension liability 0.33626%
Proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 20,092,166
Covered payroll $ 5,079,832

Proportionate share of the net pension liability as percentage of

covered payroll 395.53%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension

liability 70.76%

0.33674%

$ 17,440,742
$ 4,741,246
367.85%
73.60%

*Fiscal year 2015 (measurement date June 30, 2014) was the first year of implementation.

Additional years will be presented as they become available.
**As restated.

Schedule of Pension Plan Contributions

Safety Plans — Cost-Sharing Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plans

Safety Plans

0.32974%

$ 13,586,740
$ 5575424
243.69%
78.39%

0.18612%

$ 11,581,122
$ 5,969,340
194.01%
81.26%

Reporting Fiscal Year

Last 10 fiscal years* June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015

Actuarially determined contribution $ 1,741,323 $ 1562910 $ 1,414648 $ 1,451,026
Contributions related to the actuarially determined

contribution 1,741,323 1,562,910 1,414,648 1,451,026
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - 8 - $ - $ -
County's covered payroll $ 5079832 $ 4741246 $ 5575424 $ 5,969,340
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 34.28% 32.96% 25.37% 24.31%

*Fiscal year 2015 (measurement date June 30, 2014) was the first year of implementation.

Additional years will be presented as they become available.
**Restated.
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COUNTY OF MONO

Required Supplementary Information
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB)

Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios

2018(1)
Total OPEB liability
Service cost $ 338,631
Interest 2,085,442
Benefit payments (2,108,215)
Net change in total OPEB liability 315,858
Total OPEB liability - beginning 34,066,578
Total OPEB liability - ending (a) $ 34,382,436
Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer $ 3,108,215
Net investment income 1,853,936
Benefit payments (2,108,215)
Net change in plan fiduciary net position 2,853,936
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 14,626,192
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) $ 17,480,128
Net OPEB liability - ending (a) - (b) $ 16,902,308
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB
liability 50.84%
Covered payroll $ 3,115,400
Net OPERB liability as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 542.54%

(1)  Fiscal year 2018 was the first year of implementation of GASB 75; therefore, only one year is shown.
(2)  The OPEB plan s a closed plan with no new members eligible for participation. Therefore, covered payroll and the net OPEB liability as a percentage of covered-

employee payroll were not applicable.

Schedule of the County’s OPEB Contributions

2018(1)
Actuarially determined contribution $ 2,064,918
Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contribution 2,702,041
Contribution deficiency (excess) (637,123)
Covered payroll $ 3,115,400
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 86.7%

(1)  Fiscal year 2018 was the first year of implementation of GASB 75: therefore, only one year is shown.
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COUNTY OF MONO

Required Supplementary Information
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Notes to OBEP Schedules

Valuation date:
Methods and assumptions used to determine
Contribution rates:

Actuarial cost method

Amortization method

Amortization period

Asset valuation method

Inflation

Healthcare cost trend rates

Investment rate of return

Mortality

January 1, 2016

Entry age normal

Level percentage of payroll

22 years

Market value of assets

2.50%

Non-Medicare - 5.25% for 2019 and 2020, decreasing
to an ultimate rate of 4.50% in 2070 and later years.
Medicare — 5.50% for 2019 and 2020, decreasing

to an ultimate rate of 4.50% in 2085 and later years.
6.25% net of OPEB plan investment expense, including
inflation.

2014 CalPERS experience study
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COUNTY OF MONO

Budgetary Comparison Schedule

General Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Revenues
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Fines, forfeitures and penalties
Use of money and property
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Other revenues
Other financing sources
Transfers in

Total Revenues

Expenditures

General government
Board of Supervisors
Administrative Officer
Department of Finance

General Fund Operating Transfers

Assessor

County Counsel

Election Division

Information Technology

IT - Radio

Public Works

County Facilities

Economic Development
Total general government

Public protection
County MOE
Public Defender
Grand Jury

District Attorney - Prosecution

Victim/Witness

Sheriff

Boating Law Enforcement
Search and Rescue

Court Security

Jail

Emergency Services
Adult Probation Services
Juvenile Probation Services
Agricultural Commissioner
County Clerk / Recorder
Animal Control

Planning & Transportation
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Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with

Original Final Amounts Final Budget
$ 23,153,000  $ 23,153,000 $ 24,949,712 $ 1,796,712
321,500 321,500 340,140 18,640
697,375 697,375 1,069,705 372,330
192,113 192,113 242,266 50,153
5,218,359 5,227,654 4,778,673 (448,981)
4,125,168 4,125,168 4,678,660 553,492
10,500 10,500 25,730 15,230
224,000 224,000 224,000 -
2,310,018 2,400,472 1,558,679 (841,793)
36,252,033 36,351,782 37,867,565 1,515,783
515,459 515,459 486,893 28,566
1,280,317 1,280,317 1,095,106 185,211
2,406,158 2,406,158 2,187,697 218,461
3,434,468 3,616,890 3,537,097 79,793
1,332,241 1,332,241 1,082,591 249,650
1,063,061 1,063,061 1,019,092 43,969
275,643 275,643 170,454 105,189
1,871,516 2,051,516 1,692,103 359,413
289,000 356,061 288,999 67,062
1,065,276 1,065,276 882,740 182,536
2,709,853 2,709,853 2,489,514 220,339
555,623 555,623 491,402 64,221
16,798,615 17,228,098 15,423,688 1,804,410
765,331 765,331 765,072 259
718,500 768,500 711,631 56,869
8,300 8,300 4,744 3,556
2,052,450 2,056,450 1,764,398 292,052
123,996 133,504 132,824 680
5,926,688 6,236,529 6,211,202 25,327
135,650 135,650 139,581 (3,931)
45,275 45,275 47,709 (2,434)
547,932 547,932 401,688 146,244
3,243,245 3,026,245 2,716,459 309,786
256,000 255,574 175,552 80,022
1,695,410 1,715,410 1,714,722 688
334,007 334,007 159,788 174,219
150,000 160,000 156,366 3,634
722,489 722,489 750,655 (28,166)
674,657 674,657 626,700 47,957
1,700,450 1,700,450 1,308,097 392,353
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COUNTY OF MONO

Budgetary Comparison Schedule (continued)

General Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget
Expenditures (continued)
Public protection (continued)
Housing Development 428,030 428,030 103,091 324,939
Code Enforcement 216,152 216,152 135,728 80,424
Planning Commission 16,295 16,295 15,203 1,092
LAFCO 11,582 11,582 8,914 2,668
Building Inspector 492,887 492,887 337,184 155,703
Total public protection 20,265,326 20,451,249 18,387,308 2,063,941
Health and sanitation
Bridgeport Clinic 124,500 124,500 - 124,500
Paramedic Program 4,241,179 4,241,179 4,157,791 83,388
Total health and sanitation 4,365,679 4,365,679 4,157,791 207,888
Public assistance
Veterans' Services Officer 38,568 38,568 39,922 (1,354)
Farm Advisor 25,000 25,000 25,566 (566)
Total public assistance 63,568 63,568 65,488 (1,920)
Contingency 420,000 10,552 - 10,552
Total expenditures 41,913,188 42,119,146 38,034,275 4,084,871
Net Change in Fund Balances (5,661,155) (5,767,364) (166,710) 5,600,654
Budgetary Fund Balances - Beginning of Year 10,289,112 10,289,112 10,289,112
Budgetary Fund Balances - End of Year $ 4627957 $ 4521748  $ 10,122,402 $ 5,600,654
Reconciliation of Budgetary Inflows and Outflows to GAAP Revenues and Expenditures
Sources/inflows of resources
Actual amounts available for appropriation from the budgetary comparison schedule $ 37,867,565
Differences - budget to GAAP:
Revenues from sub-funds combined with the General Fund for financial reporting purposes are
not budgeted as available for appropriation for budgetary purposes 387,608
Federal property in lieu of tax is an inflow of budgetary resources in the year following receipt but
for financial reporting purposes is reported in the year received (1,262,865)
A87 cost reimbursement is a budgetary resource but is not current-year revenue for financia
reporting purposes (1,311,141)
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt are inflows of budgetary resources but are not revenues
for financial reporting purposes (224,000)
Transfers from other funds are inflows of budgetary resources but are not revenues for financia
reporting purposes (1,558,679)
Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances - governmental funds $ 33,898,488
continued
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COUNTY OF MONO

Budgetary Comparison Schedule (continued)
General Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Budgeted Amounts

Original

Final

Actual
Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget

Reconciliation of Budgetary Inflows and Outflows to GAAP Revenues and Expenditures (Continued)

Uses/outflows of resources:

Actual charges to appropriations from the budgetary comparison schedule above

Differences - budget to GAAP:

Expenditures from sub-funds combined with the General Fund for financial reporting purposes are
not budgeted as charges to appropriations for budgetary purposes
A87 cost reimbursement reported as a reduction of expenditures for financial reporting purposes but
is not budgeted as a charge to appropriations for budgetary purposes
Transfers to other funds are outflows of budgetary resources but are not expenditures for financia

reporting purposes

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures and

changes in fund balances - governmental fund

86

$ 38,034,275

601,987

(1,311,141)

(4,213,719)
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COUNTY OF MONO
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Road Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Revenues
Licenses and permits
Fines, forfeitures and penalties
Use of money and property
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Other revenues
Other financing sources
Transfers in
Total Revenues

Expenditures

Public ways and facilities
Total Expenditures

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances - Beginning of Year

Fund Balances - End of Year

Reconciliation of Budgetary Inflows and Outflows to GAAP Revenues and Expenditures

Sources/inflows of resources

Actual amounts available for appropriation from the budgetary comparison schedule

Differences - budget to GAAP:

Transfers from other funds are inflows of budgetary resources but are not revenues for financial

reporting purposes

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances - governmental funds

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget

$ 10,000 $ 10,000 $ 14,266  $ 4,266
50,000 50,000 68,870 18,870

- 11,181 11,181

3,266,130 3,340,468 3,092,334 (248,134)
435,000 435,000 474,465 39,465

- - 167 167

2,000 2,000 - (2,000)
720,780 756,415 1,019,418 263,003
4,483,910 4,593,883 4,680,701 86,818
5,834,319 5,589,385 4,101,159 1,488,226
5,834,319 5,589,385 4,101,159 1,488,226
(1,350,409) (995,502) 579,542 1,575,044

1,402,555 1,402,555 1,402,555

$ 52,146 $ 407,053 $ 1982097 $ 1575044
$ 4,680,701

(1,019,418)

8 3661283
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COUNTY OF MONO
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Realignment

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget
Revenues
Use of money and property $ - $ $ 96,833 % 96,833
Intergovernmental 3,054,969 3,054,969 3,536,647 481,678
Total Revenues 3,054,969 3,054,969 3,633,480 578,511
Expenditures
Public protection 30,750 30,750 7,722 23,028
Transfers out 3,366,277 3,410,927 2,474,705 936,222
Total Expenditures 3,397,027 3,441,677 2,482,427 959,250
Net Change in Fund Balances (342,058) (386,708) 1,151,053 1,537,761
Fund Balances - Beginning of Year 6,178,977 6,178,977 6,178,977
Fund Balances - End of Year $ 5836919 $ 5792269 $ 7,330,030 $ 1,537,761
Reconciliation of Budgetary Inflows and Outflows to GAAP Revenues and Expenditures
Uses/outflows of resources:
Actual charges to appropriations from the budgetary comparison schedule above $ 2482427
Differences - budget to GAAP:
Transfers to other funds are outflows of budgetary resources but are not expenditures for financial
reporting purposes (2,474,705)
Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures and
changes in fund balances - governmental fund $ 7,722
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COUNTY OF MONO

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Mental Health Services Act
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Revenues
Use of money and property
Intergovernmental
Total Revenues

Expenditures
Health and sanitation
Contingency

Total Expenditures
Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances - Beginning of Year

Fund Balances - End of Year

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget
$ 35000 $ 35000 $ 88,013 % 53,013
1,603,255 1,603,255 1,819,686 216,431
1,638,255 1,638,255 1,907,699 269,444
1,576,647 1,576,647 1,093,263 483,384
120,000 120,000 - 120,000
1,696,647 1,696,647 1,093,263 603,384
(58,392) (58,392) 814,436 872,828
5,740,721 5,740,721 5,740,721
$ 5682329 $ 5682329 $ 6555157 $§ 872,828
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COUNTY OF MONO

Required Supplementary Information
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

BUDGETARY BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

In accordance with the provisions of Sections 29000 and 29143, inclusive, of the California Government Code and
other statutory provisions, commonly known as the County Budget Act, the County prepares a budget for each fiscal
year. A tentative budget approved no later than June 30, of each year establishes the legal authority for county
spending in the following fiscal year until a final budget is adopted on or before October 2, Prior to adoption of the
final budget, a public hearing is held to receive comments prior to adoption.

From the effective date of the budget, which is adopted and controlled at the department level, the amounts stated
therein as proposed expenditures become appropriations to the various County departments. However, the legal level
of control is the fund level. The Board of Supervisors may amend the budget by a four-fifths majority vote during the
fiscal year. Department heads may, upon approval of the Finance Director, make transfers from one object or purpose
to another within the same budget unit. All other budget amendments must be approved by the Board. It is this final
revised budget that is presented in the required supplementary information section of this financial report.
Appropriations lapse at year end.

Budgets are adopted for the General Fund, most special revenue funds, capital project funds and the debt service
fund. Accounting principles applied for purposes of developing data on a budgetary basis are materially the same as
those used to present financial statements in conformity with GAAP, except that transfers are regarded as inflows of
resources for budgetary purposes and not revenues for GAAP financial statement presentation purposes and transfers
out are considered outflows of resources for budgetary purposes but not expenditures for GAAP financial statement
presentation purposes. Federal payment in lieu of taxes (PILT) revenue is reported in the year received for GAAP
financial statement presentation purposes but reported in the following year for budgetary purposes.
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COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND STATEMENTS
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are restricted
or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than debt service or capital projects.

Capital Project Funds are used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted, committed or assigned
to expenditure for capital outlays, including that acquisition or construction of capital facilities and other capital assets.

Debt Service Funds are used to account for and report the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general
long-term debt principal and interest.
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COUNTY OF MONO

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
June 30, 2018

ASSETS

Cash and investments
Accounts receivable

Due from other governments
Due from other funds
Prepaid expenses

Loans receivable

Total Assets

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS

OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries and benefits
Due to other funds
Advances from other funds
Unearned revenues
Total Liabilities

Deferred inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenues

Fund Balance

Nonspendable

Restricted

Committed

Assigned

Unassigned
Total Fund Balances
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows
and Fund Balances

Special Revenue

Community Revolving
Public Behavioral Social Development Loan
Health Health Services Grants Fund
$ 442517 $ 1,013,081 $ 2214561 $ $ 300,000
15,531 14,847 - -
338,352 184,027 110,962
149,909 - -
6,468 18,831 -
- 911,863
$ 952,777 $ 1,013,081 $ 2432266 $ 1022825 $ 300,000
$ 40946 $ 30856 $ 76,764 $ 7298 %
58,723 28,921 92,843 -
- - - 130,765 -
- 99,013
43,573 - - - -
143,242 59,777 169,607 138,063 99,013
197,703 50,699 110,962
6,468 18,831 911,863
605,364 953,304 2,193,129 - -
- - - 200,987
- - (138,063) -
611,832 953,304 2,211,960 773,800 200,987
$ 952777 $ 1013081 $ 2432266 $ 1022825 $ 300,000
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COUNTY OF MONO

Combining Balance Sheet (continued)
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
June 30, 2018

ASSETS

Cash and investments
Accounts receivable

Due from other governments
Due from other funds
Prepaid expenses

Loans receivable

Total Assets

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries and benefits
Due to other funds
Advances from other funds
Unearned revenues
Total Liabilities

Deferred inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenues

Fund Balance

Nonspendable

Restricted

Committed

Assigned

Unassigned
Total Fund Balances
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows
and Fund Balances

Special Revenue

Disaster
Assistance Bio Fish and
Fund Geothermal Terrorism Game Tobacco
$ 286,759 $ 188,080 $ - $ 33583 $ 62,497
- 103,645 - - -
510,134 148 114,683
685
$ 796,893 $ 291873 $ 114683 $ 33583 $ 63,182
$ 440680 $ 103645 $ 5858 $ 3997 % 8,021
- - 7,305 7,198
150,470 -
440,680 103,645 163,633 3,997 15,219
510,134 71,375
- - 685
188,228 29,586 47,278
(153,921) (120,325) - -
(153,921) 188,228 (120,325) 29,586 47,963
$ 796,893 $ 291873 $ 114683 $ 33583 $ 63,182
continued
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COUNTY OF MONO

Combining Balance Sheet (continued)
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
June 30, 2018

Special Revenue

Emergency County Various
Medical Mitigation Service Development Restricted
Services Fee Areas Impact Grants
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 301,706 $ 123317 $1910,252 $ 217,183 $ 838,051
Accounts receivable - - - - 9,692
Due from other governments - - 8,045 - 193,693
Due from other funds - -
Prepaid expenses
Loans receivable
Total Assets $ 301,706 $ 123317 $1918297 $ 217,183 $ 1,041,436
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ - $ - 8 2470 $ - $ 15143
Accrued salaries and benefits - - 1,151 - -
Due to other funds -
Advances from other funds
Unearned revenues - - - - -
Total Liabilities - - 3,621 - 15,143
Deferred inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenues - - - - 183,621
Fund Balance
Nonspendable - - - - -
Restricted 301,706 123,317 1,914,676 217,183 842,672
Committed - - - - -
Assigned
Unassigned - - - - -
Total Fund Balances 301,706 123,317 1,914,676 217,183 842,672
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows
and Fund Balances $ 301,706 $ 123317 $1918297 $ 217,183 $ 1,041,436
continued
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COUNTY OF MONO

Combining Balance Sheet (continued)
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
June 30, 2018

ASSETS

Cash and investments
Accounts receivable

Due from other governments
Due from other funds
Prepaid expenses

Loans receivable

Total Assets

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS

OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries and benefits
Due to other funds
Advances from other funds
Unearned revenues
Total Liabilities

Deferred inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenues

Fund Balance
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned
Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows

and Fund Balances

Capital Projects

Total Miscellaneous Criminal Civic Total
Special Capital Justice Center Capital
Revenue Improvements Facility Project Projects
$ 7931587 $ 622953 $ 365699 $ 83500 $ 1,072,152
143,715 - - - -
1,460,044
149,909
25,984
911,863
$10,623,102 $ 622953 $ 365699 $ 83500 $ 1,072,152
$ 735678 $ 127689 $ 311 $ 20625 $ 148,625
196,141 - - - -
281,235
99,013
43,573 - - - -
1,355,640 127,689 311 20,625 148,625
1,124,494
937,847 - -
7,416,443 365,388 365,388
200,987 - - - -
495,264 62,875 558,139
(412,309) - - - -
8,142,968 495,264 365,388 62,875 923,527
$10,623,102 $ 622953 $ 365699 $ 83500 $ 1,072,152
continued
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COUNTY OF MONO

Combining Balance Sheet (continued)
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
June 30, 2018

ASSETS

Cash and investments
Accounts receivable

Due from other governments
Due from other funds
Prepaid expenses

Loans receivable

Total Assets

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS

OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries and benefits
Due to other funds
Advances from other funds
Unearned revenues
Total Liabilities

Deferred inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenues

Fund Balance
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned
Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows

and Fund Balances

99

Debt Service

Debt Service

Fund

Total

$ 193,569

$ 9,197,308
143,715
1,460,044
149,909
25,984
911,863

$ 193,569

$ 11,888,823

$ 884,303
196,141
281,235

99,013
43,573

1,504,265

1,124,494

193,569

937,847
7,781,831
200,987
751,708
(412,300)

193,569

9,260,064

$ 193,569

$ 11,888,823




COUNTY OF MONO

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures

and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

REVENUES

Taxes

Licenses and permits

Fines, forfeitures and penalties
Use of money and property

Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current

General government

Public protection

Public ways and facilities
Health and sanitation

Public assistance
Debt service
Principal

Interest and issuance cost

Capital outlay

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds of long-term debt
Proceeds from sale of capital assets

Total Expenditures

Transfers in
Transfers out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year, restated
FUND BALANCES, END OF THE YEAR

Special Revenue

Community Revolving
Public Behavioral Social Development Loan
Health Health Services Grants Fund
$ - % $ $ $
286,793
778 6,899 - -
4,914 6,706 25,914 (1,075)
2,020,719 1,791,084 3,747,658 437,076 -
272,681 103,536 126,808 200,987
1,236 - 3,827 - -
2,587,121 1,908,225 3,904,207 436,001 200,987
- 22,118
2,223,617 1,616,164 - -
- 4,668,891 235,743
2,223,617 1,616,164 4,668,891 257,861 -
363,504 292,061 (764,684) 178,140 200,987
22,932 92,069 1,330,670 -
(5,211) (17,721) (221,785)
22,932 86,858 1,312,949 (221,785)
386,436 378,919 548,265 (43,645) 200,987
225,396 574,385 1,663,695 817,445 -
$ 611832 $ 953304 $ 2211960 $ 773,800 $ 200,987
continued
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COUNTY OF MONO

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures

and Changes in Fund Balances (continued)
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Special Revenue

Disaster
Assistance Bio Fish and
Fund Geothermal Terrorism Game Tobacco
REVENUES
Taxes $ $ - % $ - %
Licenses and permits - -
Fines, forfeitures and penalties - - 23,825
Use of money and property 8,470 4,159 (1,477) 287 56
Intergovernmental 445,150 409,132 362,043
Charges for services -
Miscellaneous 437,426 - - -
Total Revenues 453,620 441,585 407,655 24,112 362,099
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government -
Public protection 396,005 89,752 3,997 -
Public ways and facilities 679,084 - -
Health and sanitation - 315,581 326,019
Public assistance - - -
Debt service
Principal - - -
Interest and issuance cost - - -
Capital outlay - - - - -
Total Expenditures 679,084 396,005 405,333 3,997 326,019
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (225,464) 45,580 2,322 20,115 36,080
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds of long-term debt - -
Proceeds from sale of capital assets -
Transfers in - - - -
Transfers out (288,696) (120,000) - -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (288,696) (120,000) - -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (514,160) (74,420) 2,322 20,115 36,080
Fund Balances, Beginning of Year, restated 360,239 262,648 (122,647) 9,471 11,883
FUND BALANCES, END OF THE YEAR $ (153921) $ 188228 $ (120,325) $ 29586 % 47,963
continued
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COUNTY OF MONO

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures

and Changes in Fund Balances (continued)

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Special Revenue

Emergency County Various
Medical Mitigation Service Development Restricted
Services Fee Area Impact Grants
REVENUES
Taxes $ - % $ 228847 % $ -
Licenses and permits - - 16,801
Fines, forfeitures and penalties 103,745 - - - 2,000
Use of money and property 3,157 1,760 30,107 3,101 11,547
Intergovernmental - - 1,033,579
Charges for services - 148,165 6,684
Miscellaneous - 17,696 - 81,077
Total Revenues 106,902 1,760 424,815 3,101 1,151,688

EXPENDITURES
Current

General government - 189,714 -

Public protection - - 1,159,032

Public ways and facilities -

Health and sanitation 626 -

Public assistance - 71,703
Debt service

Principal -

Interest and issuance cost - -
Capital outlay - - - -

Total Expenditures 626 189,714 1,230,735

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures 106,276 1,760 235,101 3,101 (79,047)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds of long-term debt - - -
Proceeds from sale of capital assets - 13,775
Transfers in - - 84,223
Transfers out (539,635) - (126,662)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) - - (539,635) - (28,664)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 106,276 1,760 (304,534) 3,101 (107,711)
Fund Balances, Beginning of Year, restated 195,430 121,557 2,219,210 214,082 950,383
FUND BALANCES, END OF THE YEAR $ 301,706 $ 123317 $ 1914676 $ 217,183 $ 842,672

continued
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COUNTY OF MONO

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances (continued)
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Capital Projects

Total Miscellaneous Criminal Civic Total
Special Capital Justice Center Capital
Revenue Improvements Facility Project Projects
REVENUES
Taxes $ 228847 % $ - % $
Licenses and permits 303,594
Fines, forfeitures and penalties 137,247
Use of money and property 97,626
Intergovernmental 10,246,441 - -
Charges for services 858,861 - -
Miscellaneous 541,262 550 - 550
Total Revenues 12,413,878 550 - 550

EXPENDITURES
Current

General government 189,714 - -

Public protection 1,670,904 - -

Public ways and facilities 679,084 - -

Health and sanitation 4,482,007 - -

Public assistance 4,976,337 - -
Debt service

Principal - -

Interest and issuance cost - - - -
Capital outlay - 918,110 19,557 87,125 1,024,792

Total Expenditures 11,998,046 918,110 19,557 87,125 1,024,792

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures 415,832 (917,560) (19,557) (87,125) (1,024,242)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds of long-term debt -
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 13,775
Transfers in 1,529,894 857,342 300,000 150,000 1,307,342
Transfers out (1,319,710) (130,000) - (130,000)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 223,959 727,342 300,000 150,000 1,177,342
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 639,791 (190,218) 280,443 62,875 153,100
Fund Balances, Beginning of Year, restated 7,503,177 685,482 84,945 - 770,427
FUND BALANCES, END OF THE YEAR $ 8142968 $ 495264 $ 365388 % 62,875 $ 923,527

continued
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COUNTY OF MONO

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances (continued)
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

REVENUES
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Fines, forfeitures and penalties
Use of money and property
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current
General government
Public protection
Public ways and facilities
Health and sanitation
Public assistance
Debt service
Principal
Interest and issuance cost
Capital outlay
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds of long-term debt
Proceeds of long-term debt
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year, restated
FUND BALANCES, END OF THE YEAR

Debt Services

Debt Service
Fund Total

$ $ 228,847
303,594
- 137,247
97,626
10,246,441
858,861
541,812
12,414,428
189,714
1,670,904
- 679,084
4,482,007
4,976,337
866,684 866,684
54,770 54,770
- 1,024,792
921,454 13,944,292
(921,454) (1,529,864)
21,750 21,750
- 13,775
948,748 3,785,984
(21,750) (1,471,460)
948,748 2,350,049
27,294 820,185
166,275 8,439,879
$ 193,569 $ 9,260,064
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NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private
business enterprises where the intent of the governing body is that the costs of providing goods or services to the
general public on a continuing basis be financed primarily through user charges; or where the County has decided that
periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred and/or net income is appropriate for capital
maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability or other purposes.

105



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

106



COUNTY OF MONO

Combining Statement of Net Position
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds

June 30, 2018

Campgrounds Cemeteries Total
ASSETS
Current Assets
Pooled cash and investments $ 79,081 % 32252 % 111,333
Accounts receivable - - -
Total Assets 79,081 32,252 111,333
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable 2,492 10 2,502
Total Liabilities 2,492 10 2,502
NET POSITION
Restricted - 4,648 4,648
Unrestricted 76,589 27,594 104,183

Total Net Position $ 76589 % 32242 % 108,831
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COUNTY OF MONO

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Campgrounds Cemeteries Total
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services $ 42339 % 5,456 47,795
Total Operating Revenues 42,339 5,456 47,795
OPERATING EXPENSES
Services and supplies 35,237 15,899 51,136
Total Operating Expenses 35,237 15,899 51,136
Operating Income (loss) 7,102 (10,443) (3,341)
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Interest income (expenses) 1,103 429 1,532
Total Non-Operating Revenues 1,103 429 1,532
Income (Loss) Before Transfers 8,205 (10,014) (1,809)

Transfers In - 20,000 20,000
CHANGE IN NET POSITION 8,205 9,986 18,191
Net Position, Beginning of Year 68,384 22,256 90,640
NET POSITION, END OF YEAR $ 76,589  $ 32,242 108,831
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COUNTY OF MONO
Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Campgrounds Cemeteries Total
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash receipts from customers $ 45167  $ 6,662 $ 51,829
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services (35,198) (15,889) (51,087)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 9,969 (9,227) 742
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers received from other funds 20,000 20,000
Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing 20,000 20,000
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received (paid) 1,103 429 1,532
Net Cash Used in Capital and Related Financing Activities 1,103 429 1,532
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash
and Cash Equivalents 11,072 11,202 22,274
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 68,009 21,050 89,059
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $ 79,081 $ 32252 % 111,333
Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss)
to Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Operating income (loss) $ 7102 % (10,443) 3 (3,341)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided (used)
by operating activities:
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Receivables 2,828 1,206 4,034
Payables 39 10 49
Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Operating Activities $ 999 $ 9,227) % 742
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by one department or

agency to other departments or agencies of the government and to other government units, on a cost reimbursement
basis.
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COUNTY OF MONO
Combining Statement of Net Position
Internal Service Funds

June 30, 2018

Insurance Tech Refresh
Copier Pool Motor Pool Pool Pool Total
ASSETS
Current Assets
Pooled cash and investments $ 51695 $ 1493621 $ 212,108 $ 77436 $ 1,834,860
Cash with fiscal agent - - 45,413 45,413
Deposits with others - - 3,773,417 3,773,417
Accounts receivable - 54 - - 54
Total Current Assets 51,695 1,493,675 4,030,938 77,436 5,653,744
Noncurrent Assets
Capital assets:
Depreciable, net 96,923 1,727,966 1,824,889
Total Assets 148,618 3,221,641 4,030,938 77,436 7,478,633
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred amounts related to pensions 30,559 30,559
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable 13,274 10,365 4,853 6,542 35,034
Salaries and benefits payable 8,327 2,871 - 11,198
Claims Liability - - 3,164,755 - 3,164,755
Total Current Liabilities 13,274 18,692 3,172,479 6,542 3,210,987
Long-term Liabilities
Net pension liability 130,927 - - 130,927
Total Liabilities 13,274 149,619 3,172,479 6,542 3,341,914
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred amounts related to pensions 6,007 6,007
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 96,923 1,727,966 - - 1,824,889
Unrestricted 38,421 1,368,608 858,459 70,894 2,336,382
Total Net Position $ 135344 $ 309574 $ 858459 $ 70,894 $ 4,161,271
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COUNTY OF MONO

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and

Changes in Net Position
Internal Service Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services
TotalOperating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and benefits
Services and supplies

Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income (LosS)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest income (expense)
Sale of capital assets
Miscellaneous
Total Non-Operating Revenues

Income (Loss) Before Transfers

Transfers in

CHANGE IN NET POSITION
Net Position, Beginning of Year

NET POSITION, END OF YEAR

Copier Insurance Tech Refresh

Pool Motor Pool Pool Pool Total
95,170 1,508,040 2,693,065 168,397 4,464,672
95,170 1,508,040 2,693,065 168,397 4,464,672
66,379 130,680 - 197,059
64,244 242,902 2,098,503 163,146 2,568,795
26,903 410,302 - - 437,205
01,147 719,583 2,229,183 163,146 3,203,059
4,023 788,457 463,882 5,251 1,261,613
518 16,410 2,387 1,243 20,558
61 51,348 - - 51,409
- 35,926 46,356 - 82,282
579 103,684 48,743 1,243 154,249
4,602 892,141 512,625 6,494 1,415,862
554,914 554,914
4,602 1,447,055 512,625 6,494 1,970,776
130,742 1,649,519 345,834 64,400 2,190,495
$ 135344 $ 3,096,574 $ 858459 $ 70,894 $ 4,161,271
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COUNTY OF MONO

Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Internal Service Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash receipts from interfund services provided
Cash paid to employees for services
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Net transfers in
Other revenues
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital Financing

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments related to the acquisition of capital assets
Sale of capital assets
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related
Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received (paid)
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash
and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss)
to Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities
Operating income (loss)
provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation
Changes in assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable
Deposits with others
Deferred outflows
Claims liability
Accrued salaries and benefits
Payables
Net Pension liability
Deferred inflows
Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Operating Activities

Insurance Tech Refresh

Copier Pool Motor Pool Pool Pool Total
$ 95,170  $ 1508986  $ 2,693,065 $ 168,397 $ 4,465,618
- (219,828) (127,809) (347,637)
(70,383) (273,523) (2,444,188) (162,029) (2,950,123)
24,787 1,015,635 121,068 6,368 1,167,858
554,914 - 554,914
35,926 46,356 82,282
590,840 46,356 637,196
(39,190) (956,565) (995,755)
116 51,348 51,464
(39,074) (905,217) (944,291)
519 16,410 2,387 1,243 20,559
519 16,410 2,387 1,243 20,559
(13,768) 717,668 169,811 7,611 881,322
65,463 775,953 87,710 69,825 998,951
$ 51,695  $1493621 $ 257521 $ 77,436 $ 1,880,273
$ 4023 $ 788457 $ 463,882 % 5251  $ 1,261,613
26,903 410,302 437,205
946 - 946
- (574,380) (574,380)
37,925 - 37,925
- 224,752 224,752
- 2,671 2,871 5,542
(6,139) (30,621) 3,943 1,117 (31,700)
- (188,158) - (188,158)
(5,887) (5,887)
$ 24,787  $ 1015635 $ 121,068 $ 6,368  $ 1,167,858
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INVESTMENT TRUST FUND

The Investment Trust Fund accounts for the assets of legally separate entities that deposit cash with the County
Treasurer. These entities include school and community college districts, other special districts governed by local
boards, regional boards and authorities and pass through funds for tax collections for cities. These funds represent
the assets, primarily cash and investments, and the related liability of the County to dishurse these monies on demand.
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COUNTY OF MONO

Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
Investment Trust Fund
June 30, 2018

ASSETS
Pooled cash and investments

Total Assets

NET POSITION
Net position held in trust for investment
pool participants

119

Local School
Districts Funds Total
21,360,945 22,242,145 43,603,090
21,360,945 22,242 145 43,603,090
21,360,945 22,242,145 43,603,090




COUNTY OF MONO

Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Investment Trust Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Additions
Contributions
Investment income

Total Additions

Deductions:
Distribution from pooled investment

Change in Net Position

Beginning net position held in
trust for pool participants

Ending net position held for
pool participants

120

Local School
Districts Districts Total
26,536,895 $ 48,965,005 $ 75,501,900
306,809 353,604 660,413
26,843,704 49,318,609 76,162,313
23,140,272 50,514,586 73,654,858
3,703,432 (1,195,977) 2,507,455
17,657,513 23,438,122 41,095,635
21,360,945 $ 22242145 $ 43,603,090
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121



COUNTY OF MONO

Tax Levies and Collections
General Fund Secured Roll
1997-98 through 2017-18

Secured & Current Percent
Fiscal Unsecured Taxes Percent Delinquent Total of Levy
Year Tax Levy Collected of Levy Collections Collections Collected
1997-98 5,977,025 5,236,546 87.61% 175,404 5,411,950 90.55%
1998-99 6,120,181 5,420,929 88.57% 185,983 5,606,912 91.61%
1999-00 6,420,655 5,699,096 88.77% 166,327 5,865,423 91.35%
2000-01 6,880,850 6,464,711 93.95% 139,088 6,603,799 95.97%
2001-02 7,073,947 6,992,736 98.85% 151,339 7,144,075 100.99%
2002-03 8,271,224 8,307,872 100.44% 250,939 8,558,811 103.48%
2003-04 8,426,505 8,523,576 101.15% 69,133 8,592,709 101.97%
2004-05 9,536,891 9,449,034 99.08% 58,669 9,507,703 99.69%
2005-06 11,362,185 10,892,350 95.86% 85,125 10,977,475 96.61%
2006-07 13,630,827 13,805,122 101.28% 122,857 13,927,980 102.18%
2007-08 15,706,796 16,120,226 102.63% 85,260 16,205,486 103.17%
2008-09 17,388,237 16,726,245 96.19% 145,777 16,872,022 97.03%
2009-10 17,600,670 16,124,835 91.61% 604,423 16,729,257 95.05%
2010-11 16,514,331 14,230,471 86.17% 578,940 14,809,410 89.68%
2011-12 14,392,453 14,296,942 99.34% 505,527 14,802,468 102.85%
2012-13 15,368,593 15,038,334 97.85% 340,237 15,378,571 100.06%
2013-14 15,889,566 14,384,146 90.53% 435,043 14,819,189 93.26%
2014-15 16,152,775 15,713,842 97.28% 205,656 15,919,498 98.56%
2015-16 16,486,505 16,415,898 99.57% 199,666 16,615,564 100.78%
2016-17 16,911,949 16,484,906 97.47% 170,941 16,655,848 98.49%
2017-18 17,334,675 16,920,747 97.61% 363,296 17,284,043 99.71%

** Includes all charges, paid and unpaid. Redeemed delinquent taxes now included in taxes collected section.
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COUNTY OF MONO

Property Tax Value Allocation Collection
1997-98 through 2017-18

AB-8 VALUES
Real Property Personal
Fiscal Year Inc. HOPTR % Chg Property % Chg Total % Chg
1997-98 1,632,980,213  2.19% $ 225,309,948  0.21% $ 1,858,290,161  1.95%
1998-99 1,676,009,395  2.64% 229,640,519  1.92% 1,905,649,914  2.55%
1999-00 1,779,593,856  6.18% 229,350,947  -0.13% 2,008,944,803  5.42%
2000-01 1,989,414,352  11.79% 196,039,081 -14.52% 2,185,453,433  8.79%
2001-02 2,215,280,910  11.35% 224,479,974  14.51% 2,439,760,884 11.64%
2002-03 2,430,999,676  9.74% 252,782,477 12.61% 2,683,782,153 10.00%
2003-04 2,762,004,268 13.62% 265,105,692  4.88% 3,027,109,960 12.79%
2004-05 3,085,979,775  11.73% 267,934,406  1.07% 3,353,914,181 10.80%
2005-06 3,550,462,443  15.05% 260,084,308  -2.93% 3,810,546,751 13.61%
2006-07 4,278,126,257  20.49% 281,570,435  8.26% 4,559,696,692 19.66%
2007-08 5,015,813,891  17.24% 302,045,338  7.27% 5,317,859,229 16.63%
2008-09 5,554,102,507 10.73% 318,725,408  5.52% 5,872,827,915 10.44%
2009-10 5,634,656,131  1.45% 282,290,022 -11.43% 5,916,946,153  0.75%
2010-11 5,096,159,613  -9.56% 418,506,072  48.25% 5,514,665,685 -6.80%
2011-12 4,964,600,710  -2.58% 413444230 -1.21% 5,378,044,940 -2.48%
2012-13 4,957,878,484  -0.14% 360,781,678 -12.74% 5,318,660,162 -1.10%
2013-14 4,911,028,555  -0.94% 383,101,102  6.19% 5,294,129,657 -0.46%
2014-15 4,990,657,506  1.62% 392,756,377  2.52% 5,383,413,883 1.69%
2015-16 5,106,845,276  2.33% 389,673,020  -0.79% 5,496,518,296  2.10%
2016-17 5,244,471,009  2.69% 394,428,705  1.22% 5,638,899,714  2.59%
2017-18 5,375,320,883  2.50% 401,388,290  1.76% 5,776,709,173  2.44%
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COUNTY OF MONO
Property Tax Allocation Collection

County Wide Tax Limitation is 1 percent of Full Cash Value of $1.00 Per Hundred Dollars of Full Cash Value per
Proposition 13.

Distribution:

The tax levy generated by the $1.00 rate is distributed to various taxing agencies using factors based upon tax

collections of the three previous years (Local Agencies) and one year for schools (1977-78).
Voter approved debt service is exempt from the 1 percent limitation.

COUNTY OF MONO
TAX RATES
2017-18
TAX AREAS 051-000 THRU 051-013/ 051-019 THRU 051-034 PERCENTAGE
PROP 13 (1% Limit) 1.000000
ESUSD BOND Current 0.060000
Total 1.060000
TAX AREAS: 051-014 THRU 051-018
PROP 13 (1% Limit) 1.000000
ESUSD BOND Current 0.060000
Total 1.060000
TAX AREAS: 010-000, 010-002, 010-003,010-004, 010-006, 010-008, 010-011, 010-012
PROP 13 (1% Limit) 1.000000
Mammoth-Kern SFID 0.022504
Mammoth Unified Bond '98, '00 & '01 0.029418
Southern Mono Hospital Bond Redemption 0.017078
Southern Mono Hospital Bond Current 0.029052
Total 1.098052
TAX AREAS: 010-001,010-005,010-007,010-009,010-010
PROP 13 (1% Limit) 1.000000
Mammoth-Kern SFID 0.022504
Mammoth Unified Bond '98, '00 & '01 0.029418
Southern Mono Hospital Bond Redemption 0.017078
Southern Mono Hospital Bond Current 0.029052
Total 1.098052
TAX AREAS: 010-013, 059-000, 059-005, 059-007, 059-012
PROP 13 (1% Limit) 1.000000
Mammoth Unified Bond '98, '00 & '01 0.029418
Southern Mono Hospital Bond Redemption 0.017078
Southern Mono Hospital Bond Current 0.029052
Total~ 1075549
TAX AREAS: 060-000
PROP 13 (1% Limit) 1.000000
Round Valley Bond (Determined by Inyo County) 0.031657
Bishop HS Bond (Determined by Inyo County) 0.009048
Southern Mono Hospital Bond Redemption 0.017078
Southern Mono Hospital Bond Current 0.029052
Total 1.086836
TAX AREAS: 060-001 THRU 060-006
PROP 13 (1% Limit) 1.000000
Round Valley Bond (Determined by Inyo County) 0.031657
Bishop HS Bond (Determined by Inyo County) 0.009048
Total 1.040705
Unitary Tax Rate
Unitary 1% Ad Valorem 1.000000
Unitary Debt Service Rate 0.356143
Total 1.356143
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COUNTY OF MONO

Distribution of Pooled Property Tax

1997-98 through 2017-18

Town Schools
of Mammoth Library Special
Fiscal Year County Lakes and ERAF Districts Total
1997-98 33.60% 3.05% 41.27% 22.08% 100.00%
1998-99 31.86% 3.06% 41.28% 23.80% 100.00%
1999-00 31.70% 3.19% 41.04% 24.07% 100.00%
2000-01 31.45% 3.58% 40.40% 24.57% 100.00%
2001-02 30.97% 3.64% 40.79% 24.60% 100.00%
2002-03 30.75% 3.74% 40.79% 24.72% 100.00%
2003-04 30.51% 3.89% 40.64% 24.96% 100.00%
2004-05 30.32% 4.00% 40.51% 25.17% 100.00%
2005-06 30.04% 4.17% 42.01% 23.78% 100.00%
2006-07 29.78% 4.29% 41.84% 24.08% 100.00%
2007-08 29.60% 4.43% 40.06% 25.91% 100.00%
2008-09 29.51% 4.50% 40.01% 25.97% 100.00%
2009-10 29.65% 4.46% 40.18% 25.71% 100.00%
2010-11 29.85% 4.37% 40.37% 25.42% 100.00%
2011-12 29.85% 4.36% 42.06% 23.73% 100.00%
2012-13 29.96% 4.30% 40.18% 25.56% 100.00%
2013-14 30.01% 4.29% 42.22% 23.48% 100.00%
2014-15 30.00% 4.30% 40.54% 25.16% 100.00%
2015-16 29.99% 4.30% 42.21% 23.50% 100.00%
2016-17 29.99% 4.30% 42.22% 23.49% 100.00%
2017-18 30.00% 4.30% 42.23% 23.47% 100.00%

125



COUNTY OF MONO

Tax Collections

1997-98 through 2017-18

General Fund

Secured and Unsecured

School
County General Fund Districts and
Fiscal Town of Augmentation Special
Year Secured Unsecured Mammoth Fund Districts Totals
1997-98 5,448,545 719,526 571,570 7,730,443 4,451,114 18,921,198
1998-99 5,582,040 731,930 588,337 7,930,027 4,572,566 19,404,900
1999-00 5,778,043 723,824 647,065 8,306,363 4,794,903 20,250,198
2000-01 6,264,163 616,687 782,357 8,817,667 5,238,415 21,719,289
2001-02 7,073,947 695,136 825,121 7,085,768 5,591,710 21,271,682
2002-03 7,534,894 772,978 953,355 11,204,067 6,080,626 26,545,920
2003-04 8,523,576 807,741 1,158,647 12,615,367 6,936,400 30,041,730
2004-05* 9,449,034 706,107 1,348,916 13,642,275 7,916,718 33,063,050
2005-06* 11,455,149 765,220 1,592,687 16,021,241 9,067,830 38,902,127
2006-07* 12,910,660 894,463 2,295,078 18,389,553 11,787,382 46,277,136
2007-08* 14,515,638 870,916 2,624,774 22,147,747 12,860,888 53,019,963
2008-09* 14,933,794 ** 919,168 ** 2,653,891 ** 23,571,923 ** 15,301,520 ** 57,380,296
2009-10* 15,165,933 ** 1,260,670 ** 2,417,595 ** 25,336,531 ** 11,152,009 ** 55,332,738
2010-11* 15,209,742 ** 2,409,465 ** 2,409,465 ** 22,262,705 ** 12,855,279 ** 55,146,657
2011-12* 14,822,535 ** 1,288,349 ** 2,355,391 ** 22,694,146 ** 12,800,764 ** 53,961,185
2012-13* 14,814,123 ** 1,122,030 ** 2,286,660 ** 22,419,290 ** 12,544,531 ** 53,186,634
2013-14* 14,697,811 ** 1,149,583 ** 2,269,698 ** 22,354,923 ** 12,476,495 ** 52,948,509
2014-15* 14,935,887 ** 1,146,281 ** 2,341,781 ** 21,402,568 ** 14,014,837 ** 53,841,353
2015-16* 15,801,348 1,164,420 2,369,745 22,847,929 12,844,465 55,027,908
2016-17 15,725,094 1,177,187 2,424,093 ** 22,859,891 ** 14,200,279 ** 56,386,544
2017-18 16,137,096 1,198,115 2,484,903 ** 24,398,429 ** 13,556,298 ** 57,774,841

* Triple-Flip Adjustments not recognized in these figures
** These figures are based upon the AB-8 Allocation and not actual receipts
The lien or assessment date is the first Monday in January

Taxes may be paid in two installments. First installment is due November 1, and becomes delinquent on December 10, with 10% penalty added.

Second installment is due February 1, and becomes delinquent on April 10, with 10% penalty and $10.00 per parcel added for costs.

After June 30, property is transferred to the delinquent roll. Beginning July 1, additional penalties of 1% per month for the first year and 1/2% per
month thereafter until the property is redeemed. After five years, the property may be sold for taxes due.
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County Date of Formation:

Form of Government:

Area:

County Road Mileage:

Fire Protection:

Public Protection:

Countywide Employees

Elections:

COUNTY OF MONO

Miscellaneous Statistical Informantion
June 30, 2018

April 21, 1861

General Law County under California Constitution 1849
3,049 Square Miles
684.42

No county-wide fire district, each community has its own
special fire protection district

Sworn Sheriff/Jail Personnel

Non-Sworn Sheriff/Jail Personnel

Number of Stations

Number of Employees

Percentage of Public Protection Personnel

Total of Full-time & Part-time
(Includes Public Protection Employees)
(Does not include Court Employees)

June 5, 2018 Primary Elections

Number of Registered Voters

Number of Votes Cast Last General Election
Percentage of Registered Voters Voting

November 8, 2016 General Elections
Number of Registered Voters

Number of Votes Cast Last General Election
Percentage of Registered Voters Voting

127

43

4

3

47
16.49%

285

6,169
3,458
56.05%

6,498
5,485
84.41%



Population:
(Bodie Only)

Department of Finance as of 1/1/**

*** No Data Kept for these years

COUNTY OF MONO

Miscellaneous Statistical Informantion
June 30, 2018

FY Year

1879
1910
1920
1930
1940
1950
1960
1970
1980
1990
2000
2001
2002
2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018

County

128

8,000
2,042

960
1,360
2,299
2,115
2,213
4,016
8,577

5,946
5,982
5,880
6,346
6,214
6,318
5,819
5,890
5,819
6,186
6,045
6,285
5,697
5711
5,506

Incorporated

*kk

*kk

*kk

*kk

*kk

7,617
7,667
1,717
7,413
7,413
7,299
8,209
8,286
8,209
8,307
8,098
8,410
8,024
8,002
8,316

Total

8,000
2,042
960
1,360
2,299
2,115
2,213
4,016
8,577
10,350
10,293
12,799
13,250
13,350
13,563
13,649
13,597
13,759
13,627
13,617
14,028
14,176
14,028
14,493
14,143
14,695
13,721
13,713
13,822
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AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF MONO AND ALTERRA MOUNTAIN COMPANY,
INC. FOR THE PROVISION OF SNOW REMOVAL ASSISTANCE SERVICES ON CALIFORNIA
STATE ROUTE 120 AND WITHIN YOSEMITE NATIONAL PARK

This “Agreement” is entered into by and between the County of Mono, a political subdivision of the State of
California (“County””) and Mammoth Mountain Ski Area, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company of
Mammoth Lakes, California (“Contractor”). Hereinafter, County and Contractor may be referred to
individually as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties”.

RECITALS

A. County has entered into separate memorandums of understanding with the United States
National Park Service (“NPS”) and the California Department of Transportation (“Caltrans”) for County to
provide assistance and services related to the removal of snow along California State Route 120 (“SR 1207)
east of its intersection with United States Highway 395 (“HWY 395”), over Tioga Pass, and within Yosemite
National Park.

B. Contractor also desires to provide assistance and services related to the removal of snow along
SR 120 east of its intersection with HWY 395, over Tioga Pass, and within Yosemite National Park in order
to expedite snow removal so that seasonal motorists may gain quicker access to Contractor’s and all other
recreational destinations in Mono County during the summer tourism season.

C. Due to its internal policies, NPS cannot enter into agreements with private companies,
including Contractor, for the provision of assistance and services related to snow removal.

D. Notwithstanding the foregoing, County is able to provide an avenue through which
Contractor may assist in snow removal, at Contractor’s own cost and expense, by entering into this
Agreement.

E The Parties wish to enter into this Agreement to memorialize their respective roles and
responsibilities in providing assistance and services related to the removal of snow along SR 120, over Tioga
Pass, and within Yosemite National Park, as further described in this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, representations, warranties, and agreements
contained herein, and intending to be legally bound hereby, the Parties hereby agree as follows:

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. SCOPE OF WORK

Contractor shall furnish to County, upon its request, those services and work set forth in the Scope of
Work (Attachment A), attached hereto and by this reference incorporated herein. Requests by County to
Contractor to perform under this Agreement will be made by County’s Public Works Director or an authorized
representative thereof. Requests to Contractor for work or services to be performed under this Agreement will
be based upon County's need for such work or services. County makes no guarantee or warranty, of any nature,
that any minimum level or amount of services or work will be requested of Contractor by County under this
Agreement. By this Agreement, the Parties agree that County shall incur no obligation or requirement to
request from Contractor the performance of any work or services at all, even if County should have some need
for such work or services during the term of this Agreement.
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2. TERM

The term of this Agreement shall be from April 1, 2019, to August 31, 2023, unless sooner
terminated as provided in this Agreement.

3. CONSIDERATION

A. Compensation. The total sum of all compensation and payments made by County to
Contractor for work and/or services set forth in the Scope of Work (Attachment A) performed under this
Agreement shall not exceed One and No/100 Dollars ($1.00) (“Contract Limit”). County expressly reserves
the right to deny any payment or reimbursement requested by Contractor for services or work performed that
is in excess of the Contract Limit.

B. Travel and Per Diem. Contractor will not be paid or reimbursed for travel expenses or per
diem that Contractor incurs in providing work or services requested by County under this Agreement.

C. No Additional Consideration. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Contractor
shall not be entitled to, nor receive, from County, any additional consideration, compensation, salary, wages,
or other type of remuneration whatsoever for work or services rendered under this Agreement.

4. WORK SCHEDULE

Contractor's obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, the work and/or services set forth in the
Scope of Work (Attachment A) that are requested by County. It is understood by Contractor that the
performance of such work and services will require a varied schedule. Contractor agrees, when arranging its
schedule, to coordinate with County to ensure that all work and services requested by County under this
Agreement will be performed within the time frame set forth by County. -

S. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS

Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, or municipal governments,
for Contractor to provide the work and services set forth in the Scope of Work (Attachment A) must be procured
by Contractor and be valid at the time Contractor erniters into this Agreement. Further, during the term of this
Agreement, Contractor must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits in full force and effect. Licenses,
certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, driver's licenses, professional licenses or
certificates, and business licenses. Such licenses, certificates, and permits will be procured and maintained in
force by Contractor at no additional expense to County.

6. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ETC

Contractor shall provide such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials, support
services, and telephone service as is necessary for Contractor to provide the work and services set forth in the
Scope of Work (Attachment A). County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Contractor for any expense or
cost incurred by Contractor in procuring or maintaining such items. Responsibility for the costs and expenses
incurred by Contractor in providing and maintaining such items is the sole responsibility and obligation of
Contractor.

7. COUNTY PROPERTY

Any personal property, including but not limited to, vehicles and equipment provided to Contractor by
County pursuant to this Agreement is, and at the termination of this Agreement shall remain, the sole and
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exclusive property of County. Contractor will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard, and maintain such
property while they are in Contractor's possession. Contractor will be financially responsible for any loss or
damage to such items, partial or total, that is the result of Contractor's negligence.

8. WORKERS' COMPENSATION

Contractor shall provide Statutory Workers' Compensation insurance coverage and Employer’s
Liability coverage for not less than One Million and No/100 Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence for all
of Contractor’s employees, agents, and subcontractors engaged in services or operations under this
Agreement. Any insurance policy limits in excess of the specified minimum limits and coverage shall be
made available to County as an additional insured. The Workers” Compensation policy shall be endorsed
with a waiver of subrogation in favor of County for all work performed by Contractor, its employees, agents,
and subcontractors.

9. INSURANCE

Contractor shall procure and maintain, during the entire term of this Agreement or, if work or
services do not begin as of the effective date of this Agreement, commencing at such other time as may be
authorized in writing by County’s Risk Manager, the following insurance (as noted) against claims for
injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of
the work or services under this Agreement and the results of that work by Contractor, its agents,
representatives, employees, or subcontractors:

General Liability. A policy of Commercial General Liability Insurance which covers all the work
and services to be performed by Contractor under this Agreement, including operations, products
and completed operations, property damage, bodily injury (including death) and personal and
advertising injury. Such policy shall provide limits of not less than One Million and No/100
Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per claim or occurrence. If a general aggregate limit applies, either the
general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this project or the general aggregate limit shall be
twice the required occurrence limit.

B Automobile/Aircraft/Watercraft  Liability  Insurance. A policy of Business
Automobile/Aircraft/Watercraft Liability Insurance for bodily injury (including death) and
property damage which provides total limits of not less than One Million and No/100 Dollars
($1,000,000.00) per claim or occurrence applicable to all owned, non-owned and hired
vehicles/aircraft/watercraft. If the work or services provided under this Agreement include the
transportation of hazardous materials/wastes, then the Automobile Liability policy shall be
endorsed to include Transportation Pollution Liability insurance covering materials/wastes to be
transported by Contractor pursuant to this Agreement. Alternatively, such coverage may be
provided in Contractor’s Pollution Liability policy.

] Professional Errors and Omissions Liability Insurance. A policy of Professional Errors and
Omissions Liability Insurance appropriate to Contractor’s profession in an amount of not less than
One Million and No/100 Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per claim or occurrence or Two Million and
No/100 Dollars ($2,000,000.00) general aggregate. If coverage is written on a claims-made form
then: (1) the “retro date” must be shown, and must be before the beginning of contract work; (2)
insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least five years
after completion of the contract work; and (3) if coverage is cancelled or non-renewed, and not
replaced with another claims-made policy form with a “retro date” prior to the contract effective
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date, then Contractor must purchase “extended reporting” coverage for a minimum of five years
after completion of contract work.

X Pollution Liability Insurance. A policy of Pollution Liability coverage applicable to the work being
performed and covering Contractor’s liability for bodily injury (including death), property damage,
and environmental damage resulting from “sudden accidental” or “gradual” pollution and related
cleanup costs arising out of the work or services to be performed under this Agreement. Coverage
shall provide a limit no less than One Million and No/100 Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per claim or
occurrence or Two Million and No/100 Dollars ($2,000,000.00) general aggregate. If the work or
services provided involve lead-based paint or asbestos identification/remediation, the Pollution
Liability policy shall not contain lead-based paint or asbestos exclusions.

A. Coverage and Provider Requirements. Insurance policies shall not exclude or except from
coverage any of the services and work required to be performed by Contractor under this Agreement. The
required policy(ies) of insurance shall be issued by an insurer authorized to sell such insurance by the State
of California and shall have at least a “Best’s” policyholder’s rating of “A-" or better. Prior to commencing
any work under this agreement, Contractor shall provide County: (1) a certificate of insurance evidencing
the coverage required; (2) an additional insured endorsement for general liability applying to the County of
Mono, its agents, officers and employees made on ISO form CG 20 10 11 85, or providing equivalent
coverage; and (3) a notice of cancellation or change of coverage endorsement indicating that the policy will
not be modified, terminated, or canceled without thirty (30) days written notice to the County.

B. Primary Coverage. For any claim made related to this Agreement or work and/or services
performed or provided pursuant to this Agreement, Contractor’s insurance coverage shall be primary
insurance coverage at least as broad as ISO CG 20 01 04 13 as with respect to County, its officers, officials,
employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by County, its officers, officials,
employees, or volunteers shall be excess of Contractor’s insurance and shall not contribute with it.

C. Deductible, Self-Insured Retentions, and Excess Coverage. Any insurance policy limits in
excess of the specified minimum limits and coverage shall be made available to County as an additional
insured.

D. Subcontractors. Contractor shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintain
insurance (including Workers’ Compensation) meeting all the requirements stated herein and that County
is an additional insured on insurance required of subcontractors.

10. STATUS OF CONTRACTOR

All acts of Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this
Agreement, shall be performed as an independent contractor, and not as an agent, officer, or employee of
County. Contractor, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of,
or exercise any right or power vested in, County except as expressly provided by law or set forth in the Scope
of Work (Attachment A). No agent, officer, or employee of County is to be considered an employee of
Contractor. It is understood by the Parties that this Agreement shall not, under any circumstances, be construed
to create an employer-employee relationship or a joint venture. As an independent contractor:

A. Contractor shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work and services
to be provided by Contractor under this Agreement;
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B. Contractor shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results specified in
this Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be subjected to County’s control
with respect to the physical action or activities of Contractor in fulfillment of this Agreement; and

C. Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees are, and at all times during the term of this
Agreement shall represent and conduct themselves as, independent contractors, and not employees of County.

11. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION

Each of Contractor and County (“Indemnifying Party”) shall defend, with counsel reasonably
acceptable to the other party, indemnify, and hold harmless the other party and each of its respective parents,
officers, directors, shareholders, members, agents, representatives, affiliates, contractors, and employees
(“Indemnified Parties”) from and against all claims, damages, losses, judgments, liabilities, expenses, and other
costs, including litigation costs and attorney’s fees, arising out of, resulting from or in connection with, its
respective performance under this Agreement. The Indemnifying Party’s to defend, indemnify, and hold
harmless the Indemnified Parties applies to any actual or alleged personal injury, death, damage, or destruction
to tangible or intangible property, including the loss of use; provided, however, that Contractor shall not incur
any liability to County or any other person or entity arising from Contractor’s inability to cause the opening of
any road within any particular timeframe. The Indemnifying Party’s obligation under this Paragraph 11 extends
to any claim, damage, loss, liability, expense, or other costs that are caused in whole or in part by any act or
omission of the Indemnifying Party and any of its respective parents, officers, directors, shareholders, members,
agents, representatives, affiliates, and contractors, and anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them,
or anyone for whose acts or omissions any of them may be liable.

Contractor’s obligation to defend, indemnify, and hold the County, its agents, officers, and employees
harmless under the provisions of this Paragraph 11 is not limited to, or restricted by, any requirement in this
Agreement for Contractor to procure and maintain a policy of insurance.

The provisions of this Paragraph 11 shall survive any termination or expiration of this Agreement.

12. RECORDS AND AUDIT

A. Records. Contractor shall prepare and maintain all records required by the various provisions
of this Agreement and any federal, state, county and municipal laws, ordinances, regulations, and directions.
Contractor shall maintain these records for a minimum of four (4) years from the termination or completion of
this Agreement. Contractor may fulfill its obligation to maintain records as required by this paragraph by
substitute photographs, micrographs, or other authentic reproduction of such records.

B. Inspections and Audits. Any authorized representative of County shall have access to any
books, documents, papers, and records, including but not limited to, financial records of Contractor that are
reasonably pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making inspection, evaluation, examination,
excerpts, and transcripts during the period such records are to be maintained by Contractor. For purposes of
clarity, this inspection, evaluation, examination, excerpt, and transcript right pertains solely to the activities
authorized under this Agreement, and shall not be deemed to be in any way broader than is most narrowly
required to inspect, evaluate, examine, and make excerpts and transcripts provided pursuant to this Agreement.
Further, County has the right, at all reasonable times, to inspect, evaluate, and examine the work performed or
being performed under this Agreement.
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13. NONDISCRIMINATION

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees shall not
unlawfully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or applicant for
employment, or person receiving work or services under this Agreement, because of race, religious creed, color,
ancestry, national origin, physical disability, mental disability, medical condition, marital status, sex, age, or
sexual orientation. Contractor and its agents, officers, and employees shall comply with the provisions of the
Fair Employment and Housing Act (Government Code section 12900, et seq.), and the applicable regulations
promulgated thereunder in the California Code of Regulations. Contractor shall also abide by the Federal Civil
Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352) and all amendments thereto, and all administrative rules and regulations
issued pursuant to said Act.

14. TERMINATION

This Agreement may be terminated by either Party without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving
the other Party thirty (30) calendar days’ prior written notice of such intent to terminate.

15. ASSIGNMENT

This Agreement is an agreement for the personal services and/or work of the Parties. Neither Party
shall assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of the other

Party.

16. DEFAULT

If Contractor abandons the work, fails to proceed with the work and services requested by County in a
timely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct the werk or services as requested by County, then
County may declare Contractor in defaylt and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days’ prior written notice
to Contractor.

17. WAIVER OF DEFAULT

Waiver of any default by either Party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any
subsequent default. Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver
of any other or subsequent breach and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this Agreement
unless this Agreement is modified as provided in Paragraph 19.

18. SEVERABILITY

If any term, portion, or provision of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or
circumstance shall be declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of
any federal, state, or county statute, ordinance, or regulation, then the remaining portions and provisions of this
Agreement, or the application thereof, shall not be invalidated thereby and shall remain in full force and effect
to the extent that the terms, portions, and provisions of this Agreement are severable.

19. AMENDMENT AND MODIFICATION

This Agreement, including any term, portion, or provision hereof, may not be amended, changed,
modified, added to, or subtracted from, unless executed in a separate written agreement executed with the
mutual consent of both Parties according to the same formalities as this Agreement, in accordance with
delegated authority therefor, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity.
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20. NOTICE

Any notice, communication, amendment, addition, or deletion to this Agreement, including change of
address of any party during the term of this Agreement, which Contractor or County is required or may desire
to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served, or sent by prepaid first-class mail or email (if
included below) to the Parties as follows:

If to County: If to Contractor:

Mammoth Mountain Ski Area, LLC
Attn: Steve McCabe, Mountain Operations Director
10001 Minaret Road

Mono County Public Works Department
Attn: Tony Dublino, Public Works Director

17)40N(])313; ic;l;ool Street P.O. Box 24
Bridgeport, CA Mammoth Lakes, CA 93546

(760) 934-0652

(760) 932-5440 smecabe@mammothresorts.com

tdublino@mono.ca.gov

21. COUNTERPARTS

This Agreement may be executed in two (2) or more counterparts (including by electronic
transmission), each of which shall constitute an original, and all of which taken together shall constitute one
and the same instrument.

22, ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the Parties, and no representations, inducements,
promises, or agreements otherwise between the Parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by
reference, shall be of any force or effect.

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS ON THE DATE
FIRST MENTIONED ABOVE. 7 / '

COUNTY OF MONO CONTRACTOR

By: By:

Title: Title:

Dated: Dated:

APPROVED AS TO FORM: Taxpayer's Identification or Social Security
Number:

Mono County Counsel’s Office

APPROVED BY RISK MANAGEMENT:

Mono County Risk Manager
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ATTACHMENT A

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF MONO AND ALTERRA MOUNTAIN COMPANY,
INC. FOR THE PROVISION OF SNOW REMOVAL ASSISTANCE SERVICES ON CALIFORNIA
STATE ROUTE 120 AND WITHIN YOSEMITE NATIONAL PARK

TERM:
FROM: April 1,2019 TO: August 31, 2023
SCOPE OF WORK:

Subject to Contractor’s discretion and availability of resources, Contractor shall perform and provide the
following snow removal assistance work and services upon the request of and according to and under the
direction and supervision of County’s Public Works Director or his/her designated representative:

1. Contractor shall perform and provide general snow removal services to assist County,
Caltrans, and NPS with the annual opening of SR 120 east of its intersection with United States Highway
395 (“HWY 395”), over Tioga Pass, and within Yosemite National Park. The number and type of County
requests for Contractor to provide such work and/or services will vary from year to year based the given
year’s precipitation and snowpack. County anticipates that its requests for Contractor to provide such
services shall terminate when this portion of SR 120 becomes passable for vehicular traffic.

2. Contractor shall provide, transport, and maintain its own equipment and shall be solely
responsible for all associated costs including, but not limited to, daily operation (including the provision
of fuel), maintenance, repair, and replacement costs related to such equipment.

3. Contractor shall restrict travel, use of equipment, and snow removal procedures under
this Agreement to the paved road prism of SR 120. By separate memorandum of understanding with
County, NPS will be responsible for clearing and removing snow from side roads, campgrounds, and
housing areas.

4, Contractor will be solely responsible for inspecting its own equipment for all purposes
including, but not limited to, compliance with safety and suitability requirements of the United States
Department of Labor, Occupational Safety and Health Administration and the California Department of
Industrial Relations, Division of Occupational Safety and Health.

5. Contractor shall not provide or give false information to County, Caltrans, or NPS; to do
so shall be considered a breach of conditions and be grounds for termination of this Agreement.

6. Contractor shall comply with all applicable federal, state, county and municipal laws,
ordinances, regulations, and codes as well as all regulations and requirements, including but not limited
to, the operational and safety standards for snow removal found in the 2019 SPRING ROAD OPENING
OPERATIONS prepared by Yosemite National Park, which is attached hereto as Attachment A1 and
incorporated herein by this reference, as may be amended and/or adopted from time to time by Yosemite
National Park or an authorized representative thereof (collectively, “Tioga Pass Road Plan”). Failure to
comply with all applicable laws and regulations, including but not limited to the Tioga Pass Road Plan,
shall entitle County to terminate immediately this Agreement.
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Program Goals
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What is TU? Overview of TU Structure
and California TU Programs

Public Lands/ Sportsmen Conservation
work

TROU Local Trout Unlimited Projects in Mono
County




Introduction TROUT

CA Public Lands Coordinator
Worked for TU for 4 years
Hunter and Angler

www.tu.org 3



What is Trout Unlimited?

* Trout Unlimited is North America’s
leading coldwater conservation
organization

 We make fishing better

* We utilize national staff and grassroots
leadership to bring sportsmen and
women together to execute a variety of
projects (large and small) that directly
benefit public lands that hold trout,
salmon, and steelhead

UNLIMITED




. WHAT IS TROUT UNLIMITED Continued...
TROUT - - AL

! b \rigvs
edd) 14 : . _ ¥ : : . a2 A
) 3 walis - s et s B >y o™ ar ‘..‘0‘ o N ; .5
UNLIMI I ED SFNE P L e T A R e a1 SIS . “‘.":.‘:-' -1 . . .
- — ~ - w . . . . hy
3 ‘:\‘f‘\*.‘: s . AN S -5 S \.\:‘_‘\. . § : .
S . A L N EALSAIL AL S . ) -
— S T a S S e s NN ASAN . s L 00 -
P LAy - wiN \ . .3 Iy

- -
ot e e

\\\\\\\\\\
\\\\\\\\\\

““““““““

» 379 Chapters, 35Cou
"> National Lea ersh
> 0ver244é" loyees

y EW
'-' : - - ‘
» Total voluntee rs ~$17.5 million equivalent

> Total grassroots contribution ~$28 million

i G-




) . .
TU’s Mission _
Trout Unlimited's missionisto ~ . . % ¥ W 3¢ =~
conserve, protect and restore

North America's coldwater
isheries and their watersheds

UNLIMITED




We accomplish our mission by....

* Protecting
* Restoring
* Reconnecting

* Sustaining

UNLIMITED
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California Program

|) California VWater Program
2) North Coast Restoration
3) Public Lands/SCP Program
4) Inland Trout Program

5) Science

UNLIMITED



TU Public Lands Program

* We want to keep public lands in public hands and to keep access open to the
wild places that we care about

* We want to improve habitat on Public Lands

UNLIMITED



Public Lands SCP Goal.s

Primary goal is to restore public lands for wild trout,
salmon and steelhead and engage the
sportsmen’s/outdoor community on public lands issues

* Mobilize and build an alliance of sportsmen to
advocate for protection and improved management of
public lands

, { * Work with resource agencies and other stakeholders to
develop place-based solutions that conserve hunting &
fishing values

 Analyze and promote fish and game values of public
lands

 Inform the broader iublic



Public Lands/SCP Strategies

 Sending in letters and working with elected
officials

* Generating content/Social media that
advocates for public lands

 Working with fishing, hunting, and other
groups to have a unified voice

 Enhancing existing public lands by improving
habitat and access through having our
alliance of sportsmen be our eyes on the
ground

UNLIMITED




Public Lands

Program Projects

Rivers of California
About 800 miles (1,287 km) across

*

UNLIMITED




Current CA Public Lands Inltlatlves

Inland Trout CDFW Regulation Simplification
R3 Committee
Protect the last, best wild steelhead habitat in

California= Restore the South Fork Trinity River —
HR 6596

Support economic development and recreational
opportunities

Adaptive management
Prevent lllegal Marijuana Grows
Improving habitat and access on public lands

Sportsmen’s petition






June Lakes Loop Work

TU has worked closely with the Mono County Fish
Commission to change regulations on the June
Lakes Loop in partnership with CDFW

 Reversed, Rush, Yost, and Algers Creek

Monitoring Fish moving up from Grant Lake and
Silver Lake

Finding have helped gain insight to fish migration
and need for reg. changes

Large browns and rainbows do in fact move up from
the lakes

Brown trout in the lakes are WILD fish

Improve the quality of angling opportunities and
manage fish populations appropriately

UNLIMITED




Oak Creek Watershed Restoration Project

 Devastating Fire and mudslide in Oak Creek
Watershed near town of Independence

 TU acquired money for the Forest Service to pay
for environmental compliance and permitting
through Proposition 1

* Project now "shovel-ready” and searching for
implementation funds

UNLIMITED




Restoring Montane Meadows in Southern Sierra

|) Successful Proposition | grants to
plan for large scale meadow
restoration at |0 different sites on
the Kern Plateau

2) Golden Trout Coordinator
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Bodie Hills Conservation Partnership

TROUT

The Bodie Hills region

totals 188,000 acres

—  Mostly Bureau of Land
Management lands

lconic California
landscape deserving more
permanent protection

—  Maintaining multi-use

—  Strategy: grassroots federal
legislative effort

Important recovery streams for

native Lahontan Cutthroat
Trout

— Rough Creek and Atastra Creek

I www.tu.org

Historic Bodie Hills in Winter



Inyo National Forest Planning

* Protecting valuable headwaters

* Prioritizing native trout recovery waters
* Restoring meadow habitat

* Wilderness and backcountry areas

UNLIMITED



Forest Plan Revisions: Opportunity to

Improve Fisheries and their Habitats SNLTeS
Inyo National Forest Plan Revision TU’s Primary Comments:
* New designation of Conservation . The Sema Nevada Bio-Region

Watersheds
« Aquatic Management Strategy
* Protection of montane meadows
* Wild and Scenic Rivers Designations

« Wilderness Areas|

: )
.
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Eastern Sierra CA Grassroots Chapters

UNLIMITED




What Can You Do?

e Partner with the Local and National Trout Unlimited on local projects
 Work with us on public lands initiatives

* Collaborate with the local Trout Unlimited Chapter

* Support TU

UNLIMITED



In Conclusion

Trout Unlimited is to preserving the angling and hunting opportunities that exist in California
Local Chapters of Trout Unlimited are dedicated to improving local coldwater fisheries
We believe that good habitat and access are essential for maintaining our public lands

We want to work with you on future efforts to protect public lands

IE




Thank You Mono County Board of Supervisors
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CALIFORNIA’S EASTERN SIERRA
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Mono County Board of Supervisors

Historical Fish Stocking Presentation
May 7, 2019




Mono County Fish and Wildlife Commission

* 1984: Inyo-Mono Fish
and Game Advisory
Commission




Outdoor Recreational Economy

he Bureau of Economic Analysis (BEA)
estimates the outdoor recreational economy
at $734 Billion in 2016. The largest
contributor being boating and fishing that
accounted for $36.9 of that sum”



2008 Mono County
Visitor Profile Study —
“Of the visitors
participating in outdoor
recreation 39% are
fishing, resulting in
333,426 anglers
spending on average
S60.05 per day over a
three day trip”

Fishing in Mono County
is a S60 million dollar
industry




Our Stocking Partner
Desert Springs Trout Farm

Donated 8,000
pounds in 2017 and
donated 600 pounds
already this year.




Desert Springs Contract

$100,000 yearly contract
— 1 pound catchable $4.50 per pound
— 1.5-3 pound fish $5.25 per pound
— 3-5 pound fish $6.25 per pound
— 5-7+ pound fish $6.25 per pound



Desert Springs Trout Farm

. Two Options:

| * 4 compartments with

i 400 pounds of fish in
each compartment.
(1,200 total pounds)

* 6 compartments with
600 pounds of fish in

each compartment.
(3,600 total pounds.)




Desert Springs Private Purchases

« 2014-15 =4,400
« 2015-16 = 7,600
« 2016-17 = 8,800
¢ 2017-18 = 9,200

O O 0O O



Example Truck From
Desert Springs

Tank 1 Tank 2 Tank 3 Tank 4
Destination Silver Lake  Bridgeport Res = Saddlebaglake = Rock Creek
Pounds 400 400 400 400
Size 5-7 pounds 5-7 pounds 1-3 pounds 1 pound

Purchaser Mono County  Mono County Mono County Private



Desert Springs
18 Mono County Locations

Rock Creek
Rock Creek Lake
Crowley Lake
Convict Lake

All 4 lakes in the
June Lake Loop

Saddlebag Lake
Lee Vining Creek

Lundy Lake
Big and Little Virginia
Bridgeport Reservoir

Upper and Lower
Twin Lakes -
Bridgeport
Robinson Creek
West Walker River




Size of Fish

purchased a 3-5
pound + fish with the
exception of small
streams.

‘ e Traditionally

* Moving to 1.5-3
pound fish based on
feedback from
anglers and marina
operators.




Example Truckload of Fish

« 3-5 pound + in a 400 pound tank. = 100 fish

« 1.5-3 pound fish in a 400 pound tank. = 200 fish




Challenges this year

 |ced lakes and streams.

‘ruck access with snow and mud

Runoff iIssues especially on the West Walker
River

« Scheduling challenges with private operators



Your 2019 Stocking Schedule
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The Town Of
Mammoth Lakes
3 purchases
»” $100,000 worth of
X fish for stocking
Mammoth Lakes

Basin alone. (4
¥ lakes: George,
Mary, Twin, Mamie)




Stocking Data From:
e (California Department of Fish and Wildlife



POUNDS PLANTED (THOUSANDS)
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Mono County Catchable Pounds Planted 2011-2016

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
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MONO COUNTY
INYO COUNTY

AVERAGE WEIGHT (POUNDS)

INYO-MONO PLANTS BY CDFG, 1970-2009
AVERAGE WEIGHT OF CATCHABLE RAINBOW TROUT
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Stocking In the Eastern Sierra

 DFW, Inyo County, Mono County, Town of
Bishop, Town of Mammoth Lakes and
private marina operators account for more
than 650,000 pounds of fish stocked
throughout the Eastern Sierra each year.



Questions
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IFOR

Glenn M. Thompson
County Administrative Officer

March 12, 1990

TO: Fish Purveyors

FROM: Glenn M. Thompson, County Administrative Offic

SUBJECT: Mono County Fishing Enhancement Program

-------------------------------------------------------------------

The County of Mono's Board of Supervisors has created a "Fishing
Enhancement Program" intended to supplement existing trout supplies
with "trophy" size plants provided via a contract with private purveyors.
Mono County views this program as a long term commitment to the
region's primary summer economic attraction, fishing.

In furtherance of that commitment, the County is soliciting bids from
interested fish purveyors for the provision of live rainbow trout for
stocking purposes in designated streams, lakes and rivers throughout the
County. The County intends to award a contract, with renewal clauses, to
the most responsive low bidder. This program will be administered by the
Office of the County Administrative Officer. It is our intent that a
single contract be let for this purpose, however multiple contracts could
be granted if deemed necessary by the Board of Supervisors.

The Office of the County Administrative Officer will serve as the
information and receipt agency for all bids and related matters. We have
made every attempt to provide a clear and understandable bidding package,
but recognize that there may be unanticipated questions. If questions
occur, please contact Glenn M. Thompson, County Administrative Officer.
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State of California
Department of Fish and Wildlife

Memorandum

Date:

To:

From:

Subject:

January 2, 2019

Melissa Miller-Henson
Acting Executive Director
Fish and Game Commission

Charlton H. Bonham
Director

Agenda Item for January 10, 2019 Wildlife Resource Committee Meeting; Sport
Fishing Regulations Revision and Simplification Project = Request for
Endorsement of Trout Regulations Menu

Attached please find an overview of the Sport Fishing Regulations Revision and
Simplification Project “menu” of regulatory options. This menu is comprised of angling
seasons, bag and possession limits, size limits, and gear restrictions, to standardize
and reduce the number of Special Fishing Regulations in Title 14, Section 7.50(b) and
eliminate inland waters from District General Regulations in 7.00(a-g). This menu is
the foundation of the Regulations Revision and Simplification Project. As such, the
Department is requesting the Commission endorse the menu of inland trout
regulations, so the Department can then select from a standardized suite of
established management approaches. Once the menu is established, Department
staff can work with stakeholders to assess and select the most appropriate regulations
for inland trout waters.

If you have any questions regarding this item, please contact Kevin Shaffer, Chief,
Fisheries Branch, at (916) 327-8841 or by e-mail at Kevin.Shaffer@wildlife.ca.gov.

Attachment

ec. Stafford Lehr, Deputy Director
Wildlife and Fisheries Division
stafford.lehr@wildlife.ca.gov

Kevin Shaffer, Chief
Fisheries Branch
kevin.shaffer@wildlife.ca.gov




Melissa Miller-Henson, Acting Executive Director
Fish and Game Commission

January 2, 2019

Page 2

Roger Bloom, Program Manager
Fisheries Branch
roger.bloom@wildlife.ca.gov

Karen Mitchell

Fisheries Branch

Senior Environmental Scientist (Specialist)
karen.mitchell@wildlife.ca.gov




Item No. 6
STAFF SUMMARY FOR JANUARY 10, 2019

6. STATEWIDE SPORT FISHING REVISIONS AND SIMPLIFICATION FOR 2020

Today’s Item Information [ Action X

Discuss the inland statewide sport fishing revisions and simplification for 2020 rulemaking, and
potentially recommend approval of a “menu” concept for trout waters.

Summary of Previous/Future Actions

e Initial WRC introduction Sep 20, 2018; WRC, Sacramento

e Today’s discussion and potential Jan 10, 2019; WRC, Ontario
recommendation

¢ Discuss and potentially make a recommendation May 16, 2019; WRC, Sacramento

regarding specific regulation changes
Background

For years, DFW has received complaints from anglers about the complexity of freshwater sport
fishing regulations. Some anglers (or potential anglers) may be dissuaded from fishing due to
actual or percieved difficulty in complying with the regulations. For example, currently there are
212 special regulation waters in Section 7.50(b), including 88 different seasons, 13 different
size restrictions, 10 different gear restrictions, and 6 different bag and possession limits.

DFW is proposing a new structure or framework, in large part to simplify inland sportfishing
seasons and bag limits for trout waters only; the proposal excludes anadromous waters. The
goals for the revisions are:

maintain or increase angling opportunity;

improve regulatory consistency across waters;

align sport fishing regulations with DFW's fisheries management goals and objectives;
reduce complexity and confusion; and

protect fishery resources.

In basic terms, the framework is based onh a “menu” concept, where one of several pre-defined
season and bag limit combinations would be chosen for defined river reaches (Exhibit 1).
Today, WRC will continue discussion on this proposal, and potentially recommend that FGC
endorse the menu both in concept and in substance. Note that the full rulemaking proposal
(i.e., which menu items would be applied to specific trout waters) is still under development, so
today DFW's endorsement recommendation applies only to the menu approach; a
recommendation for applying the menu to specific trout waters will be discussed at the May
2019 WRC meeting.

Significant Public Comments (N/A)

Recommendation

FGC staff: Recommend to FGC that it endorse the menu concept, as proposed by DFW and
consistent with discussion and comments made during today’s meeting.

Author. Ari Comman 1
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AB-1387 Sport fishing licenses: 12 consecutive month licenses. (2019-2020)

..r"
SHARE THIS; ! d Date Published: 02/22/2019 09:00 PM

CALIFORNIA LEGISLATURE— 2019-2020 REGULAR SESSION

ASSEMBLY BILL No. 1387

Introduced by Assembly Member Wood
(Principal coauthor: Assembly Member Gallagher)
(Coauthors: Assembly Members Bigelow, Brough, Cunningham, Kiley, Mathis, Mayes, and
Salas)
(Coauthors: Senators Archuleta, Bates, Borgeas, Galgiani, and Nielsen)

February 22, 2019

An act to amend Section 7149.3 of, and to amend, repeal, and add Sections 1053.1, 1764, 6596.1,
7149.05, 7149.2, and 7150 of, the Fish and Game Code, relating to sport fishing.

LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL'S DIGEST

AB 1387, as introduced, Wood. Sport fishing licenses: 12 consecutive month licenses.

Existing law requires every person 16 years of age or older who takes any fish, reptile, or amphibian for any
purpose other than profit to first obtain a sport fishing license for that purpose, with specified exceptions, and to
have that license on their person or in their immediate possession when engaged in carrying out any activity
authorized by the license. Existing law governs the issuance of calendar year and short-term sport fishing
licenses, including the fees for those licenses. Under existing law, a calendar year license expires at the end of
the calendar year, regardless of when issued.

This bill, instead of calendar year licenses, would require issuance of sport fishing licenses that expire 12
consecutive months after the date specified on the license. The bill would require license applicants to provide
their email address and agree to be contacted regarding purchase, renewal, or reactivation. The bill would
require the Department of Fish and Wildlife to submit to the Legislature a written report on the implementation
of these provisions. The bill would make these provisions operative beginning on January 1, 2021. The bill would
also require the department, no later than January 1, 2021, to enable licenses and validations to be displayed on
an electronic mobile device. The bill would repeal all general statutory provisions governing issuance of annual
and short-term sport fishing licenses on January 1, 2026, for both residents and nonresidents who are 16 years

1 nfQ 22MINTIAQ 19:AN AN
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i
of age and older. The bill would make related legislative findings and declarations and a related statement of
legislative intent. The bill would also make nonsubstantive and conforming changes.

P

Vote: majority Appropriation: no Fiscal Committee: yes Local Program: no

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. (a) The Legislature finds and declares all of the following:

(1) The number of annual sport fishing licenses sold in California has declined by 55 percent since 1980, even
though the population of the state has increased by 60 percent. Sale of sport fishing licenses annually provides
the Department of Fish and Wildlife (department) approximately $59 million in revenue at current levels, but if
sales per capita had remained constant since 1980, this number would be increased by $54 million. Additionally,
federal grant moneys under the Dingell-lohnson Sport Fish Restoration Act (SFRA) (16 U.S.C. Sec. 777 et seq.)
add approximately $17 million to the department’s annual operating budget, averaging $17,069,333 each year
from 2015 to 2017, inclusive. Combined, revenue from sport fishing license sales and SFRA grants is
approximately $76 million. By comparison, the department annually receives approximately $20 million in
revenue from the sale of hunting licenses and $20 million in revenue from federal hunting-related grants.

(2) A new vendor contract for the department’s Automated License Data System (ALDS) will be implemented on
January 1, 2021. By upgrading ALDS requirements before a new system and vendor are selected, the
department will be able to take advantage of state-of-the-art software without needing expensive upgrades to an
existing system, saving many hundreds of thousands of dollars.

(3) The department should be using the most current forms of electronic communication and outreach to contact
potential anglers, currently licensed anglers, and anglers whose licenses have expired, in order to achieve the
goals of the department’s recruitment, retention, and reactivation (R3) program.

(4) In 2018, the department convened a stakeholder group to make recommendations on recruitment, retention,
and reactivation of recreational anglers. Seventy percent of recreational anglers surveyed said that unavailability
of a 365-day license is their greatest deterrent to purchasing or renewing an annual fishing license. In addition,
51 percent said that licenses were too expensive, 40 percent said that there are too many confusing regulations,
and 39 percent said that the fish from department hatcheries were too small and too few in number.

(5) Information technology, including the new ALDS system that will be implemented on January 1, 2021, can be
instrumental in the R3 effort to increase annual sport fishing license sales. Increased sales will provide critical
revenue for conservation efforts, including wild fishery stock assessments and habitat restoration, and will
enable the department to increase the output of department hatcheries.

(6) By issuing 365-day sport fishing licenses, implementing a new ALDS system that has an auto-renewal
feature and enables licenses and validations to be displayed on mobile devices such as smartphones, and
establishing email communication with recreational anglers, the department will drive sales and be able to
proactively solicit prospective licensees to achieve the goals of the R3 program.

(b) It is the intent of the Legislature to recruit, retain, and reactivate recreational anglers to increase revenues to
the department for conservation efforts, fishery management, and increased hatchery production, and for
economic benefits to the people of the state.

SEC. 2. Section 1053.1 of the Fish and Game Code is amended to read:

1053.1. (a) A person shall not obtain more than one license, permit, reservation, or other entitlement of the same
class, or more than the number of tags authorized by statute or regulation for the same license year, except
under one of the following conditions:

(1) Nonresident hunting licenses issued pursuant to paragraphs (4) and (5) of subdivision (a) of Section 3031,
and short-term sport fishing licenses issued pursuant to-paragraphs—{3—{4)—and—{5-ofsubdhisional-ef
Sechep7149-and paragraphs (3), (4), and (5) of subdivision (a) of Section 7149.05.

(2) The loss or destruction of an unexpired license, tag, permit, reservation, or other entitlement, except a

N nfFQ 3/23/2019. 12:40 AM
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Date of Hearmg: Apri 9, 2019

ASSEMBLY COMMITTEE ON WATER, PARKS, AND WILDLIFE
Eduardo Garcia. Char
AB 1387 (Wood) — As Introduced February 22. 2019

SUBJECT: Sport fishing kicenses: 12 consecutive month licenses

SUMMARY: Requies the Departent of Fish and Wildlife (DFW) to issue sport fishing
licenses that expre 12 consecutive months after the date of issue. Specifically, this bill:

1.

8.

Requires the DFW, beginning on Jamuary 1, 2021, to issue sport fishing licenses that expire
12 consecutive months after the date specified on the hcense.

. Requies lcense applicants. begnming on Jamary 1. 2021, to provie ther email address and

agree to be contacted regarding purchase. renewal or reactivation

. Allows the DFW to offer an autorenewal option to license purchasers.

. Stipulates that the DFW, no later than January 1, 2021, shall enable licenses and validations

to be displayed on an electtomc mobile device.

. Requires the DFW to submit a written report to the Legisiature, on or before December 1.

2024. on the mplementation of the 12-month licensing provisions.

Repeals all general statutory provisions goveming issuance of ammmal and short-tetm sport
fislhing licenses on Jamtary 1.2026.

. Makes findings and declarations relating to sport fishing and a related statement of legislative

mfent.

Makes nonsubstantive and confonming changes within the Fish and Game Code (FGC).

EXISTING LAW:

l.

%]

Requrres every person 16 years of age and okder who takes any fish, reptile. or anphibian for
any purpose other than profit to purchase and be able to present a sport fishing license to fish
(FGC §7149.05)

Makes available for purchase an anual sport fishing license valkl for the Jamuary to
December calendar year for a resident, 16 years of age or older. for a base fee of $31.25, and
to a nowesident, 16 years of age or older, for a base fee of $84. (FGC §7149.05)

. Makes available for purchase a 10-day license for nonresidents only for a base fee of $31.25.

(FGC §7149.05)

Makes avallable for purchase a 2-day license for half the price of an atmual resident beense.
and a 1-day heense for $10. (FGC §7149.05)

Requires the base fees to be adjusted annually based on mflation, and authorizes (he Fish and
Game Conmnssion 1o adjust the fees as necessary, to fully recover, bit not exceed, all
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reasonable adnmistrative and mplementation costs of the DFW and the conmuission relating
to fishing hcenses. (FGC §7149.05)

FISCAL EFFECT: Unknown This bill is keyed fiscal

COMMENTS: This bill requires the DFW to. among other provisions. issue sport fishing
hcenses that expme 12 consecutive months after the date of ssue.

Author’s Statement:

Sport fishing and fishing towrism is a key component of rural economies i my
district and across the state. Unfortunately. California has seen a dramatic decline
in fishing participation statewide. There are over 14 milhion more people
California today than there were m 1985. Despite this significant mcrease m
population. there are | million fewer sport fishing licenses bemg sold today than
there were m 1985. In recogntion of this problem. several smveys have been
conducted m an effort to identify opportmities to mprove sport fishing
participation. Of the participants swrveyed. seventy percent identified the curent
calendar year license scheme as ther greatest deterrent to purchasmg or renewing
a fishing heense. AB 1387 will remove barriers for recreational anglers and take
inportant steps towards reversmg the curent declining trend in sport fishing
license sales.

Background: Fishing Licenses. Fishing licenses provide an important source of revenue for the
DFW. The DFW cumrently sells a variety of license types. mclnding anmal 10-day, 2-day. 1-
day, and lifetime liceuses. Ammal beenses are currently ssued for the January through
December calendar year. Any licenses purchased after the start of the calendar year expire at the
end of the calendar year. With required adjustments, the current license fee for a vesident adukt
sport fishing amwual license s $49.94, and for nowesidents & $134.74.

In 2017. there were approximately 1.8 million licenses issued. with ammal licenses accownting
for shghtly over I million of the total sokd. This s down from a peak of approximately 2.5
ndllion licenses bemg issued m a sigle year m 1980 and 1981, with amual kicense sales of
nearly 2.3 million.

Recruitment, Reactivation, and Retention (R3). The decrease m fishing particpants is part of a
larger trend. The question of attracting new hinting and fisling participants, which has
ranufications for couservation fimdmg, has been debated for some time. Those concemed about
the declme have dentified R3 programis as the best approach to reverse the decline i nnting
and fishing. The DFW has created an mternal R3 Task Force of executive-level staff, hied a
ful-time R3 coordmator, and is evaliating its current R3 programs. The DFW rekeased a
Califomia Ihmting and Fishing R3 Action Plan i February 2019, and phus to partner with
stakeholders to mplement the mitiatives m the plan

Sport Fishing and the Department of Fish and Wildlife Budget. Adjustmg for mflation, DFW
revemie from sport fishing has held fanly steady from the 1980s through 2018 at approximately
$60-70 million annually. Revemue has held steady despite the decline m participation largely due
to bicense fee mereases. The Fish and Gaime Conznission hias the authority to rake fees to cover
the admmistration and nplementation costs of the prograin
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A majority of all sport fishing revenve. approxmnately $44-48 mullion per year. comes from the
sale of ammal licenses. Revenue from sport fishing fees are primarily deposited in the DFW’s
Fish and Game Preservation Fund (FGPF). The FGPF is the DFW’s discretionary spending fimd
and receives about $80 nullion anmually. of which sport fishing revemies make up the largest
portion. The FGPF has a structural defict of approximately $20 nillion ammally. The 2018-19
budget proposed a temporary finding soltion to the structiral defict. and requnfed the DFW to
engage m a service-based budget review, which s ongomg

12 Consecutive Month Licenses. There have been 14 other states that have nwoved from a
calendar year sport fishing license to a 12 consecutive month license in some fashion. These
states inchide Arizona, Arkansas, Florida, Georgia, Kansas, Maryland, Mississippi. Nevada. New
York, North Carolma. South Carolina. Texas. Utaly, and Virginia. The remaming states are on a
calendar year system. Mauy of these states have considered the 12 consecutive month option and
have determmed to remam on the calendar year systein

In attempting to detennne the fiscal ampact of switching to the 12 cobsecutive month option, the
DFW swveyed the states that had inplemented a 12-month consecutive fishing license struchme
and found that many experienced a significant decline m license sales. The declsle was atiributed
to changes in license purchasing behavior. Anglers in these states tended to wait to purchase a
fisling license wntil right before they went fishing. Afler cach license expired, they often waited
to renew ther hcense witil they fished agam. The delay m purchasing results in fewer license
purchases. This change m purchasing behavior was most pronownced i states that have
relatively high sport fishing license fees. California sport fishing license fees are among the
highest i the nation.

Accordig to an analysts from Southwick Associates prepared for the California Sportfishing
League, Mississippi. New York and North Carolina saw a one to fowr percent reduction i the
first year afler the switch while Georgia experienced a 34 percent drop. Three of those states saw
arebound m the second or thid years. S states that switched to 12 consecutive month licenses
saw an mnniedmte first-year merease m anglers rangmg from one to 25 percent.

Potential Implementation Hurdles. The provisions m this bill to shift the issuance of a sport
fishing license from the calendar year to 12 consecutive months have been attempted several
tmxs before. The ssues raised m the past have been regardig siplementation challenges within
the Automated License Data System (ALDS) for nmting and fishing licenses: how fishery report
cards. validations, aud entitleinents would be tracked: and what the npacts of this change would
mean for DFW reveuue.

The existing ALDS comnfvact i expirmg and will be rebid soon. It is estinated that it will take
one year to transgion the ALDS to a 12 consecitive mouth bicense. The cost difference m
renewig the existing provisions of the current systein versus changing the system to allow for
12 consecutive month hcenses & unknown at this tane.

In order to enswre the long term viability of certam fisheries. specific report cards and validations
eniting take are requied for partcular species. To date, those have been synced with the sport
fishing license and have been issued on a calendar year bass. If those continue to be issued by
the calendar vear. this bill could create some enforcement and angler education challenges. and
way resul m mereased license, report card, or valdation violations.

This bill requies the collection of email addresses for icense pwrchasers, which could be wtilized
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to encowage curent license holders to plan fishing trps. to renew licenses and to take a fislend or
family member fishing, m addition to notifying them about the purchase. renewal, or reactivation
of sport fishing licenses.

It is pot known how the provisions of this bill would mpact DFW revenne. Whike the Fish and
Game Conunission has the authority to adjust the 12 consecutive month sport fishing hicense fee
to cover admmistrative and mplementation costs. they camnot make adjustments due to revemie
loss that may occur as a result of the license change. Proponents argue that 12 consecutive month
bcenses will provide greater valie for fishing bcense purchasers and mcrease sakes. thereby
mcreasing revenue. Conversely, the license change may resulf in the sale of less licenses. as sport
fishing license holders wait to purchase a license wmtil just before fishing.

The auto-renewal option m this bill may reduce the lag tame between a customer’s license
expration date and ther next purchase. A report by Southwick Associates prepared for the
Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Conmmssion found that the autorencwal option m Florida
had a significant. posifive inpact on renewal rates for both fishing and hnting- fishing
combmation license types regardless of residerncy.

Federal Funding and Sport Fishing Licenses Issued. 1f fishing bicenses isstued were to decline
it could jeopardize federal grant finds California curently receives through the Dingell-Johnson
Sport Fish Restoration Act. ‘The amowunt of fimding each state receives is based on land area (40
percent) and the manber of mdividual paid licensed anglers (60 percent) m the state. No state can
receive more than five percent or less than one-third of one percent each year. In 2019,
Calfornia received the waxamun five percent for $17.4 million.

Sport Fishing Provisions Repealed in 2026. This bill requires the DFW to report to the
Legiskture. on or before Decewber 1. 2024, on the tmplenentation of the 12-month licensing,
provisions. The bill repeals the statutory provisions govermnimng ®suance of ammal and short-tenn
sport fishing licenses on Jamary 1. 2026. As a result. the Legislatwe will be required to take
action before this date to defenume if 12 consecutive month licenses shoukd contmue, if atmual
licenses should revert to calendar year licenses. or if another type of annual Beense should be
considered.

Considerations. Should the bill pass this committee, the author may wisl to consider
amencdments to conforn the report card and validation time periods with the 12 consecutive
month license provisions. .

Committee Amendments: None at ths tone.
Prior and Related Legislation:

SB 518 (Benyhill, 2018) would have changed the calendar year sport fishing bicense toa 12
consecutive month sport fishing license i addition 1o the calendar year license for 5 years. The
12-month bcense was priced 30 percent higher than the price of the calendar year bicense. The
price would drop m the following years to match the calendar year bcense if the buyer opts for
automatic renewals. The bill passed the Assembly Water. Parks, and Wildlife Committee 15-0
and died on the Assembly mactive file.
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SB 1311 (Benyhill. 2018) would have created a combmed nmting and fishing license, vaid for
12 consecutive months. The bill passed the Assembly Water. Parks. and Wildlife Committee 15-
0 and was held on suspense m the Assembly Appropriations Commitee.

AB 986 (Gallagher. 2017) would have required the DFW to offer a 12 consecutive month sport
fishing license for 130 percent of the fee of a calendar year sport fishing license begiming
January 1.2020. wtid Jamary 1. 2023. The bill ako offer discounted licenses to California
veterans. The bill passed the Assembly Water, Parks. and Wildlife Committee 13-0 and was held
on suspense m the Senate Approprations Conanittee,

SB 187 (Bemryhill. 2017) would have changed the calendar year sport fishing license to a 12
consecutive month sport fishing license. The bill passed the Assembly Water, Parks, and
Wikdlife Committee 15-0 and was held on suspense in the Assembly Appropriations Committee.

SB 345 (Berryhull, 2015) would have created a junior sport fishing license for those 16 and 17
years of age. The bill was held on suspense in (he Assemibly Appropriations Conniftee.

SB 583 (Benyhill. 2013) would have required a five-year pilot program for a sport fishing
license to be issued for 12 consecutive montls. The bill was held on suspense m the Senate
Appropriations  Conmittee.

AB 1786 (Mansoor, 2011) would bave required sport fishing Iicenses to be issued for 12
consecutive months. The bill was amended to a different subject area after passmg the Senate
Natwral Resowrces Comnittee.

Arguments in Support: Those m support argue that one of the contributing factors for declining
bicense sales 1 Califomia & the costly anmual fishing license that expires on December 31% of
each year. regardless of when purchased. Supporters argue that a 12 consecutive month heense
will lead to mereased license sales and revenue that will provide nuxh needed finding for the
DFW’s fishing and conservation prograns and protect conmumities dependent on omtdoor
recreation and tourism for jobs and economic activity.

REGISTERED SUPPORT / OPPOSITION:

Support

Abw-Garcia Fishing

Amnerican Sportfishing Association

Basecanp Hospitality

Berkley Fishmg

Black Brant Group. The

Cal-Ore Wetlauds and Waterfowl Cowxcil

Calformia Aquacultwre Association

California Asian Chamber of Conunerce

Califomia Association For Recreational Fishing
California Association of Boutique and Breakfast Inms
California Association of Harbor Masters and Port Captans
Califomia Bownen Hunters/State Archery Association
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Califomia Chamber of Conunerce

California Chapter Wild Sheep Foumdation
California Deer Association

California Hotel & Lodging Association
California Houndsmen for Conservation
Califormia Lodging Industry Association
California Parks Hospitality Association
California Rifie And Pistol Assocmtion Inc.
California Sportfishing League

California Travel Association

California Waterfowl Association

California Yacht Brokers Association. The
Coastal Conservation Association of California
Coastside Fishing Chub

Congressional Sportsien's Foundation

Delta Chaniber of Conunerce
Dogtrekker.com

Healdsburg Chanber of Conmerce and Visitors Bureau
Independent Lodging Industry Association
Infernational Game Fish Association, Inc.
Manmwoth Lakes Towrsm

Marina Recreation Association

National Federation of Independent Busmess
National Marne Manufacturers Association
National Wild Twkey Federation

Nor-Cal Guides and Sportsinen's Association
Pemn Fshmg

Pwe Fishing

Rocky Mowuntain Ek Foundation

Rwal County Representatives of California
San Diego County Wikilife Federation

San Diego Regional Chamber of Conmerce
San Francisco Bay Area Chapter - Safari Club International
Silicon Valley Organization, The

Tulare Basin Wetlands Association

Tumner's Outdoorsinen

Vist Huntington Beach

Vist Yosemite Madera County

Worldwide Boaters Safety Group
Individuals (4791)

Opposition
Nore on file

Analysis Prepared by: Keith Cialino /W..P.. & W./(916) 319-2096
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Wildlife Heritage and Conservation
Since 1870

Commission Adopts Revised Mission and
Vision Statements, Core Values

December 14, 2018

At a public meeting yesterday in Oceanside, the California Fish and Game Commission
adopted revised mission and vision statements to serve as the foundation for a new
strategic plan. The Commission’s mission and vision statements were last revisited 20 years
ago and much has changed in the interim, including California’s increasingly diverse
constituency, climate change, an overall social disconnect from nature and wildlife, evolving
social values, expanding development into rural areas, and an abundance of invasive
species.

With the assistance of its stakeholders, staff, other state, federal and tribal governments,

and its primary partner, the California Department of Fish and Wildlife, the Commission is
developing a new strategic plan to coincide with its sesquicentennial anniversary in April

2020.

“Over the last 20 years, the Commission’s authorities have expanded and require a more
ecosystem-based approach to addressing fish and wildlife issues in a rapidly changing
environment,” explained Commission President Eric Sklar. “The time was right to reassess
the mission and vision statements, to ensure that they accurately reflect the full breadth of
the Commission’s responsibility to protect and conserve our exceptional fish and wildlife
heritage for all Californians,” he added.

The vision statement is intended to describe how the future will look if the Commission
achieves its mission, while the mission statement identifies the purpose and reason for the
Commission’s overall work in a succinct and focused manner. Along with the revised
statements, the commission adopted its first-ever set of six core values that create a
framework for establishing policies, goals, objectives, and strategies.

“Core values are a statement of priorities for how the Commission and its staff carry out
their responsibilities,” said Commission Acting Executive Director Melissa Miller-Henson.
“Our core values remain fixed, even as practices change in response to the changing
world.”

California Natural Resources Building
1416 Ninth Street, Room 1320, Sacramento, California 95814



The Commission will now move into the second of three phases, where additional input will
be solicited for developing overarching goals and objectives for its new strategic plan. Later
next year, as the Commission moves into the third and final phase of strategic planning, the
mission, vision and core values will be re-evaluated before a final strategic plan is adopted
in early 2020.

Revised Vision Statement

The vision of the California Fish and Game Commission is a healthy, biodiverse and natural
California in which native fish and wildlife thrive within dynamic ecosystems and inspire
human interaction and enjoyment.

Revised Mission Statement

The mission of the California Fish and Game Commission, in partnership with the California
Department of Fish and Wildlife, is to provide leadership for transparent and open dialogue
where information, ideas and facts are easily available, understood and discussed to ensure
that California will have abundant, healthy, and diverse fish and wildlife that thrive within
dynamic ecosystems, managed with public confidence and participation, through actions
that are thoughtful, bold, and visionary in an ever-changing environment.

We embrace our responsibility to hold California’s fish and wildlife and their habitats in the
public trust, as well as their cultural and intrinsic value, and therefore work collaboratively
with other federal, tribal, state and local government agencies, non-governmental
organizations and the people of California to establish scientifically-sound policies and
regulations that protect, enhance and restore California’s native fish and wildlife in their
natural habitats, and to secure a rich and sustainable outdoor heritage for all generations to
experience and enjoy through both consumptive and non-consumptive activities.

New Core Values

Integrity

We hold ourselves to the highest ethical and professional standards, pledging to
transparently fulfill our duties and deliver on our commitments to protect and hold
California’s fish and wildlife and their ecosystems in the public trust, to ensure consistency
of expectations and outcomes. We ensure that our choice or order of decision-making does
not arbitrarily prioritize one interest group over others. We hold ourselves accountable to act
in accordance with our values and code of ethics, even when it is difficult. Our actions reflect
honesty, truthfulness, respect and accuracy.

Transparency

We recognize the important and wide-ranging impacts the Commission’s decisions have on
California’s wildlife, wildlife habitat and residents, and that these decisions should be made
based on a variety of inputs in an open, inclusive and public process that solicits a diverse
set of perspectives. We strive to communicate with our partners, our stakeholders and the
public responsively and openly about how and why decisions are made. We use adaptive
processes and consistently gather as much information as possible to ensure the
Commission is best informed for thoughtful decision-making, while acknowledging that
decisions are most often made with incomplete information.

Innovation

We respond to the ever-changing natural and human environments by evaluating the
efficiency and effectiveness of our decisions and processes, identifying new ideas that



challenge conventional wisdom and historical biases, and seeking opportunities for
innovation. We recognize that innovation always involves some element of risk, and that
creative problem-solving and implementing forward-thinking solutions where value is added
is key to meeting the constantly evolving needs of our stakeholders and California’s fish and
wildlife. We take time to frame challenges, adapt, and execute new and useful ideas,
including applying advances in sound science, evolving concepts of wildlife management,
and public values toward wildlife in new and bold ways. We encourage novelty, creativity
and flexibility as we proactively meet challenges and problem-solve.

Collaboration

We value collaboration, including teamwork and partnerships, in problem-solving and in
developing policies and regulations. Teamwork is actively fostered and is one of the main
ways we function. Collaborative efforts extend beyond the Commission and its staff to
empower a diversity of stakeholders, other federal, tribal, state and local agencies, non-
governmental organizations, and the people of California to participate in our problem-
solving and decision-making processes and, where appropriate, engage in working groups
that are inclusive and transparent.

We pursue productive and considerate partnerships, rather than relationships solely based
on a formal legal agreement, and celebrate one another’s successes as we take them to the
next level together. A partnership is a mutually beneficial arrangement that leverages
resources to achieve shared goals between and among the partners, based on mutual
respect, open-mindedness, trust, and genuine appreciation of one another’s contribution.
Our primary partner is our sister agency, the California Department of Fish and Wildlife.

Excellence

We pursue quality, proactively assessing performance and striving to continuously improve
the delivery of fair and accessible services, work products and decisions, as well as the
efficiency and cost-effectiveness with which these are delivered. We are committed to being
and delivering the best, and are diligent about creating better ways of doing what we do. We
take pride in our efforts and what we make possible. We approach every challenge with an
expectation and determination to succeed.

Stewardship

We hold the state’s wildlife and their habitats and ecosystems in trust for the public,
respecting that they have intrinsic value and are essential to the well-being of all California
residents. We give attention to the environmental and human stressors, including climate
change, development and other threats, that affect the resilience and health of our wildlife
and their habitats and ecosystems. We use credible science, evolving concepts of wildlife
management, and public values toward wildlife to evaluate programs, policies and
regulations that will help achieve our stewardship goals. We recognize the dynamic nature
of and stay abreast of changes in science, and that it should include the evaluation
principles of relevance, inclusiveness, objectivity, transparency, timeliness, verification,
validation and peer review of information as appropriate.

The California Fish and Game Commission was the first wildlife conservation agency in the
United States, predating even the U.S. Commission of Fish and Fisheries.

Contact: Melissa Miller-Henson, Acting Executive Director, (916) 653-4899
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Fishing Regulation Changes
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CDFW Director Chuck Bonhan

° Proposal is 7 year in the making
and still in the scoping phase.

= Willing to set additional
meetings and staff time to the
Eastern Sierra.

= Public meeting held in Bishop on
March 20th.




Timeline

= Currently under the scoping period for the
proposal. Feedback is encouraged online
and at statewide meetings.

= October 9, 2019 — Submit proposed changes
to the State Fish and Wildlife Commission.
Official Public Comment Period.

- December 11, 2019 — Proposed fishing
regulation adoption.

= March 2020 — New regulations take
effect.




.
Why Are Changes Being Proposed?

= Regulation simplification! 88
trout seasons down to 6 trout
seasons.

- Gear simplification! 400+ gear
restrictions down to 6 gear
options.

- Protect wild spawning trout.

°Increase angler participation.




Proposed Fishing Seasons

= Open all year

= Closed all year

= Open Saturday preceding Memorial
Day through the last day in February

= Open Saturday preceding Memorial
Day through September
= Open October 1 through Friday

preceding Memorial Day.
= Open September 1 through November

30




All Mono County “put
and take” waters would
change to open year-
round with a 5 take
limit.




Changes For Mono County

= Special seasons for areas with wild trout: Bridgeport
Reservoir stream tributaries (not the actual reservoir
itself), By-Day Creek and tributaries, Convict Creek, North
Fork of Cottonwood Creek (White Mountains), Crooked
Creek, Crowley Lake, Deadman Creek, Fish Slough, Hilton
Creek, Hot Creek, Kirman Lake, Lane Lake, Laurel Lakes
and tributaries, Lee Vining Creek from the Lee Vining
conduit downstream to Mono lake, McGee Creek,
McLeod Lake, Mill Creek, Upper Owens River, Parker
Creek, Robinson Creek, Rock Creek Diversion Channel,
Roosevelt Lake, Rush Creek between Silver lake and Grant
lake, Rush Creek below Grant Lake, Silver Creek, Slinkard
Creek, Walker Creek, East Walker River, Whiskey Creek,
Wolf Creek and tributaries and Wolf Lake.




Community Feedback

Issue: Change to year
round fishing.

Constituents Constituents
against: in favor:
= Would end Fishmas weekend and a > Opening weekend is not as significant
. o L. economically as it once was and impacts
generational fishing tradition. would be made up with an extra four
= Perceived negative economic months of fishing in the winter.
impacts of the loss of opening = Can still market Fishmas weekend
regardless of when the season actually
weekend. starts.

= Excited for a winter product to promote.



Community Feedback

Issue: Public Safety

Constituents
against:

= |ce fishing safety concerns.

= Break-ins to closed cabins and
facilities

Constituents
in favor:

= No different than existing Eastern Sierra

activities like backcountry skiing and ice
skating.

= Possible ice monitoring agency like ES

Avalanche Center or a possible Mono
County ordinance to be put in place.



Community Feedback

Issue: Overfishing

Constituents Constituents
against: in favor:
= More fishing pressure would = Fishing pressure in the winter would
decrease an already limited fish be minimal.
supply in the Eastern Sierra. = Consider supporting a 2 take limit
= DFW has no plans to increase over a 5 take limit.

stocking.



Community Feedback

Issue: Trash Impacts

Constituents Constituents
against: in favor:
= Worried about additional trash and = Trash impacts affecting us all
monofilament waste with seasons and more needs to be

bathroom/trash facilities closed. doneoverall, not just in winter.



Community Feedback

Issue: Protecting Spawning Lakes and Stream:s.

Constituents Constituents in
against the new favor the new
proposal: proposal:
= Generally in favor with the = Enthusiastically in favor of
exception of Crowley Lake. protecting naturally reproducing fish

while they spawn to increase fishing
population.



Community Feedback

Issue: Crowley Lake Season Change

Currently: last Saturday of April to November 15 (with a "Restricted Fishing
Season" from August 1 through November 15. 2 trout keep limit, over 18
inches in total length. Artificial lures with barbless hooks only)

Proposed: change to the Saturday preceding Memorial Day through
September 30 (Keep) with catch and release fishing the rest of the year.

Constituents Constituents
against: in favor:
= Opposed to ending opening = In favor of protecting wild trout and
weekend and cutting out a month of adding a month to the catch and
the bait and keep season. Possible keep season from July 31 to

impacts to economics. September 30.



Recommendation from the Mono County
Fish and Wildlife Commission

The commission voted 4-1 to recommend
opposing regulation changes.
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Staff Recommendation

1. Support changes made to protect spawning streams.

Specifically in favor of including a zero take limit for the
East Walker, Rush Creek, Upper Owens River above

Benton Crossing Road, Robinson Creek between Upper
and Lower Twin Lakes, etc.



Staff Recommendation

2. Neutral position on the changes specifically to
Crowley Lake.

Pros: Protecting spawning fish.
Cons: Unknown economic impacts to fishing related
business in the South County.



Staff Recommendation

3. Neutral position on year round fishing with a 5 take
limit.

Pros: Potential year round business with a winter
tourism product.
Cons: Overfishing, safety and waste impacts.



Staff Recommendation

Board of Supervisor Options:

1) Draft a blanket letter of support or opposition.

2) Draft a letter supporting and opposition for specific,
individual changes.

3) Request further workshops and dialog for the Eastern
Sierra from the California Department of Fish and

Wildlife.




Questions
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 Value of Strategic Planning
* 2019-2024 Planning Process
* Understanding the Plan

* Implementation



VALUE OF STRATEGIC PLANNING

Prioritization Where we want to be...
* Resource limitations
* Lots happening

e True priorities Organizational Transformation

e What are we NOT going to do? (ounerships

Organizational Philosophy Organizational
 Encourage ownership A ment

 Measure and improve operations

Communication Tool
* |Internal importance
e Public awareness

Clear Strategic Plan




’19-"24 PLAN DEVELOPMENT PROCESS

* Additive process — current iteration builds off years of input and work

2015 Feb 2018 Early ‘19 Mar. 18th Mar. 22nd Apr. 11th May 7th
| /| ;| | | | |
| T r | | | |
Countywide Board & CAO Board Dept. Heads Board Board
Effort aimed Staff agree established Governance meet to Workshop presentation:
At developing to County general & discuss aimed at - Feedback
Vision, Mission, Strategic timeframe SP Kickoff capacity to reviewing and - Plan
Values & Priorities for process Workshop achieve vetting content Adoption?
Strategic (get in front with desired of plan
Directions of budget) Dept. Heads Outcomes
(Outcomes) (Core Services)
* Went fast... * Implementation

* Value in being staff driven
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IMPLEMENTATION %

* Translating into Action
* Tactics
 Multi-Departmental Efforts

* Management & Measurement
 Defining success
e Staying focused
 Checking in & reporting out

e Course correction
* Adjusting priorities




MULTI-DEPARTMENTAL EFFORTS
PRIORITY PROJECTS & WORK EFFORTS

possion PO PO g Soc
Mono County Civic Center X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X
Housing - Affordable & Transitional X X X X X X X X X
g:za‘tlset:tri/o Enmergency Preparedness and X X X X % X o . X X X . X X
Revenue Increase Options X X X X X X X X X
Recreation Economy Support X X X X X X

Joint Position Support X X X

Tourism Support Programs X X X X
Census Planning X X X X X X
g:::;:/ﬁo::er Substance Abuse X X X . X X X X
Capital Project Planning and
Execution/Road Projects and X X X X X X X
Maintenance
Water Issues/OVGA X X X X X
Dail Planning and Operations X X X X X X X X X
Solid Waste/Benton Landfill Closure X X X X X
Communication and Public Outreach X X X X X X X X X
Short Term Rentals X X X X X X X
Further Tobacco Regulation X X X X
(County Line Expansion X X X X X X X X
Child Care X X X X X e
General Economic Development X X X X X X X X
Cannabis & Hemp X X X X X X X X X X X
Community Corrections Partnership X X X X X X X X X
Owens Valley Groundwater Agency X X X X
CSA Process and Issues X X X X X X
Leadership Training and Development X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X
o Dosument interm Progress Tovards X X X X X X X X X X X X
Strategic Priority Achievement
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Walker Basin Restoration Program
General Plan Amendment DEIR Scoping

Mono County May 6/7, 2019
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Purpose of the Scoping Meeting

‘ Provide overview of the Walker Basin Restoration Program

‘ Describe Mono County’s role

Overview of plan area and water transaction assumptions

Summarize environmental review process

‘ Overview of the polices and actions

‘ Provide overview of environmental resources to be addressed in the EIR

‘ Solicit comments on scope of the Environmental Impact Report (EIR)




Overview of the Walker Basin
Restoration Program
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Walker Lake Historic Overview

* Diversions from the river have sustained
a strong agricultural economy but
dramatically reduced freshwater
inflows to Walker Lake, a natural desert
terminal lake at the terminus of the
Walker River in Nevada.

SINCE 1868

» 150 years of reduced freshwater inflows
have resulted in declines of the lake
level and increases in lake salinity,
threatening complete ecological
collapse.

* The health of Walker Lake is critical to
recovery of the threatened Lahontan
cutthroat trout, and the lake has long
been an important stopover
for common loons and other migratory
waterfowl. aPike Pk



https://www.fws.gov/nevada/protected_species/fish/species/lct.html
https://raptorresearchcenter.boisestate.edu/wp-content/uploads/2011/11/LoonFinalReptSummary.pdf

Walker Basin Restoration Program

* The WBRP was established by
Public Law 111-85 (2009) for the
primary purpose of restoring and
maintaining Walker Lake

 Walker Basin Conservancy
established in 2014, to lead the
effort to restore and maintain
Walker Lake while protecting the
agricultural, environmental, and
recreational interests in the
Walker Basin

» Restoration achieved through
acquiring water decree rights o e
leave water on the Walker River

SINCE 1868




Walker Basin Restoration Program - Mission

The Program seeks to increase instream

flows to Walker Lake through a

comprehensive basin-wide strategy that

relies on:

« voluntary water transactions and water
management initiatives;

« community-based conservation and
stewardship; and

« applied research and demonstration
projects.

The Program is committed to addressing

issues of local concern and to

developing creative and lasting solutions

to sustain the Basin’s agricultural nature.

ABald Mtn

APike Peak

SINCE 1868




Walker Basin Conservancy - Objectives

 The Conservancy is seeking
to buy or lease 41,000 acre-
feet per year of water rights
from the whole basin to
restore the health of Walker
lake

« Currently achieved about
40% of goal from water
transfers in Nevada

* A portion of the Walker Basin
is in California

 The Conservancy is
exploring participation and
additional transfers from
California




Existing Water Rights Transaction Activities under the WBRP

Walker Basin Conservancy - current fransaction strategy

« Acquisition of water-righted land in Mason
and Smith valleys

« Change diversion of the consumptive portion of the
flow water right to Walker Lake

» Place remaining land in trust with State of Nevada for
restoration and recreation

Walker River Irrigation District - demonsiration program

» Lease surplus storage water from Antelope and
Bridgeport reservoirs
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Overview of Mono County Involvement

« A portion of the Walker Basin is in
Mono County and could be part
of the program

« Mono County is examining the
potential risks, benefits, and
procedural considerations
involved in establishing a water
transactions program within the
California portion of the basin

» Participation by California water
rights holders will require a
General Plan Amendment to
allow the transfers

10



Project Area - East Walker

Miles
4

scale: 1200000 [ C-125 Decree Rights Land

P
‘%i"

PANORAMA

Waterbody

- River or Creek

» Easter Walker River
— Bridgeport Valley
— Swauger Creek
— Buckeye Creek
— Green Creek
— Robinson Creek

- Storage
— Twin Lakes
— Green Lakes

11



Project Area — West Walker

’ « West Walker River

— Antelope Valley

— Little Antelope Valley
— Skinkard Creek

— Mill Creek

- Storage
— Poore Lake
— Lobdell Lake
— Black Reservoir

Legend
scate: 1275000 [ C-125 Decree Rights Land Waterbody ~ ====State Boundary

River or Creek
%
N 4 12

PANORAMA




Timeline of Mono County Involvement

MOU between
NIAWEETGRY I 201 2
County

Mono County RCD
preliminary 2014

resource
assessment

Open Space/
Conservation General
Plan element update
adopts CEQA review 2015
of WBRP as a County
action

Outreach, policy
development 2018

Initiate 2019

Draft EIR process

13




2012 MOU between NFWF and Mono County

« MOU Mono County and NFWF (2012) -

— National Fish and Wildlife Foundation agreed not to
authorize expenditure from Desert Terminal Lake
Fund on programs within Mono without concurrence
from the County

— Mono County agreed to review and consider
approving proposals presented by RCD (or other
parties) for implementation of short term lease or
other proposals

— RCD is interested in facilitating the development of
information related to the California Program to aid
design and implementation of programs

14



Objectives of Policy Changes
and CEQA Analysis
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MOU and General Plan CEQA Analysis Requirements

_ Transactions to be Analyzed
e Requires the

gg:lntz\étt‘;e « Long-ferm and permanent
feasi\[)”ity of transfer of water rights
participation (both flow and storage)
in the WBRP
» Sale of surplus storage
water

2305 L ° CEQA and GP « Temporary transfer of water

update rights (both flow
General require and storage)

Plan review of the

WBRP

Update transactions

16



Water Transaction Definitions

* Long-term/Permanent Transaction — Sale or multi-

year lease of water rights, including both storage
and flow rights

 Short-term Transaction — 1 year lease of water rights,
including both storage and flow rights*

 Sale of Surplus Storage Water — Annual analysis of
reservoir water determined to be surplus

* Consecutive yearly leases would be considered long-term, and
no more than three leases would be permitted

17



CEQA Objectives for the General Plan Amendment

Project Objectives for CEQA Analysis

» Develop guidelines and actions to allow Mono County water rights
holders to parficipate in the NFWF water transfer programs

 |dentify feasible program elements that can operate within the
County that would be consistent with the County General Plan
goals, including

— Preservation of existing open space and scenic vistas

— Maintenance and restoration of botanical, aquatic and wildlife
habitats in Mono County

— Protection of the Public Trust values of the resources of Mono
County

— Preservation, maintenance, and enhancement of surface
water and groundwater resources to protect Mono County's
water quality and water-dependent resources from the adverse
effects of development and degradation of water-dependent
resources

— Encourage the retention of agricultural and grazing lands

18



Project Area and
Acquisition Assumptions
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Project Area

,|NKARI‘)“V’A'|.'L~EiY
BASIN' Antelope Valley

ANTELOPE VALLEY \vvesi Walker

1l
2 “BASIN Watershed
) | 4

LITTLE ANTELOPE VALLEY) G gloiyabe National goresi

- WalkenRiverBasin:

&
R 7| USWEETWATER FLAT East.Walker

AR . 3
6T Obdell|lake § Wit o
{ 4

o g’J ) >
Ho

gJPoore Lake
A

J
Brr’dgep/grt Reservoir

5

BRIDGEPORT V.A/L'I.'EY
/ BASIN §‘9’
Valley

BridgeportVa

o
o
2
Q%
L)
W
1

 West Walker River in CA
— Antelope Valley
— Little Antelope Valley
— Skinkard Creek
— Mill Creek

« Easter Walker River in CA
— Bridgeport Valley
— Swauger Creek
— Buckeye Creek
— Green Creek
— Robinson Creek

- Storage
— Twin Lakes
— Poore Lake
— Lobdell Lake
— Black Reservoir
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Transaction Scenario:

Water Right Target Acquisition Upper Boundary

Equitable Water Acquisition between CA and NV

Water Right Water Rights
Purchase Leasing

Remaining as of 2018 $108,300,000 S 25,000,000
Remaining as of 2021 S 54,150,000 S 12,500,000
Max Portion to Mono (at 32%) S 8,950,000 S 4,000,000
Purchase Price per Wet Acre-Foot S1,800/AF
Lease Price per Acre (S/acre) S320/acre
Wet Duty (AF/acre) 3.2 AF/acre
Estimated Acquisitions
Max Acre-Feet Purchased/Leased 10,528 AF
Max Acres Purchased/Leased 3,290 acres 11,000 acres
Portion of Total CA Acreage Water Rights 7.9%

Unlikely that WBC could close any transactions in California until 2021

21
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Organization of General Plan Polices and Actions

Conservation/Open Space Element

New Actions under Policy 3.E.4

« Data Gap — addressing gaps in understanding of East and West
Walker

* Long-term Leasing and Permanent Transactions — actions
required to assess impacts of long-term and permanent
transaction prior to transfer of water rights

« Adaptive Management Plan — actions required to manage
land for which irrigation has been reduced

« Storage Water — actions related mitigating potential reduction
of storage water in reservoirs

New Policy 3.E.5

* Transaction-Limiting Policies — policy limiting the types of
transactions that would be permitted

23



Potential Transactions and Alternatives

Transactions to be analyzed as part of the Project
* Long-term and permanent fransactions

» Short-term transactions

« Surplus storage water

Alternatives to the Project
1. Sale of surplus storage water only

2. Temporary lease of flow rights for no more than 1 year

3. Sale of storage water and temporary lease
of flow rights for no more than 1 year4

4. Prohibit all water transactions with WBRP
5. No project

Community
input on

¢ Indicates County staff preferred alternative LI




General Plan Actions Applicable to Project and Alternatives

Permanent, 1 year
Long-term, | Lease and

Surplus Prohibit
Storage Water
Only Transaction

General Plan | Short-term, Surplus 1 year
Polices and and Storage Leasing
Actions Surplus Water Only
Storage (County
(Project) Preferred)

No Project

Data Gaps z ‘ Transaction
could be
Long-term 7 proposed;
Transaction CEQA and
tech
Adaptive 7‘ Z[ ZI studies
Management would be
required to
Storage ; 7 ; 7 ; 7 address
data gaps
for each
Transaction Z[ ‘/[ :
;7 ;7 ;7 transaction
Limiting Policy




Project - Data Gaps Actions

Action 3.E.4.c — Require the following information to help
the assessment of potential impacts prior to entering into
long-term water transactions including permanent
transfer and long-term leasing of decree flow water
rights and storage rights:

a. Quantify consumptive use and complete water
budgets based on real flow measurements for both
Bridgeport and Antelope Valleys, including diversion
and return flow timing, location, and volume.

b. Investigate shallow groundwater levels, movement, and
interactions with existing irrigation regimes in both
Bridgeport and Antelope Valleys.

c. Canvas and identify willing sellers.

26



Project - Long-term and Permanent Transaction Actions

Action 3.E.4.d — Prior fo permanent transfer or lease
of flow water rights for 2 or more consecutive years,
the project must demonstrate that:

a. The fransaction avoids potential significant impacts to
local surface and groundwater resources.

b. Transactions with the potential to significantly impact
surface or groundwater resources shall assess any
potential impacts prior to project approval.

c. The proposed transaction would not adversely affect
water quality, in-stream flows, lake levels, riparian areas,
vegetation types, sensitive/rare wildlife and habitat, and
related resources.

d. The transaction will not lead to substitution of
groundwater for surface water in any activities for which

surface water is currently used.
27



Project - Adaptive Management Plan Actions

Action 3.E.4.e — For each water transfer or transaction that
involves return of irrigation water to instream use, the land owner
shall develop an adaptive management plan. The plan shall
ensure consistency with General Plan goals and objectives. The
plan should, at minimum, include baseline assessment of
resources, monitoring criteria, and adaptive management
measures to ensure the following:

a.

o.
C.

No groundwater substitution is required to maintain baseline or
agreed upon conditions.

Water quality impacts are minimized, avoided, and mitigated.
No net loss of wetland.

. No significant loss of non-agricultural sensitive vegetation

communities or change from one type of community to a drier
community.

. No significant loss of habitat for sensitive species.

Invasive and pest species and dust are managed to ensure no
increase.

28



Project - Storage Sales and Leases Actions

Action 3.E.4.f — Prior to sale or lease of storage water, the
applicant must demonstrate that the proposed transaction does
not adversely affect existing recreational uses of lakes and
reservoirs within the Mono County portion of the Walker Basin.

29



Project - Policy Limiting Transactions

Policy 3.E.5. Identify WBRP water
rights transactions that are
permissible within the County.

Action 3.E.5.a — The risk of water
decree flow rights only transactions
(i.e., the transfer of flow rights without
the transfer of associated land) to
County environmental resources is
considered too great. The County
shall prohibit WBRP from decree flow ¢
rights only water acquisitions; all i
other transactions would be "
permitted provided other policies

and actions are saftisfied.

30
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Purpose of Environmental Review

» Inform decision-makers and the public

» Define the proposed project in detail and describe
the:

— Objectives
— Existing setting
— Plan approach
 |[dentify potential environmental effects

* |dentify viable mitigation to reduce or
eliminate significant effects

 |dentify and consider alternatives that may reduce
or avoid effects

32



Environmental Review Process

CEQA Environmental
Review Process

Scoping meeting:
« Scope and Content of EIR

R e . Permits & Approvals
Continue Public Outreach
* Thresholds of Significance

Define Potential Project

"R e s and Issues
» Alternatives
Puplic Comment .
s days  Related Projects
Address Public Comments on Draft ° R efe re n C e M O Te rl G |S

and Publish Final EIR

33



Resource Topics to be Addressed in EIR
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CEQA Initial Study Checklist

Initial Study Checklist

 Available on Mono website:

https://www.monocounty.ca.gov/planning/page/walker-basin-
water-leasetransfer

» Focuses the EIR on key topics listed below

Resource Topics Addressed in EIR Resource Topics Covered in Initial Study

(will NOT be analyzed in the EIR)

« Aesthetics

« Agriculture and Forestry Resources
« Air Quality ¢

« Biological Resources ¢

« Hydrology and Water Quality ¢

« Land Use and Planning

» Recreation

« Tribal Cultural Resources

¢

indicates topics for which additional studies
will be undertaken

Geology and Soils

Greenhouse Gases

Hazards and Hazardous Materials
Mineral Resources

Noise

Population and Housing

Public Services

Transportation and Traffic

Utilities and Service Systems
Wildfire

35
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Next Steps and Opportunities for Public Comments

Activity Estimated Timeframe

Scoping Period ¢ Collect comments from the
public

Prepare Draft EIR Complete the analysis of
environmental effects—
develop and analyze
alternatives

Public Review of Public reviews the analysis

Draft EIR¢ and provides comments
Response to Respond to public comments
Comments and and make any changes to the
Final EIR EIR

Final EIR County will review the EIR
Certification findings and certify the EIR

¢ Indicates public comment opportunity

38 days;
April 23 — May 2019

Late summer/early fall
2019

45 day review period
Late summer/early fall
2019

Late 2019/early 2020

Late 2019/early 2020

37



County Decision

What happens after the Final EIR is published?
1. Decide whether to Certify EIR

2. If the EIR is certified, County Board of Supervisors
decide whether to:
a. Adopt the General Plan policy amendments, or
b. Adopt an alternative, or
c. Select no project alternative

38



How to Comment

« Comments on the scope of the EIR are due by
5:00 pm on May 31, 2019

« Written comments on comment card tonight
« Written comments
— By mail:
Mono County Community Development Department
Post Office Box 347

Mammoth Lakes, California 93546
Care of: Bentley Regehr

— By email: bregehr@mono.ca.gov
— Subject line: “Water Transfer EIR Scoping Comments”

« NOP and Initial Study can be accessed here:

https://www.monocounty.ca.gov/planning/page/walker-basin-
water-leasetransfer

39
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Potential Additional Slides
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General Plan -Conservation and Open Space Element Goals

Potentially Affected by a Water Transaction Program

* Preserve natural open-space resources which
contribute to the general welfare and quality of
life for residents and visitors in Mono County and
to the maintenance of the county's fourism
economy.

GOAL 1

* Maintain an abundance and variety of
GOAL 2 vegetation, aquatic and wildlife types in Mono

County for recreational use, natural diversity,
scenic value, and economic benefits.

e Ensure the availability of adequate surface and

GOAL 3 groundwater resources to meet existing and
future domestic, agricultural, recreational, and

natural resource needs in Mono County.

* Protect the quality of surface and groundwater
GOAL 4 resources to meet e.xis’ring and future domestic,

agricultural, recreational, and natural resource
needs in Mono County.

* Preserve and protect agricultural and grazing
GOAL 5 lands in order to promote both the economic
and open-space values of those lands.

41
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Letter from Sierra Paradise
Residents to FERC



SIERRA PARADISE ESTATES, MONOCOUINTY, CALIFORNIA
May 5, 2019

Mr. Kyle Olcott

Federal Energy Regulatory Commission
Division of Hydropower Licensing

888 First Street NE

Washington, DC 20426

Dear Mr. Olcott:

We the undersigned Sierra Paradise Estates residents are profoundly opposed to the
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (Commission) issuing any permit or license for
the Owens Valley Pumped Storage Project (OVPSP) proposed by Premium Energy
Holdings LLC (Premium Energy) in the Wheeler Ridge/Rock Creek Canyon/Owens
River Gorge region for the following reasons:

The OVPSP falls under the “Off-Limits Sites” of the Commission for
“National Wild and Scenic Rivers” and “Wilderness Areas.”

The OVPSP would impact and severely degrade the world-class Owens
Valley/Eastern Sierra recreational tourism area and viewshed qualities.

The OVPSP would destroy the USDA’s designation of Lower Rock Creek as
“scenery and recreation are outstandingly remarkable values” and a “free

flowing” waterway.

The OVPSP will impact and degrade the federal endangered Sierra Nevada
bighorn sheep Wheeler Ridge herd.

The OVPSP will impact and degrade the Round Valley mule deer herd’s
winter-summer migratory route and critical winter range.

The OVPSP is planned in the Round Valley fault zone, an area of extreme
seismic risk.

Degradation of quality of life for communities adjacent to the OVPSP.

Sierra Paradise Estates FERC-OVPSP Petition

I



Federal Energy Regulatory Commission Prohibitions. Small/Low-Impact
Hydropower Projects. Off-Limits Sites: According to the Commission, existing laws
prohibit issuing a permit to Premium Energy for OVPSP because the project violates the
National Wild and Scenic Rivers and Wilderness Area Acts. While the Commission’s
website information states that these requirements apply to small/low-impact hydropower
projects, large projects should be held to the same standards since their impacts to the
environment would be even greater.

The OVPSP, Alternative 1, proposes three dams and reservoirs on Lower Rock Creek. In
the May 2016 Draft Environmental Impact Statement for Revision of the Inyo, Sequoia,
and Sierra National Forests Land Management Plan, Volume 2. Appendices, the USDA
identified Lower Rock Creek as eligible for consideration under the National Wild and
Scenic Rivers Act (NWSRA). They identify Lower Rock Creek as a “free flowing”
waterway and state: “Scenery and recreation are outstandingly remarkable values.” The
OVPSP proposed infrastructure would destroy these qualities. The Commission should
not preempt future Congressional consideration and/or designation of this creek under the
NWSRA:

s Is“on or affecting” a designated wild and scenic river,

¢ Has a direct or adverse effect on the values for which the river was designated, or

* Contains developments below or above a designated river area, "or on any stream
tributary thereto," which will "invade the area or unreasonably diminish the
scenic, recreation, and fish and wildlife values present in the area [as of] October
2, 1968" (the date of enactment).

The Lower Rock Creek single track trail, from Tom’s Place to the Rock Creek Canyon
neighborhood, is one of the best-loved nature and mountain bike trails in the Eastern
Sierra. Damming this unique waterway will degrade Mono and Inyo Counties’ tourism
industry and negatively impact thousands of visitors’ enjoyment of the region.

The OVPSP’s upper reservoirs and penstocks would be constructed within the John Muir
Wilderness. In 2009, the John Muir Wilderness boundary was expanded, under the
Omnibus Public Land Management Act, and now includes the entire Wheeler Ridge and
the majority of the eastern escarpment of the ridge. The Commission is prohibited from
issuing a permit because this project is proposed within a Wilderness:

Wilderness Areas

The National Wilderness Act (16 U.S.C. §§ [13[-1130) prohibits any commercial
enterprise, structure, or installation within any wilderness area. A "wilderness
area" is one "where the earth and community of life are untrammeled by man,
where man himself is a visitor who does not remain." Wilderness areas are
designated by an act of Congress. The Commission cannot issue a license or

exemption for a project located within a designated wilderness area.
hittps:/www.feregoviindustries/hy dropower/gen-info/licensing/small-low-impact/get-
started/sites.asp
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The OVPSP infrastructure of the would profoundly “trammel” Wheeler Ridge with
“permanent improvements” and degrade “its primeval character” and “its natural
condition.”

hups wwwowildernessnet NWEPS maps

Owens Valley/Eastern Sierra Tourism: The Sierra Nevada’s eastern escarpment is one
of the most majestic landscapes in California. It is a world-renown destination featured
in movies, advertisements and visited and enjoyed by peoples from around the world.
Tourism is one of Mono County’s top industries. The OVPSP will deface the Wheeler
Ridge viewshed and degrade Mono County’s tourism by superimposing ugly industrial
penstocks and reservoirs on an untrammelled wilderness in plain view of Highway 395.

Federal Endangered Bighorn Sheep: The location of the OVPSP is the summer and
winter critical range for the federal endangered Sierra Nevada bighorn sheep Wheeler
Ridge herd. These animals number only about 400 individuals. The 2008 California
Department of Fish and Wildlife Quarterly Report of the Sierra Nevada Bighorn Sheep
Recovery Plan states, the Wheeler Ridge herd “unit contains nearly 1/3 of all Sierra
Nevada bighorn sheep.” According to the 2007 U.S. Fish and Wildlife Recovery Plan
for the Sierra Nevada Bighorn Sheep:

Wheeler Ridge Herd Unit: The Central Recovery Unit currently has one herd on
Wheeler Ridge, which had grown to about 70 individuals in 2000. In the winter of
1998, there was a reported sighting of three females above Wells Meadow, the
first known use of this low elevation winter range in many years. In subsequent
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years, this excellent winter range showed a steep increase in use by that herd in
late winter. The herd is increasing very rapidly and is the one prospect for a
source of translocation stock in the near future.

The above information illustrate how important the Wheeler Ridge herd population is to
the survival of this species. While domesticate sheep disease and mountain lion
predation are the two most devastating impacts on this species, how humans intrude and
destabilize their ranges with industrial infrastructure also profoundly determines their
survival prospects.

Round Valley Mule Deer Herd: The OVPSP proposes bisecting the Round Valley
mule deer herd’s winter-summer migratory corridor and critical winter range with 18 to
30 foot diameter penstocks effectively creating a barrier to migration. This deer herd is
already under immense pressure from auto-deer mortality resulting from ever incrcasing
traffic on U.S. Highway 395, which was constructed on top of their historical migratory
corridor. Additionally, much of their 30 square mile Round Valley winter range burned,
7,000 acres, in the 2015 Round Fire. The OVPSP will profoundly impact the whole
Wheeler Ridge/Round Valley/Rock Creek area with a proliferation of new dirt roads
which will further degrade this area. The Eastern Sierra Land Trust states in their
document, Conserving the Corridor:

Concerned by the effect that increased residential development would have on the
deer’s annual migration, a group of concerned residents teamed up in 2001 and
formed what was to become Eastern Sierra Land Trust. Since then, ESLT has
worked with numerous landowners in the Swall Meadows area to permanently
protect a total of 269 acres of private land in the migration corridor, making the
deer’s passage safer and forage along the way more assured.

The integrity of this herd’s survival depends on preserving their migratory corridor and
critical winter range, not overlaying it with massive hydroelectric infrastructure.

Construction in the Round Valley Fault Zone: The OVPSP would be constructed “in
one of the most seismically active region[s] along the eastern front of the Sierra Nevadas’
according to the U.S. Geological Survey (USGS.) In their document, Scenario
Earthquake Hazards for the Long Valley Caldera-Mono Lake Area, East-Central
California, the USGS Round Valley M7.0 Scenario states:

b

An M7.0 earthquake on the Round Valley Fault would produce strong ground
shaking in the southern Long Valley, Round Valley, and Bishop Creek areas.
Instrumental intensity, median PGA (peak ground acceleration), and median SA
(second spectral accelerations) at 1.0 second for this scenario are shown in figure
26. [Round Valley MMI Map next page.|
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The maximum MMI (Modified Mercalli Intensity) is 8.9, corresponding to severe
to violent perceived shaking and moderate to heavy potential damage. The
maximum PGA and SA at 1.0 second are 0.59 and 0.76 g, respectively. The
maximum shaking occurs in the immediate vicinity of the fault, particularly to the
east of the fault (in the hanging wall regions). The affected areas with at least
strong perceived shaking and light potential damage (intensity >6.0) extend up to
35 km from the fault trace, extending to the foothills of the White Mountains. The
areas with at least severe to violent perceived shaking and moderate to heavy
potential damage (intensity >7.0) extend to about 23 km in the hanging wall
regions (east) and 8 km in the footwall regions (west).

Btlps s consenvation cibgoy ces Documents FaniiquikeLoss ©ON SR2ZIT o 2000 1043 pdl

At maximum MMI 8.9, the potential for an OVPSP dam/reservoir and/or penstock failure
in this kind of scenario is high. A catastrophic down-creek and down-slope flood would
immediately endanger life and property in the existing communities of Rock Creek
Canyon, Sierra Paradise Estates, and Swall Meadows. The extreme seismic risk must
make this project a non-starter.

Adjacent Communities Quality of Life: The OVPSP will profoundly and negatively
affect the quality of life in the communities of Sierra Paradise Estates and Swall
Meadows as well as Tom’s Place and Sunny Slopes. The profound peace, untrammelled,
natural beauty, mountain and sagebrush viewshed, free flowing creek, and wildlife make
living in this area heart-full and soul-satisfying. Despoiling this region with dams,
reservoirs, penstocks, roads and more high-voltage power lines is absolutely
unacceptable.
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We ask that the Commission deny Premium Energy a permit for the OVPSP based on the
significant land use concerns, tourism and recreational impacts, degradation of wildlife
habitat, severe seismic risks, and diminishment of existing communities’ quality of life.
The human psyche needs wild, untrammelled places in order to exist. The value and
majesty of the Owens Valley/Eastern Sierra is far greater as a source of human
replenishment and soul regeneration for current and future generations than as a source of

hydroelectric power.

Thank you for your time and attention,

Sierra Paradise Estates FERC-OVPSP Petition
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May 7, 2019
Regular Meeting

Item # 10c

CDD

Letter from LADWP



Eric Garcetti, Mayor

Los Angeles "
Department of " HetLovine,Prosden
DWP Water & Power Cynthia McClain-Hill, Vice President
Jill Banks Barad
CUSTOMERS FIRST e acies
Barbara E. Moschos, Secretary
AprII 25, 2019 David H. Wright, General Manager
Ms. Wendy Sugimura RECE\VED
Director MAY 09 2009
Mono County Community Development Department
P.O. Box 347 Mono Gounty chD

Mammoth Lakes, CA 93546
wsugimura@mono.ca.gov

Dear Ms. Sugimura:
Subject: Long Valley Groundwater Monitoring Wells

The Los Angeles Department of Water and Power (LADWP) plans to install monitoring
wells on LADWP-owned lands in Long Valley, Mono County for technical analysis
supporting an Environmental Impact Report (EIR). The monitoring wells would be used
solely for data collection purposes and not result in any water export to Los Angeles.

LADWP proposes to install the monitoring wells in May and/or June of 2019. To ensure
adequate avoidance of impacts to the bi-state sage grouse leks, construction activity for
all well sites will occur after 10:00 a.m. A site monitor will also be present for ingress
and egress to the proposed sites.

Please contact Dr. Saeed Jorat, Waterworks Engineer (213) 367-1119 or
saeed.jorat@ladwp.com for further coordination.

Clarence E. Martin
Manager of Aqueduct

SJ:fj
¢: Mr. Adam Perez
Mr.Saeed Jorat

1M1 N. Hope Street, Los Angeles, California 90012-2607 Mailing Address: PO Box 51111, Los Angeles, CA 90051-5700
Telephone (213) 367-4211 ladwp.com



May 7, 2019
Regular Meeting

Iltem # 11

Sup. Corless

RCRC Meeting Highlights



RCRC

REPRESENTING CALIFORNIA'S

RURAL COUNTIES

To: RCRC Board of Directors
From: Greg Norton
President and CEO
Date: May 06, 2019
Re: RCRC Board Meeting Highlights (May 02, 2019)

Member County Concerns and Issues

Supervisor Michael Kelley (Imperial) discussed his county’s recent cybersecurity issues
and Informational Technology (IT) breach. Supervisor Kelley encouraged RCRC Board
Members to audit their county’s IT structure and ensure that appropriate firewalls and
security protocols are in place. Imperial County will be developing a comprehensive
report detailing their recent experience and response, and will share it with RCRC upon
release. For more immediate concerns, or to learn more about their recent experience,
please call Imperial County General Services at (442) 265-1001.

Supervisor Diane Dillon (Napa) echoed Supervisor Kelley’'s comments on the
importance of cybersecurity, and suggested RCRC research the viability of a Joint
Powers Authority to manage RCRC’s member county IT security in a collective manner.

Administrative Matters

Designate Two Members of the RCRC Board to Serve on the Golden State Natural
Resources, Inc. Board of Directors — ACTION

The RCRC Board of Directors designated Supervisor Matt Kingsley (Inyo) and
Supervisor Stacy Corless (Mono) to serve on the Golden State Natural Resources
Board of Directors for a one-year term. The memo can be accessed here.

Guest Speaker

Mike Reynolds, Superintendent, Death Valley National Park

Mr. Reynolds welcomed RCRC’s Board of Directors to Death Valley National Park, and
provided an overview of the parks operations and offerings, and discussed how the park
developed its successful relationship with Inyo County.

Governmental Affairs

Assembly Bill 1049 (Grayson) — On-Call Volunteer Fire Departments — ACTION

The RCRC Board of Directors adopted a “Support” position on Assembly Bill 1049
(Grayson) regarding the purchase of equipment for on-call volunteer fire departments.
The memo can be accessed here.

RURAL COUNTY REPRESENTATIVES OF CALIFORNIA
1215 KSTREET, SUITE 1650 SACRAMENTO, CA 95814 PHONE: 916-447-4806 FAX:916-448-3154 WEB: WWW.RCRCNET.ORG


https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/345286/Designate_two_members_of_the_RCRC_Board_to_serve_on_the_Golden_State_Natural_Resources__Inc._Board_of_Directors_MEMO_AW.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/344331/Assembly_Bill_1049__Grayson____On-Call_Volunteer_Fire_Departments_MEMO_PS_JC.pdf

Senate Bill 45 (Allen) — Wildfire, Drought, and Flood Protection Bond Act of 2020 —
ACTION

The RCRC Board of Directors adopted a “Support” position on Senate Bill 45 (Allen),
the “Wildfire, Drought, and Flood Protection Bond Act of 2020.” SB 45 would authorize
the issuance of $4.3 billion in general obligation bonds to finance a variety of natural
resource investments. The memo can be accessed here.

Assembly Constitutional Amendment 1 (Aquiar-Curry) — Affordable Housing — ACTION
The RCRC Board of Directors adopted a “Support” position on Assembly Constitutional
Amendment 1 (Aguiar-Curry) related to affordable housing. ACA 1 would lower the vote
threshold to 55 percent for approval of local bonded-indebtedness and specially-
dedicated taxes imposed for specific uses. The memo can be accessed here.

Senate Constitutional Amendment 1 (Allen) — Public Housing Projects — ACTION

The RCRC Board of Directors adopted a “Support” position on Senate Constitutional
Amendment 1 (Allen) related to public housing projects. SCA 1 would repeal Article 34
of the California State Constitution. The memo can be accessed here.

California Public Utilities Commission Wildfire Proceedings Update

Staci Heaton, Regulatory Affairs Advocate, provided an update on the California Public
Utilities Commission’s recent actions to tackle the complex issues surrounding investor-
owned utilities (IOUs). The CPUC has begun two separate proceedings, and since
RCRC was granted party status in both proceedings, RCRC is able to provide
comments. The memo can be accessed here.

Forest Management and Wildfire Update

Ms. Heaton discussed the efforts currently underway in the Legislature and various
state and federal agencies to address California’s persistent catastrophic wildfire
events. These efforts include work being conducted by the Commission on
Catastrophic Wildfire Cost and Recovery and the Forest Management Task Force, as
well as updates on the Governor's Wildfires and Energy Report, homeowners
insurance, and the Community Wildfire Prevention and Mitigation Report. The memo
can be accessed here.

State Legislation

Assembly Bill 1356 (Ting)

Paul A. Smith, Vice President Governmental Affairs, provided an update on Assembly
Bill 1356 (Ting) related to retail commercial cannabis activity in local jurisdictions. Mr.
Smith explained that the legislation fundamentally erodes local control as it mandates
that retail activity related to cannabis must be allowed in counties where Proposition 64
has passed. RCRC'’s opposition letter can be accessed here.

Please refer to the Board Packet and Supplemental Packet for further details related to
the items above, as well as all items covered during the May 2019 RCRC Board of
Directors meeting. The May 2019 Board Packet can be accessed here.


https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/343869/Senate_Bill_45__Allen__-_Wildfire__Drought__and_Flood_Protection_Bond_Act_of_2020_MEMO_PS_SH.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/343509/Assembly_Constitutional_Amendment_1__Aguiar-Curry_Affordable_Housing_MEMO_PS_JC.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/343510/Senate_Constitutional_Amendment_1__Allen__Public_Housing_Projects_MEMO_PS_JC.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/343230/California_Public_Utilities_Commission_Wildfire_Proceedings_Update_MEMO_PS_JC.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/343514/Forest_Management_and_Wildfire_Update_MEMO_PS_JC.pdf
https://www.rcrcnet.org/sites/default/files/useruploads/Documents/Barbed_Wire/May_03_2019/AB_1356_Ltr_to_Auth_04122019.pdf
https://www.rcrcnet.org/sites/default/files/agendas/5.2.2019_RCRC_Agenda.pdf



